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Overview

About us

Melbourne Water is owned by the Victorian Government. We manage water supply catchments, treat and supply drinking and recycled water, remove and treat most of Melbourne's sewage, and manage waterways and major drainage systems in the Port Phillip and Westernport region.

We consider social, environmental and financial effects and short-term and long-term implications in all our business decisions.

Our customers include the metropolitan water retailers, other water authorities, land developers and businesses that divert river water.

The 1.8 million households who receive waterways and drainage services are also our customers.

We deliver our services in partnership with others including government agencies, local councils, catchment authorities, contractors and suppliers.

About this report

Melbourne Water's Annual Report 2011-12 describes our annual progress towards achieving our new vision of Enhancing Life and Liveability in the greater Melbourne region, and how we met our regulatory obligations from 1 July 2011 to 30 June 2012. The Honourable Peter Walsh MLA, Minister for Water, was the Minister responsible for Melbourne Water from 1 July 2011 until 30 June 2012.

The report reviews our performance against key performance indicators (KPIs) detailed in our Corporate Plan and KPIs that meet Ministerial Reporting Directions. We also report against sustainability or water industry-based indicators including The Global Reporting Initiative (GRI): Sustainability Reporting Guidelines. The GRI Content Index and our Independent Assurance Statement are available on our website melbournewater.com.au

Online document

As part of Melbourne Water's commitment to sustainability, a limited number of copies of this report will be printed (with 80 designated for the Victorian Parliament). An online version will be available on the Melbourne Water website

melbournewater.com.au

Accessibility

An accessible text format of this report is available on our website at melbournewater.com.au. If you require this report, or sections of it, in a different accessible format, please contact Melbourne Water on 131 722 in Victoria, (03) 9679 7100 if calling from interstate or email enquiry@melbournewater.com.au
This text version is provided by Melbourne Water in the interests of accessibility and with the assistance of Vision Australia. Maps and diagrams appear throughout the document and are, in the main, described in the text. If you require additional information regarding any pictorial information, please contact Melbourne water on 131 722.

Our strategic guide

Melbourne Water launched its new Strategic Direction in March 2012.

Our new vision Enhancing Life and Liveability outlines Melbourne Water's commitment to do its part to improve the quality of life within the greater Melbourne region. The document guides and informs our decisions towards achieving this vision.

Melbourne Water's Strategic Direction is available on our website melbournewater.com.au
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Managing Director's Report

The continued wet weather pushed water storages from 55.8% to 70% full for the first time since January 1998, which represented an increase of 257.8 billion litres in 2011-12.

The past year has been a combination of delivering our core services, projects and maintenance programs and formalising our vision for the integrated water future of our city and region.

The release of our new Strategic Direction in March was a big step in consolidating our work in recent years to progress integrated water management from a concept to a reality.

The Strategic Direction and vision - Enhancing Life and Liveability - is largely underpinned by integrated water management and the fundamental approaches of a heightened customer focus and need to increase collaboration with water retailers, local and State Government and the community to achieve shared outcomes.
The State Government's newly formed Office of Living Victoria provides the framework to achieve and deliver a shared water management vision.

A constructive culture is critical to the delivery of our Strategic Direction, and a review during the year demonstrated that we have a solid platform to strengthen our commitment to a safe workplace, customer service and innovation.

Our people are our greatest resource and - through our Zero Harm philosophy - their safety is our highest priority. It was with great sadness and shock that we experienced a workplace fatality at the Eastern Treatment Plant in December. The death of one of our colleagues brought home, in the most devastating way, the importance of our unwavering commitment to safety.
Rainfall in the major catchments in 2011-12 was just over 30% above average, which delivered both the opportunity for storages to continue the recovery from long-term drought and the challenge of managing the disruptive impacts of flooding.
The continued wet weather pushed water storages from 55.8% to 70% full for the first time since January 1998, which represented an increase of 257.8 billion litres in 2011-12. Remarkably, storages dropped just 0.1 % over summer and autumn (a period in which they typically shed 8%) due to unseasonably high rainfall.

The past 12 months has seen us draw close to the culmination of an unprecedented era of capital investment in the region's water, sewerage and drainage infrastructure.

Two highlights were the completion of the Northern Sewerage Project, to cater for the rapidly growing northern suburbs and protect local waterways, and the Melbourne Main Sewer Replacement which involved renewing the original 100-year-old pipeline that serves Melbourne's CBD and Docklands.
We also entered the final phase of the S418M upgrade of the Eastern Treatment Plant in Melbourne's south-east, which will significantly improve the quality of the plant's environmental discharge and increase the standard of recycled water produced at the plant to enable a far greater range of potential uses. When finished at the end of 2012, the upgrade will transform the plant into one of the most sophisticated large-scale sewage treatment facilities in the world.

We are also close to finishing the Frankston Drainage Improvement project-the biggest single project we have undertaken to improve flood protection. The final stage of the $73M project, which began in 2009, is due to be completed in January 2013, and will better protect Frankston (one of Melbourne's lowest-lying suburbs) from serious flooding during severe wet weather.

We were proud and humbled on several occasions in 2011-12 to receive recognition from our industry peers. Most notably, the Yarra River was runner-up in the prestigious International River Prize, a great testament to the efforts of our Waterways team -who are excited to be hosting this year's International River Symposium where our city's rivers and creeks will be showcased on the world stage.
Other achievements included receiving the International Association for Public Participation's Organisation of the Year (Australasia), which was well deserved recognition for the work our people have done through our Stakeholder and Engagement Strategy, and winning the United Nations Association of Australia's "Leadership in Sustainability (large business)" award for our corporate sustainability programs and achievements.
Shaun Cox

Managing Director
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Chairman's Report

In its drive to improve customer service, the organisation undertook a comprehensive review of how the business understands and interacts with its customers and used these findings to develop and implement a new Customer Strategy.

The release of the organisation's new Strategic Direction and vision, Enhancing Life and Live ability, in March was a 2011-12 milestone.

The Strategic Direction outlines the progression toward integrated water resource management: planning and delivering water supply, waterways and sewage services holistically and increasing the diversity of water supplies including the use of stormwater, recycled water and desalinated water to cater for a growing population.

Integrating this water management approach with the design and development of communities provides multiple benefits including the provision of alternative fit-for-purpose water, more green open spaces and healthy waterways and bays for recreation and relaxation.

Customers' needs and expectations are central to the organisation, and there is always room for improvement in the way services are delivered. In its drive to improve customer service, the organisation undertook a comprehensive review of how the business understands and interacts with its customers and used these findings to develop and implement a new Customer Strategy.

This extensive process involved customer consultation which resulted in nearly 4,000 sources of feedback, which proved invaluable in framing the strategy.

The Yarra River received the first of its reinstated environmental flows in September. Flows of up to 200 million litres per day were released into the river below the Upper Yarra Reservoir - a significant increase from the regular daily flow of 10 million litres per day.

There was further good news for the health of Melbourne's waterways in July with the establishment of the Victorian Environmental Water Holder, a new independent statutory body that decides on the best use of Victoria's environmental water entitlements, helping protect the environmental values of Victoria's river systems and wetlands.

In 2011-12, Melbourne Water delivered $547.1 M of capital works including the completion of two major sewerage projects critical to catering for the region's growing population and protecting the health of waterways.

The Northern Sewerage Project, a joint project with Yarra Valley Water which began in 2007, was completed in November, six months ahead of schedule and under budget. The replacement of a section of a century-old sewer main from Port Melbourne to Docklands was completed on time in June 2012 and under budget.

With regard to our financial performance in 2011-12, total cash returns to our shareholder were S289.3M (S173.1M in 2010-11). Net profit after tax was S269.9M (S157.8M in 2010-11). This includes $225M of revenue in early recovery of costs associated with construction of the Victorian Desalination Plant (VDP).

In 2009, the Essential Services Commission (ESC) determined Melbourne Water's prices for 2009-10 to 2012-13, which accounted for the revenue needed to recover forecast obligatory payments for the cost of the desalination plant in 2011-12 and 2012-13.

Delays in commissioning the plant meant we were not required to make these payments in 2011-12, which resulted in the revenue collected from customers being higher than our costs. Our draft plan for the next five-year pricing period (2013-14 to 2017-18) outlined our intention to return this revenue to customers, but it was clear from community feedback that customers wanted the funds returned sooner.

In response to customer concerns, Melbourne Water has committed to returning the funds collected to customers as soon as possible, in conjunction with the metropolitan water retailers and with oversight from the ESC.

I thank the Board and staff for all their work during 2011-12.

In accordance with the Financial Management Act 1994,1 am pleased to attest that Melbourne Water Corporation's Annual Report 2011-12 is compliant with all statutory reporting requirements.
Eleanor Underwood

Chairman
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Service delivery

Water

Alternative water sources and Integrated water management

Sewerage

Waterways
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Our Aim

Provide services that are valued by our customers.

We will do this by:

• Providing high-quality, safe and reliable drinking water and fit-for-purpose water from alternative sources

• Providing safe sewage transfer, treatment and disposal

• Protecting and enhancing the health and amenity of waterways and bays

• Managing food risk

• Adapting our assets to address climate change and variability

• Planning, operating and maintaining our built and natural assets efficiently by incorporating innovative and whole-of-life system approaches

• Providing for continuity of service by improving the way we plan for, respond to, and recover from extreme events.
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Service delivery

Water
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Key Achievements

• Met water quality targets for turbidity, aluminium and disinfection by-products

• Supported the Victorian Government's Ministerial Advisory Council (MAC) to deliver on its vision of Living Melbourne Living Victoria to improve the liveability of Melbourne and Victoria's regional cities through better planning and management of urban water systems

• Continued to develop the draft Water Supply Demand Strategy for Melbourne in collaboration with the Victorian Government and metropolitan water retailers, and in consultation with the community

• Collaborated with stakeholders to provide advice on the desalination water order volumes supported by innovative optimisation modelling tools

• Worked with the Victorian Government and water retailers to review water restriction schedules and Drought Response Plans, and developed an adaptive annual Water Outlook approach based on lessons learnt during the recent long drought

• Continued to work with key stakeholders and climate researchers to improve our understanding of the impacts of climate change and variability, including completion of a business-wide Climate Change Adaptation Action Plan

Disappointments

• Failed to meet our target of less than 1% for measurable transfer losses of total water delivered (recording 1.27%), mainly due to an increase in operational losses (to maintain water quality objectives and test protocols which will result in reduced losses in subsequent years) and a tank and reservoir cleaning program

• Failed to bring Yan Yean Reservoir online as a backup to other reservoirs due to water quality issues

Challenges

• Integrating desalinated water into Melbourne's water supply system to ensure customers continue to receive high quality and reliable drinking water

• Maximising water from traditional catchments and dams while continuing to diversify our water sources including stormwater and recycled water

• Working with water retailers to develop the annual Water Outlook and Action Plans to build Melbourne's water supply security and resilience

• Working with the newly formed Office of Living Victoria, water retailers and stakeholders to review the draft Water Supply Demand Strategy and develop Melbourne's first Metropolitan Integrated Water Cycle Strategy

• Working with water retailers, local councils and the development industry to generate integrated water management solutions

• Continuing research and assessment of the impact of seasonal climate outlooks and long-term climate change projections on hydrology

• Working with stakeholders to adapt our assets to climate change and variability
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Our water supply system

Melbourne Water's supply system comprises:

• 157,000 hectares of protected catchments in the Yarra Ranges
• 10 reservoirs with a total capacity of 1,812 billion litres
• 34 water treatment plants
• 1,062 kilometres of water mains
• 214 kilometres of aqueducts
• 64 service reservoirs.

Managing demand and supply

Storages continue to rise

Good rainfall continued to boost our water storages in 2011-12 which reached 70% full for the first time since January 1998. Total reservoir storage was 55.8% or 1,010.9 billion litres at 1 July 2011, and this increased to 70.0% or 1,268.7 billion litres at 30 June 2012.

Rainfall and streamflow in Melbourne's catchments are significantly impacted by climatic variations. Heavy rain coincided with back-to-back La Niña events in 2010-11 and 2011-12 with rainfall in the major catchments in 2011-12 being 9.5% to 52.7% above average, with the catchment weighted average being 31.2% above the long-term average.

Due to increased rainfall and wet catchments, streamflow into the major harvesting reservoirs in 2011-12 was 27.2% above the long-term average. While this is lower than the 42.6% above average streamflow recorded in a very wet 2010-11 (the highest since 1993-94), the above average rainfall and streamflow saw Melbourne's total reservoir storage volume holding steady over the 2011-12 summer/ autumn period. Storages started summer at 65.1% (1,179.8 billion litres) and finished autumn at 65.0% (1,178.6 billion litres). Storages typically decline around 8% over the six-month summer/autumn period.

While the total storage volume has increased significantly over the past couple of years, it is still recovering from years of below average inflows between 1997 and 2009, which was characterised by two severe droughts in 1997 and 2006.

The Thomson Reservoir, which represents about 60% of the total storage capacity available to Melbourne, is the main drought reserve. At the end of 2011-12, Thomson Reservoir had recovered to 63.7%, an increase of more than 22% from 41.3% on 1 July 2011. The last time Thomson Reservoir was at this volume was in March 1998.

Climate variability and climate change have a significant influence on Melbourne's storage volumes, so Melbourne Water supports an active research program to improve understanding of climate risks and guide water management and climate change adaptation across the business.

Monthly average rainfall at Melbourne's major harvesting reservoirs 

Rainfall mm/month

<transcriber's note> The following information was presented in a bar graph. The figures are approximate. </transcriber's note>

Month | Rainfall 30 Year LTA | Rainfall 2011-12

July | 110 | 135

August | 115 | 80

September | 123 | 126

October | 100 | 90

November | 95 | 190

December | 88 | 110

January | 75 | 73

February | 55 | 100

March | 66 | 125

April | 80 | 73

May | 76 | 123

June | 105 | 175

Monthly average streamflow at Melbourne's major harvesting reservoirs

Streamflow mm/month

<transcriber's note> The following information was presented in a bar graph. The figures are approximate. </transcriber's note>

Month | Streamflow 30 Year LTA | Streamflow 2011-12

July | 37,500 | 90,000

August | 70,000 | 55,000

September | 74,500 | 30,000

October | 68,000 | 57,500

November | 47,000 | 60,000

December | 20,000 | 40,000

January | 22,000 | 27,000

February | 13,000 | 18,000 

March | 12,500 | 35,000

April | 15,000 | 24,000

May | 23,000 | 37,500

June | 37,500 | 110,000

Melbourne's water storage

<transcriber's note> The trend graph has been omitted owing to its complexity. </transcriber's note>
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At the end of the 2011-12 year, Thomson Reservoir had recovered to 63.7%, an increase of more than 22% from 41.3% on 1 July 2011.

Melbourne Water water supply system

<transcriber's note> The map has been omitted. </transcriber's note>

Annual streamflow at Melbourne's major harvesting reservoirs (Upper Yarra, Thomson, Maroondah and O'Shannassy Reservoirs)

<transcriber's note> The bar graph has been omitted owing to its complexity. </transcriber's note>
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Challenges of wetter weather

The main challenge of prolonged wetter weather conditions lies in managing all the water supply sources to ensure recovery of storages and security for future droughts.

Water can be transferred between some storages, but it still isn't viable to connect all storages together due to factors including elevation, distance and the frequency of extra harvesting availability. Some water also needs to be set aside for environmental flows.

Other challenges include:

• Water quality in major storages and the impact storms have on existing water quality by increasing sediment loading

• Lower water consumption, which results in lower flow velocity and increased sediment layers in pipework across Melbourne. Future drier weather conditions may result in sudden sediment dispersal, causing turbidity events and customer complaints

• Greater spilling events of smaller storages (Maroondah and O'Shannassy Reservoirs) resulting in flooding and public perception of lost harvest

• Melbourne Water has been able to offset some of its large power usage by operating several mini hydro-electricity plants, which use the normal transfer of water into service reservoirs to generate power. Lower demand for water caused by wetter conditions has resulted in lower flows, which are less than the flows required to operate the generators.

Preparing for desalination

The Victorian Desalination Plant is being developed by the Victorian Government in conjunction with the AquaSure consortium. When complete, the plant will enable three more regional water authorities to be connected to Melbourne's water supply system. Barwon Water, South Gippsland Water and Westernport Water will be able to increase the security of their supply by accessing the Melbourne system when required. They will join Melbourne Water's existing customers of City West Water, South East Water, Yarra Valley Water, Western Water and Gippsland Water. Therefore, integrating the Victorian Desalination Plant into Melbourne's water supply system will involve new institutional arrangements as well as physical assets.

Melbourne Water and the three metropolitan water retailers collaboratively developed a process to provide advice to the Victorian Government's 2012-13 annual desalination water order. Melbourne Water led the development of innovative optimisation modelling tools to support this advice. Further improvements will be made to these tools to provide input to the 2013 desalinated water order.

Water consumption and quality

Melburnians continued to conserve water in 2011-12, with low average daily consumption of 998 million litres per day. This is lower than the 1,029 million litres average daily consumption in the last five years, and significantly lower than the 1,320 million litres per day in the 1990s.

While consumption has increased compared to the 963 million litres per day in 2010-11, this may be attributed to a combination of lower monthly total rainfall, higher average monthly maximum temperature and more hot days (above 30°C) over the 2011-12 summer as well as easing of restrictions from Stage two to Stage one from 1 December 2011.

Residential daily per capita water consumption for Melbourne in 2011-12 was 149 litres compared to 140 litres in 2010-11.

Melbourne Water met water quality targets for turbidity, aluminium and disinfection by-products in 2011-12.

We work closely with the water retailers to consistently meet stringent requirements in the distribution of safe, high quality water.

Melbourne's water supply system is managed according to Hazard Analysis and Critical Control Point (HACCP) principles, which uses audits and accreditation to ensure quality management from collection, treatment and distribution to customers.

Average daily water use for Melbourne

ml per day

01 Jul to 30 Jun 1992-1999 (8 year average) 1,320 ml

01 Jul 2007 to 30 Jun 2011 (5 year average) 1,029 ml

01 Jul 2010 to 30 Jun 2011 963 ml

01 Jul 2011 to 30 Jun 2012 998 ml

2011-12 Retail water consumption

Consumption (%)

36.6% Yarra Valley Water 133,918 ml

35.5% South East Water 129,908 ml

0.1% Gippsland Water 287 ml

26.4% City West Water 96,338 ml

1.4% Western Water 5,108 ml

100% total consumption 365,559 ml
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This year's consumption of 365,559 million litres is similar to levels last seen in the early 1970s.

Financial year consumption

<transcriber's note> The bar graph has been omitted owing to its complexity. </transcriber's note>

Retail water consumption

Melbourne Water supplied 365,559 million litres of drinking water to the water retailers in 2011-12. This compares with 351,761 million litres in 2010-11 and 361,362 million litres in 2009-10.

This year's consumption of 365,559 million litres is similar to levels last seen in the early 1970s (refer to "Financial Year Consumption" graph).

Water restrictions eased

Increased water supply reserves led the Victorian Government to ease Melbourne's water restrictions from Stage two to Stage one on 1 December 2011. This included increased watering times for gardens and council sporting grounds, and allowing lawn watering which was prohibited in Stage two.

With water restrictions low, rivers received their full environmental water entitlements in 2011-12. Extra environmental flow releases of 16 billion litres (11 billion litres for Thomson River and 5 billion litres for Yarra River) were made in addition to normal releases to waterways from Melbourne's dams and weirs.

On 1 July 2011, the Victorian Environmental Water Holder (VEWH) was established as a new independent statutory body to decide on the best use of Victoria's environmental water entitlements. The VEWH works with Melbourne Water and the catchment management authorities to ensure environmental water entitlements are used to achieve the best environmental outcome with the water that is available.

Environmental sustainability

Sustainable water use

Melbourne Water supported and is working with the Victorian Government's Ministerial Advisory Council (MAC) to help deliver its Living Melbourne Living Victoria vision to improve the liveability of Melbourne and Victoria's regional cities through better planning and management of urban water systems. The benefits of these changes include healthier urban waterways, greener open spaces, reduced urban heat island effect, future water security, and less reliance on rural water.

A MAC Implementation Plan recommends changes to the way water is managed to ensure Melbourne's future water needs are met, in the face of continued population growth and an uncertain climate.

The Victorian Government has also established the Office of Living Victoria (OLV) to drive reform through an immediate focus on integrated water cycle planning. Melbourne Water will support the work of the OLV which complements our vision of Enhancing Life and Liveability in the Melbourne region.

Melbourne Water supports the Government's desire to ensure that water is used more than once wherever possible. Increased use of recycled water and other alternative water sources is vital to achieving a more sustainable city (see Alternative Water Sources chapter, pages 14-19 for detailed information on water recycling initiatives).

Water Supply Demand Strategy

The Water Supply Demand Strategy (WSDS), developed jointly by Melbourne Water, South East Water, City West Water and Yarra Valley Water, is a 50-year strategy for balancing the supply of and demand for water in Melbourne. This strategy is one of the key inputs into our next Water Plan which sets out funding for the upcoming regulatory period (commencing 2013-14).

Throughout 2011-12, work continued on a new WSDS, including a community research project to better understand the needs of Melburnians, and investigations of potential water efficiency opportunities and sources of fit-for-purpose water as part of integrated water cycle management.

The new WSDS will be reviewed during 2012-13 as an input into the first Metropolitan Integrated Water Cycle Strategy for Melbourne.

Sustainable water strategies

Sustainable water strategies set out to secure water supplies for consumption and environmental purposes over a 50 year period. The Central Region Sustainable Water Strategy 2006 (CRSWS) set out a series of actions to 2055 to deliver sustainable water use and management objectives.
The objectives of the CRSWS are addressed through the Water Supply Demand Strategy and the Healthy Waterways Strategy. For further information on Melbourne Water's role in balancing consumption and environmental needs, see the Alternative Water Sources chapter, pages 14-19 and the Waterways chapter pages 26-31.
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Water supply to growth areas

Melbourne Water, City West Water, South East Water, Western Water and Yarra Valley Water worked together to develop cost-effective, growth-servicing plans to supply water to Melbourne's growth areas. The plans outline how projected growth over the next 20 years will be serviced by new infrastructure so that Melbourne Water continues to meet its commitments to retail water customers.

Water conservation – System losses and repairing leaks

Melbourne Water's target is that measurable transfer losses are less than 1% of total water delivered. This year we failed to meet the target (recording 1.27%), mainly due to an increase in operational losses and a tank and reservoir cleaning program:

• Several large reservoirs have been cleaned and inspected this year as part of a normal maintenance and operation regime to meet water quality and asset management requirements. The tank and reservoir cleaning program has fully resumed after being placed on hold or reduced in frequency due to water restrictions during the drought

• The Tarago Treatment Plant was shut down due to high turbidity readings in August 2011, resulting in water losses while performance adjustments were made to bring the treatment plant back online

• Flushing frequency trials were conducted in the Winneke Preston Main during the year to address summer peak flows and water quality requirements. A fortnightly flushing regime without water loss was subsequently established to most effectively manage this asset. This regime has replaced the previous annual flushing and scouring regime and will result in water savings every year

• Losses from aqueducts in 2011–12 were significantly lower than the previous year. Losses were mainly the by-product of major capital works at Toorourrong Reservoir which required the Silver and Wallaby Aqueducts to be removed from service for most of the year.

Overall, a small proportion of the water losses across the Melbourne Water system were due to water main leaks and major water main renewal works. Our pipe repair crews based at Olinda and Healesville fixed 111 water main leaks.

Partnership with Yarra Valley Water

Melbourne Water and Yarra Valley Water have formed a partnership to help identify and reduce the amount of leakage in the water transfer system.

Melbourne Water is also helping Yarra Valley Water understand and manage its Non-Revenue Water (NRW), which amounts to about 12% of the volume of water supplied.

A NRW Working Group has been formed to:

• Develop a shared level of understanding of the elements of NRW

• Work together to reduce the component of NRW that exists within Melbourne Water's wholesale transfer system

• Ensure robustness and confidence in the bulk water billing process and calculation of leakage.

Over the last 12 months, the working group's investigation program has included trials of novel leak detection methods and some innovative field validation of billing meters using salt tracer tests. Results to date have confirmed the accuracy of the major billing meters. The working group was recently expanded to involve all metropolitan water retailers.

Yan Yean Reservoir disappointment

Yan Yean Reservoir is Melbourne's oldest storage reservoir and is used to supply most of the city's northern suburbs. Under normal conditions, it provides backup to both Sugarloaf (Winneke Treatment Plant) and Greenvale reservoirs if either is unavailable or has restricted operation.

Although Yan Yean Reservoir is a treated supply, it has a reputation for being difficult to bring online as it can have a slight earthy taste, resulting in some customer complaints.

This was particularly evident during a Winneke Treatment Plant outage in November 2011 when Yan Yean water was judged unsuitable as an alternative supply after a day of testing. Another trial was attempted in February 2012 but customer complaints made Yan Yean supply untenable and it was ceased after one week.

Even though Melbourne Water and Yarra Valley Water developed a streamlined process for testing Yan Yean water, it remains problematic and further investigations are underway to improve the treatment process.

Drought response and water outlook for Melbourne

Melbourne Water has been working with the Victorian Government, VicWater and water retailers to review drought response and water management initiatives for Melbourne based on community consultation, experience of managing the dry period between 1997 and 2009, and lessons from the recent water restrictions implementation. The review has resulted in:

• Revised water restriction schedules and permanent water savings rules following a statewide VicWater review

• Development of a new Water Outlook approach to support implementation of the Drought Response Plans

• Revision of the water retailers' Drought Response Plans and Permanent Water Savings Plans.

Melbourne Water has contributed to VicWater's review of the existing four-stage restriction schedule and permanent water saving rules used throughout Victoria. The review drew on experiences from water management during the recent drought and community feedback. The revised schedule is broadly similar to previous restriction schedules and permanent water saving rules. Key changes include consistency in watering start times and consistency in automatic and manual watering systems aimed at promoting community acceptance and adherence to water restrictions.

Melbourne Water also participated in the joint development of a new Water Outlook approach with the Victorian Government and water retailers through the Water Supply Demand Strategy (WSDS) for Melbourne. An annual Water Outlook, to be published each year on 1 December, will indicate the overall level of system security based on the storage volume at 30 November each year in relation to three zones: High, Medium and Low zones. These zones will be used to determine appropriate water management measures.

The annual Water Outlook will provide the community with water use and supply information. It will outline various demand management and supply augmentation actions which may include water restrictions, alternative supply projects and water efficiency programs that will be undertaken in the next few years. The adaptive approach will provide more flexibility to respond to water shortages and changing climate conditions, rather than rely on the existing predefined trigger levels for each stage of restrictions.
<pp> 13

Melbourne Water will continue to work closely with the Victorian Government and water retailers on a cooperative and coordinated approach to drought response, and to achieve more transparent and resilient water resource planning in the face of climate variability, population growth and shifting community expectations.

Adapting to climate variability

Melbourne Water is continuing to work collaboratively with climate researchers and industry partners to improve understanding of the risks and impacts of climate change and variability, and to implement an adaptation strategy.

We are an industry partner in two Australian Research Council (ARC) Linkage Projects led by the University of Melbourne. One project aims to provide reconstructions of historical annual rainfall, streamflow, temperature and pressure variations data for south-eastern Australia to put recent climate variations in a longer-term context.

The second project is analysing recent climate patterns and assessing the range of uncertainty in projected annual rainfall and river flows under climate change. Both projects will help to inform decision-making for the sustainable management of water resources. Melbourne Water is also involved in the AdaptWater Project led by the Water Services Association of Australia (WSAA) to develop a climate change risk quantification and adaptation tool.

A Climate Change Reference Group has been established within Melbourne Water to set direction and review climate change adaptation activities. A Climate Change Risk Register and associated Adaptation Action Plans form a key part of our planning for climate change and are updated on an annual basis.

We will continue to work closely with our customers, stakeholders, hydro-climate researchers such as the CSIRO and the Australian Bureau of Meteorology to use the latest climate and hydrological information to build Melbourne's water supply-demand resilience by diversifying our sources.

Office water use

Melbourne Water met its office water use target in 2011-12, with consumption of 7,152 litres per full-time equivalent employee per year, compared to a target of 7,700 litres per full-time equivalent employee per year. In terms of office space, corporate water use equates to 473.73 litres per square metre. This data is collected for the 100 Wellington Parade head office and includes water used for air-conditioning cooling towers.

We relocated our head office from East Melbourne to Docklands over a three week period in June 2012. This affected our annual water use calculations *1.

Caption: Melbourne Water is continuing to work collaboratively with climate researchers and industry partners to improve understanding of the risks and impacts of climate change and variability, and to implement an adaption strategy.

*1 Actual water use for June 2012 at the East Melbourne office was omitted from the annual result calculations and then an averaged amount for June was added based on the monthly average of the previous 11 months. Incorporating actual June figures would have led to lower actual water use than the current averaged-out result
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Alternative water sources and Integrated water management

Our Aim

Contribute to a more sustainable, prosperous, liveable and healthy community by planning and delivering water supply, waterways and sewage services holistically.

We will do this by:

• Collaborating with customers and stakeholders to investigate new and diverse water resources

• Contributing to further integration between water planning and urban development planning

• Taking opportunities to achieve multiple benefits from our natural and built assets

• Managing the water supply system to meet urban, environmental and agricultural needs

• Sustainably managing catchments to protect water resources

• Undertaking effective long-term planning with stakeholders to meet the needs of a growing population and address the forecast impacts of climate change and variability.
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Key Achievements

• Worked with the water retailers to prepare the first draft of the Water Supply Demand Strategy for Melbourne Provided input to the Living Melbourne, Living Victoria Ministerial Advisory Council consultation process

• Provided support for various Integrated Water Management (IWM) regional strategies and strengthened relationships around these (e.g. Water Initiatives 2050, Strategy for West, Northern Growth Area IWM Strategy, Yarra Valley Water Healthy Rivers Strategy)

• Supported the establishment of the Cooperative Research Centre for Water Sensitive Cities to deliver integrated water management research

• Worked with City West Water to establish site works for the building of their salt reduction plant at the Western Treatment Plant (WTP), so salt-reduced recycled water can be supplied to growth areas of west Werribee

Disappointments

• The demand for recycled water was low in 2011-12 due to above average rainfall. Despite this lower demand, Melbourne Water's capacity to supply recycled water remains unchanged

Challenges

• Integrating all sources of water to diversify supply, improve climate resilience and promote fit-for-purpose use to keep potable quality water available for drinking

• Managing recycled water salinity in the west of Melbourne

• Completing and implementing the Investment Framework to allow cost sharing and IWM project benefits across organisations

• Investigating the impacts of urban development on groundwater

• Keeping pace with the speed of urban development and supporting the Growth Areas Authority (GAA) to develop IWM plans
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Benefits for communities, industry, agriculture and the environment

Melbourne Water is committed to collaborating with customers and stakeholders to plan and deliver water supply, waterways and sewage services holistically by using alternative water sources including stormwater, rainwater and recycled water.

This more integrated approach to water management will contribute to a more sustainable, prosperous, healthy and liveable community.

Drinking quality water makes up less than one-third of Melbourne's total water demand. The Department of Health requires drinking quality water to be used for indoor taps, showers and selected industrial uses.

Alternative water sources that have been treated to ensure they are fit-for-purpose can be used for toilet flushing, laundry use, domestic gardens, parks and gardens, some environmental purposes, industry and peri-urban agriculture. Taking this approach to meeting demand enables Melbourne to preserve finite high quality water for specific uses.

There are multiple direct and indirect benefits associated with developing alternative water sources and increasing fit-for-purpose water use including:

• Community – healthy open spaces and sports fields, a reduced urban heat island effect and improving the resilience of the water supply system to climate change and variability

• Economic – opportunities for growth, especially in industry and agriculture

• Environment – increasing the amount of water available for environmental flows, and reducing the impact of discharges such as stormwater and treated wastewater.

Melbourne Water is working with local councils and water retailers to deliver stormwater harvesting projects for residential and open space end uses.

We are also working with City West Water, Southern Rural Water, South East Water and the Water Infrastructure Group to provide customers with recycled water produced at our wastewater treatment plants. This recycled water is used for open space irrigation, agriculture, and for residential dual pipe schemes.

Integration of alternative water sources

Regional and Local Integrated Water Management Strategies

Melbourne Water, South East Water and Southern Rural Water have developed an integrated water strategy – Water Initiatives 2050 – to guide investment in water projects in Melbourne's south-east.

Projects that contribute to the vision of a "productive, liveable and sustainable" region by 2050 have been identified in collaboration with local councils. An implementation plan is being developed to outline a program of staged works.

As part of a new Strategy for the West, Melbourne Water, City West Water, Southern Rural Water and Western Water are collaborating on a scoping study to identify regional-scale opportunities for integrated water management.

Melbourne Water has helped Yarra Valley Water complete a Northern Growth Area Integrated Water Management Strategy and a Healthy Rivers Strategy. Both businesses will also work together on a scoping study to identify other regional-scale opportunities for integrated water management.

Melbourne Water works closely with 38 local councils across the Port Phillip and Westernport region. Many of these councils have developed integrated water cycle plans to identify opportunities to harvest alternative water sources from local assets, reduce demand for potable water and improve the management of urban stormwater. An example of these plans is the City of Kingston's Integrated Water Cycle Strategy, which was completed in 2012 with assistance from Melbourne Water.

Common Economic Evaluation Framework

The Water Supply Demand Strategy sets out a draft approach to assessing the merits of investments in alternative water schemes and water efficiency programs. It also outlines a process for cost sharing and recovery where there are multiple beneficiaries from an integrated investment.

We are working with the water retailers, the Department of Sustainability and Environment, the Department of Treasury and Finance, and the Essential Services Commission to support the development of this Common Economic Evaluation Framework (as recommended by the Living Melbourne, Living Victoria Ministerial Advisory Council).

Alternative water schemes and water efficiency programs deliver benefits across the whole water cycle and to a wide range of beneficiaries. The Evaluation Framework provides an opportunity to work cooperatively and systematically with all beneficiaries as business cases are developed. It also facilitates a process for agreement to co-invest where appropriate.

Underpinning this work was Melbourne Water's investment in research to determine the benefits of integrated approaches to water management and how to quantify these for inclusion in business cases. Over the last 12 months, Melbourne Water contributed to research projects conducted by the Cities as Water Supply Catchments program at Monash University and the Australian Water Recycling Centre of Excellence.

Integration with urban planning

Melbourne Water is supporting the integration of water and urban planning in a number of ways, including:

• Identifying potential reforms to facilitate better integration of water management and urban land use planning, in support of a review of Victoria's planning policy and statutory framework

• Creating an Urban Development Strategy to better leverage urban planning functions to achieve integrated water management outcomes in consultation with the Growth Areas Authority, local government and the water retailers

• Working to better integrate Melbourne Water's Developer Service Schemes process with the Growth Areas Authority's Precinct Structure Planning process and integrated water management options analysis

• Working with the Growth Areas Authority, local government and the water retailers to identify integrated water servicing options for some of the "fast-track" Precinct Structure Plans in Melbourne's growth areas.
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Stormwater harvesting

Under the Water Act 1989, Melbourne Water is delegated responsibility for the licensing of surface water from waterways in some catchments and from its own works, which includes the requirement to licence stormwater.

There are currently 17 active stormwater licences issued by Melbourne Water, predominantly to councils and sports clubs, totalling 720 million litres.

Melbourne Water continues to work with local councils and water retailers on stormwater projects including Yarra Valley Water and Manningham City Council to service the Doncaster Hill Principal Activity Centre. This development will integrate reticulated stormwater and recycled water into the existing urban setting.

Melbourne Water, Yarra Valley Water and Moreland City Council are working together to treat stormwater from two existing drains to service the Central Coburg precinct and surrounds.

Melbourne Water, the City of Melbourne, the City of Port Phillip, the Department of Sustainability and Environment, Office of Living Victoria, Places Victoria, South East Water and City West Water are collaborating on the Southbank Structure Plan. This plan is investigating the use of recycled water in buildings for non-potable demands and treating all stormwater generated in the area by 2040.

Melbourne Water is also working with Places Victoria and City West Water on Riverwalk Estate, which is a new residential development planned for Werribee that will showcase best practice integrated water management.

Managed aquifer recharge

Managed aquifer recharge is the actively managed recharge of water to aquifers for subsequent recovery and use, or environmental benefit. Water deposits are made in times of surplus (commonly during winter) and extraction of the stored water occurs during peak demand times when traditional supplies struggle to meet demand (summer).

Multi-year balancing is also possible for long-term storage. Typically, managed aquifer recharge involves the capture and use of treated stormwater or recycled water to recharge an aquifer for future recovery and use.

Melbourne Water is continuing to partner with City West Water on the West Werribee Aquifer Storage and Recovery Trial. Managed aquifer recharge is proposed as a key component of City West Water's West Werribee Dual Pipe Scheme. The potential for managed aquifer recharge is being investigated as an option for storing excess salt-reduced recycled water by operating City West Water's salt reduction plant (located at WTP) at full capacity throughout the year. This would balance short-term seasonal demands as well as ensure security of supply for the coming decades.

Recycled water

Managing water quality and reliability of supply

Melbourne Water continues to work with the water retailers to reduce salt discharges to sewer and is reviewing the Salinity Reduction Strategy with the aim of providing fit-for-purpose recycled water for customers.

The objective of the Salt Reduction Strategy review is to fill knowledge gaps and determine the lowest community cost options for salt management. The process will be informed by analysis to establish the salinity and sodicity impacts of recycled water and the cost for its management. The review will also include an infiltration study to identify sources of salt infiltration into the Hobson's Bay Main Sewer catchment. An engagement plan has been developed and will be used to identify and incorporate stakeholder views in the revised strategy.

A duplicate Class C pipeline at WTP has been constructed to increase the flexibility of the plant's recycled water system, and ensure a more reliable supply can be maintained to customers.

Melbourne Water has supported City West Water to develop the proposed Altona Stage two Recycled Water Scheme, which, when approved, would supply Class A water from WTP to industrial customers in the Altona precinct.

Caption: Melbourne Water is committed to collaborating with customers and stakeholders to plan and deliver water supply, waterways and sewage services holistically by using alternative water sources including stormwater, rainwater and recycled water.
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Melbourne Water has also supported South East Water, Southern Rural Water and local councils to develop a pre-feasibility study to assess the benefits of the proposed Bunyip Food Belt scheme, in which Class A recycled water from the Eastern Treatment Plant (ETP) would be supplied to food producers in Melbourne's south-east. The project is currently being managed by local councils.

Water recycling west of Melbourne

WTP supplied 23,168 million litres of recycled water to customers in 2011-12 (11,249 million litres last year). This comprises 23,007 million litres of recycled water used onsite (9,328 million litres last year), mostly Class C water for pasture irrigation and land and salinity management, and 161 million litres of Class A recycled water supplied to Southern Rural Water and City West Water for offsite customers (1,921 million litres last year).

In addition, 16,500 million litres of recycled water was provided for conservation purposes in the Ramsar-listed wetlands (18,723 million litres last year). Including the conservation flow, 18% of Melbourne Water's treated wastewater from both WTP and ETP was recycled.

Supply to Southern Rural Water

Melbourne Water supplied 9 million litres of Class A recycled water to Southern Rural Water (1,789 million litres last year). The 9 million litres was supplied to customers in the Werribee Tourist Precinct (43 million litres last year).

No Class A recycled water was supplied to growers in the Werribee Irrigation District (1,746 million litres last year). Above average rainfalls for the last two years reduced the demand for irrigation water and any supplementary demand was met by use of river water.

Supply to City West Water

Melbourne Water supplied 152 million litres of Class A recycled water to City West Water (132 million litres last year) for the Werribee Employment Precinct, MacKillop College and standpipes for water carters. City West Water's demand for recycled water will continue to grow with new demand coming from their West Werribee Dual Supply Scheme expected to come online in late 2013.

In the Werribee Employment Precinct, recycled water is used by City West Water's commercial customers for wash-down, industrial processes at Melbourne Water's Hoppers Crossing Pump Station and open space irrigation. During the year, 98 million litres was supplied to City West Water for this precinct (94 million litres last year).
City West Water was supplied with 22 million litres of recycled water for MacKillop College (16 million litres last year).

Water carters were supplied with 32 million litres of recycled water from City West Water standpipes at WTP (22 million litres last year) for a range of applications.

Melbourne Water's Recycling Schemes

<transcriber' note> The map has been omitted. </transcriber's note>
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There are currently 17 active stormwater licences issued by Melbourne Water, predominantly to councils and sports clubs, totalling 720 million litres.

Recycled water volumes

	
	Actual 2010-11
	Actual 2011-12
	Forecast 2011-12

	
	ML
	%*
	ML
	%*
	ML
	%*

	Western Treatment Plant

	Onsite recycling
	9,328
	2.8
	23,007
	7.2
	30,000
	9

	Supply to Southern Rural Water
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Werribee Irrigation District
	1,746
	0.5
	0
	0.0
	10,650
	3

	Werribee Tourist Precinct
	43
	0.0
	9
	0.0
	200
	0.0

	Supply to City West Water

	West Werribee Dual Pipe Project
	0
	0.0
	0
	0.0
	0
	0.0

	Werribee Employment Precinct
	94
	0.0
	98
	0.0
	360
	0.0

	MacKillop College
	16
	0.0
	22
	0.0
	50
	0.0

	Water tankers / standpipes
	22
	0.0
	32
	0.0
	200
	0.0

	WTP Total
	11,249
	3.4
	23,168
	7.2
	41,460
	13

	Eastern Treatment Plant

	Onsite recycling
	14,597
	4.3
	14,331
	4.4
	13,800
	4

	Supply to Water Infrastructure Group

	Eastern Irrigation Scheme
	1,666
	0.5
	3,089
	0.96
	5,000
	2

	Supply to South East Water
	
	
	
	
	
	

	South Eastern Outfall
	478
	0.1
	719
	0.2
	1,600
	0

	ETP total
	16,741
	5.0
	18,139
	5.56
	20,400
	6

	Total recycled
	27,990
	8.3
	41,307
	12.9
	61,860
	19

	Treated wastewater available for recycling
	335,764
	
	323,545
	
	
	

	Conservation flows at WTP
	18,723
	5.6
	16,500
	
	
	

	Total incl. conservation flow
	46,713
	13.9
	57,807
	
	
	


* Refers to percentage of treated wastewater produced at Melbourne Water's treatment plants ML = million litres

Water recycling east of Melbourne

ETP at Bangholme currently produces Class C recycled water. This year 18,139 million litres of recycled water (16,741 million litres in 2011-12) was supplied from ETP, including 14,331 million litres onsite (14,597 million litres last year).

Work is close to completion on the upgrade of the plant to Class A quality water (see Sewerage chapter page 22). The upgrade will enable recycled water to be used for a broad range of non-drinking applications including toilet flushing, watering sports grounds and irrigating vegetables.

Supply to Water Infrastructure Group

Melbourne Water supplied 3,089 million litres of Class C recycled water (1,666 million litres last year) to the Water Infrastructure Group. This was supplied for treatment to Class A recycled water for use in the Eastern Irrigation Scheme.

The Eastern Irrigation Scheme operates under the brand TopAq, a wholly owned subsidiary of Water Infrastructure Group. TopAq distributes recycled water to more than 80 customers for horticulture, open space irrigation and industrial processes.

TopAq also supplies South East Water with recycled water for dual pipe schemes in residential developments where the water is used for toilet flushing, garden watering, streetscape and open space irrigation.

Supply to South East Water

Melbourne Water supplied 719 million litres of Class C recycled water to South East Water via the South Eastern Outfall pipeline (478 million litres last year).

The pipeline transports recycled water from ETP and smaller South East Water treatment plants to Boags Rocks on the Mornington Peninsula.

South East Water customers along the pipeline use this recycled water for agricultural and horticultural activities, root crop irrigation, flower growing, drip irrigation of vineyards, and for watering golf courses and sports grounds. There are now 50 customers using recycled water from the South Eastern Outfall (53 last year).
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Sewerage
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Key Achievements

• Completed the Northern Sewerage Project six months ahead of schedule and under budget to reduce sewage overflows to Merri and Moonee Ponds creeks

• Completed the Melbourne Main Sewer Replacement on time and under budget

• Met all compliance obligations for effluent discharged from our sewage treatment plants

• Completed the Western Treatment Plant (WTP) wet weather capacity upgrade and used this during several rainfall events

• A major upgrade of the Eastern Treatment Plant (ETP), which will benefit the marine environment at Boags Rocks and increase opportunities for recycled water, is on track to be completed by the end of 2012

• Developed an alternative strategy to building an expensive new sewer

at Ringwood South to improve the health of Dandenong Creek

• Completed a Biosolids Strategy and identified commercial/research proposals for the beneficial use of biosolids

Disappointments

• Failed odour complaints target

• Delayed completion of new aeration tanks at ETP (to meet population-based load growth and support ammonia reduction) due to substantial defects requiring rectification

Challenges

• Managing a significant number of wet weather sewage overflows

• Rehabilitating the Eastern Drop Structure on Hobsons Bay Main Sewer in a "live" sewer environment to facilitate the construction of an air treatment facility

• Reviewing our Odour and Corrosion Strategy to account for issues including the impacts of reduced sewer flows on odour-causing compounds

• Ensuring we are positioned to take advantage of new markets for resources produced from sewage and biosolids
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Melbourne Water's Recycling Schemes

<transcriber's note> The map has been omitted. </transcriber's note>

Our sewerage system

Melbourne Water's sewerage system consists of:

• 402 kilometres of sewers
• 9 sewage pumping stations
• ETP at Bangholme and WTP at Werribee
• 9 air treatment facilities.

Melbourne Water treated a total of 320,067 million litres of sewage at ETP and WTP in 2011-12. This was similar to 2010-11 flows (325,308 million litres) due primarily to ongoing above average rainfall.

About 44% of this sewage was treated at ETP and 56% was treated at WTP.

Eastern Treatment Plant

A major upgrade of ETP in Melbourne's south-east is nearing completion. Built in 1975, the plant will be transformed into one of the most sophisticated large-scale sewage treatment facilities in the world.

The project will deliver significant environmental benefits by improving the quality of the treated effluent discharged at Boags Rocks and raising the standard of recycled water produced at the plant.

Once completed, the plant will treat more than 100 billion litres of wastewater to Class A recycled water standard each year using advanced tertiary treatment processes including biological media filtration, and disinfection using ozone, ultraviolet light and chlorine.

The project is being delivered by the Eastern Tertiary Alliance – a partnership between Baulderstone, UGL Infrastructure, Black & Veatch, KBR and Melbourne Water.

Commissioning will occur in the second half of 2012, and the project remains on track to be fully operational by the end of the year.

Powering the plant

The introduction of tertiary treatment at ETP requires additional power at the site to complement on-site generation from biogas harvesting. A second high-voltage feeder was constructed and commissioned in 2011 to supply this power. The second feeder also provides an important backup to ensure that critical plant operations can continue if the supply from one feeder is lost.

Treating waste solids and renewable energy

Suspended solids in raw sewage entering ETP are allowed to settle in large tanks to form a layer of primary sludge in a process called sedimentation. The sewage then undergoes secondary treatment involving a biological process to break down organic material and remove nutrients. Waste-activated sludge is generated from this process.
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The primary sludge and the thickened waste-activated sludge are pumped to eight large tanks (8 million litres each) called digesters where around 45% of the solids are converted into biogas (predominantly methane). The biogas is used on site to generate renewable energy.

Increases in Melbourne's population have resulted in higher levels of solids requiring treatment in the digesters and a need for increased digestion capacity. A primary sludge thickening facility was commissioned in late 2011 which has freed up volume in the digesters equivalent to an additional two digesters.

Aeration tank works

A contract was awarded for the construction of four additional aeration tanks in February 2007 to support the successful conversion of existing aeration tanks to an ammonia reduction process, and provide for ongoing population-based load growth to ETP.

A number of defects relating to the construction of the concrete aeration tanks are now evident. The rectification of these defects has caused delays to the project. Construction of the four additional aeration tanks was due to be completed by January 2009. The project is now scheduled for completion by September 2013. The increased costs and time delays are being addressed with the project manager, designer and constructor.

Reliability program

A targeted reliability program is underway at ETP. This program identifies repetitive failures with mechanical and electrical equipment and then undertakes root cause analysis. The root cause analysis provides an action plan that reduces future breakdowns. This program reduces maintenance costs and ensures the plant's ongoing reliability.

Western Treatment Plant

Wet weather capacity upgrade

Major sewage channel duplication work to accommodate increases in peak sewage flows following significant rainfall events was completed at WTP in late 2011.

The increased sewage inflow capacity has been used on several occasions since completion, with peak flows reaching 1,773 million litres a day.

The wet weather treatment capacity has increased to 2,500 million litres a day.

Renewable energy

Lagoon covers are being progressively replaced at WTP to capture more biogas for the generation of renewable energy and to help reduce odour. The 115 East Lagoon cover reached the end of its service life and was removed in early 2012. This work also included dredging of a significant amount of surface sludge that had accumulated under the covers.

Works to replace and double the existing area covered across the 55 East Lagoon have started with two segments of the new cover installed. The new cover will be four times the size of the MCG and is expected to be completed in 2013. It forms part of an overall plan to increase biogas capture and production of renewable energy at the plant.

These works will enable the plant to be nearly self-sufficient in its power needs and to export any excess electricity to other Melbourne Water sites, reducing system-wide power costs and greenhouse gas emissions.

Caption: A major upgrade of ETP in Melbourne's south-east is nearing completion. Built in 1975, the plant will be transformed into one of the most sophisticated large-scale sewage treatment facilities in the world.
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Recycled water pump station and pipeline

Construction of a new recycled water pump station and pipeline was completed in 2012. The project improves reliability in the delivery of both Class A and Class C recycled water to customers.

Transfer system

Sewerage transfer capacity has been improved by the recently completed Melbourne Main Sewer Replacement and the Northern Sewerage Project which will help reduce sewage spills into waterways during wet weather.

Melbourne Main Sewer Replacement

The replacement of a section of a century-old sewer main from Port Melbourne to Docklands was completed in June 2012, on time and under budget.

Marking the culmination of four years of tunnelling and construction, the new sewer main replaces a 2.3 kilometre section of Melbourne's original brick-lined sewer built in the 1890s. The new Melbourne Main Sewer will triple sewerage capacity and cater for inner-city growth for the next century.

A 100-metre long boring machine was used to construct the tunnel under the CBD and build the new main up to 12 metres underground. A major component of the project was a 140 metre pipeline under the Yarra River that took specialist divers and engineers two years to build.

An additional 1.9 kilometres of smaller branch and reticulation sewers were also constructed, connecting Port Melbourne residents into the new system.

Northern Sewerage Project

The Northern Sewerage Project was completed in November 2011, six months ahead of schedule and under budget.

The project involved the construction of 12.5 kilometres of new sewer tunnels in Melbourne's densely-populated northern suburbs. Commencing in August 2007, works took place 24 hours a day, six days per week.

Delivered jointly by Melbourne Water (Stage one) and Yarra Valley Water (Stage two), the new sewers provide additional capacity for Melbourne's fast-growing northern suburbs including Epping and Craigieburn and will protect the downstream health of the Yarra River and Port Phillip Bay from sewer overflows following rainfall events.

The 8 kilometre long deep-tunnelled sewer on Stage one connects into the existing sewerage system near the Merri Creek at Coburg and the Moonee Ponds Creek in Pascoe Vale.

The 4.5 kilometre long, deep-tunnelled sewer on Stage two runs from Carr Street, Coburg North to L.E. Cotchin Reserve in Reservoir, receiving sewage flows from the existing sewerage system in Fawkner.

Ringwood Sewer Strategy to improve Dandenong Creek

An alternative strategy is being implemented for the Ringwood South Sewer site at Dandenong Creek to provide a more cost-effective approach for improving the local environment and to avoid building an expensive new sewer.

Given that a new sewer would cost an estimated $100M, other options to improve the overall health of Dandenong Creek were examined.

An ecological health study conducted in consultation with EPA Victoria, South East Water and Yarra Valley Water revealed wet weather sewage overflows did not have a significant impact on the creek's health but other sources of pollution, such as runoff from industrial areas, did have an impact. These pollutants will be the focus of a program to improve the health of the waterway.

Several environmental improvements were also identified to offset any impacts on the creek of further overflows from the sewer system during high rainfall events.

Up to $12M has been set aside for capital works to deliver pollution abatement and amenity and ecology improvements for Dandenong Creek as part of the first stage of the strategy.

The project has been formalised in a Memorandum of Understanding between EPA Victoria and Melbourne Water and will result in a better financial and environmental outcome than the traditional "big sewer" approach.

Large pump assessments

Melbourne Water relies on large pumps to successfully transfer sewage and water around its extensive distribution network.

Due to the critical nature of sewerage system pumps at Hoppers Crossing, Brooklyn and ETP, and water pumps at Yering Gorge, a condition assessment strategy was implemented to maximise the life of the assets.

It was concluded these assets are robust and can have an extremely long operational life with minimal changes to existing maintenance regimes. Nominal operating life of the pumps, based on empirical evidence drawn from analysis of other similar large assets, was 100 years. A $5.5M capital investment is expected to be required to address renewals over a period of 10 years across all four sites.

Managing corrosion and odour

Melbourne Water received 14 odour complaints related to the sewerage transfer system this year. This was two less than in 2010–11, but more than our target of 10.

These odour complaints were due to a range of reasons, predominantly manhole covers being dislodged by traffic or grass cutting activities as well as normal discharge of sewer gases from vent stacks or ventilation associated with works being undertaken in the sewer network.

An enhanced proactive maintenance program and implementation of improvement actions from our Odour and Corrosion Strategy will reduce the likelihood of future odour complaints.

Works to address sewer corrosion and odour from the Eastern Drop Structure (EDS) manhole on the Hobsons Bay Main Sewer are continuing. The EDS allows sewage from the city fringe and bayside areas to drop down and flow beneath the Yarra River. The EDS handles about 175 million litres of sewage a day and is the main crossing point for sewage on the way to WTP.

To address odour complaints from neighbouring development, the ventilation fan used to extract foul air from the EDS was turned off for 12 hours a day in 2002. This reduction in ventilation resulted in significant corrosion impacts within the drop structure.
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From 2007, projects have been progressively implemented to rehabilitate the EDS. These works, on a live sewer, are very challenging and have to be undertaken in stages to ensure they are completed safely.

About $8M has been spent on restoring the EDS to date. Works are nearing completion to remove corroded elements, install an overflow weir to reduce the release of corrosive gases, and fit an access platform for penstock maintenance. Other planned works include provision of an Air Treatment Facility at an estimated cost of $20M, followed by rehabilitation of other civil structures within the EDS, costing about $3M.

Managing biosolids

Melbourne Water updated its Biosolids Strategy in 2011-12. The strategy recommends identifying beneficial uses for biosolids from ETP given the significant impacts of continued stockpiling at that site.

Two private sector proponents have been identified as potential beneficial users of biosolids from ETP. These proponents will commence feasibility studies in early 2012-13. Melbourne Water aims to achieve annual beneficial use of 28,000 dry tonnes of biosolids (approximately 100% of ETP annual production) by 2018.

The strategy also recommends continued research into the impacts of stockpiling at WTP and continued support for emerging biosolids beneficial use technologies.

Biosolids reuse target

Melbourne Water has a target to reuse 90,000 tonnes of "clay rich" biosolids from ETP by 2013. Due to the clay composition of these biosolids, they are particularly suited for use as a structural fill material.

Although there was no reuse of these biosolids in 2011-12, Melbourne Water is continuing to work with Victorian Government agencies and private sector construction companies to identify opportunities for the use of this material.

Sewer mining

In 2009, the Melbourne Metropolitan Sewerage Review identified the need for a modelling tool capable of analysing the system-wide effects (energy consumption, greenhouse gas emissions, nutrient and water flows) of sewer mining and localised sewage treatment.

Since 2009, Melbourne Water has updated its hydraulic model to include recent urban growth and sewage quality analysis.

During 2011-12, these initiatives were consolidated into the Strategic Sewerage Assessment Tool. This tool will be used to support the development of integrated water cycle strategies in Melbourne.

Caption: The replacement of a section of a century-old sewer main from Port Melbourne to Docklands was completed in June 2012, on time and under budget.
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Key Achievements

• Met a target for total community satisfaction with waterways

• Made good progress on developing Flood Management Plans with local councils

• Released a significant volume of water specifically to benefit the environmental health of the Yarra River

• Yarra River was runner-up in the prestigious International River Prize

• Completed construction of a new weir at Dights Falls on the Yarra River, despite wet weather delays

• Fully met service standards set out in our Customer Charter for Waterway Diversion Services for the second consecutive year

• Completed internal and external consultation on drafts of the Healthy Waterways and Stormwater strategies

• Extended our stakeholder network on sustainable stormwater management to include water retailers and EPA Victoria - partnerships that will deliver more opportunities for integrated stormwater management with enhanced liveability outcomes

• Implemented a new approach to stormwater quality funding (Living Rivers) that improves local government capacity to deliver stormwater quality treatments that consider whole-of-water-cycle functions and liveability outcomes

• Worked with leading research institutes to trial new pollution tracking and catchment management technologies

Disappointments

• A target of reducing known intolerable food risks by 10% by 2013 will only be partially achieved

• Progress has been slower than anticipated on completing the Bunyip Main Drain Rehabilitation project

Challenges

• Integrating food management with broader stormwater quality and quantity management and overall integrated water management

• Developing systems and managing expectations about water quality during and after large rainfall events

• Meeting the growing needs of urban development in a way that considers waterways, regional drainage and floodplain management
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Waterways and Drainage Systems

<transcriber's note> The map has been omitted. </transcriber's note>

Our waterways and drainage system

Melbourne Water is the caretaker of river health in the Port Phillip and Westernport region. In this role, we manage:

• 8,400 kilometres of rivers and creeks

• 1,473 kilometres of drains

• 344 constructed waterway treatment systems and wetlands

• 300 monitoring stations on waterways and drains

• 157 urban lakes.

Improving river health

Melbourne Water works with many organisations, groups and individuals that look after waterways, and the plants and animals that depend on a healthy river environment. They include local councils, landowners, community groups, developers, farmers, government agencies and research institutions.

Implementing the current Regional River Health Strategy

Melbourne Water invested almost $26.2M in streamside works this year to protect and improve river health. These works involved removing and managing weeds across 1,310 kilometres, revegetating 281 kilometres of land along waterways and stabilising eight sites subject to erosion.

Our River Health Incentives Program provides funds and support for landowners and managers to improve the health of land adjoining waterways. We provided 964 grants this year valued at $4.19M (compared to 872 grants valued at $3.61M in 2010-11).

Under our Stream Frontage Management Program, we provided $2.56M to support a record 725 projects on private property, constructing 107 kilometres of fencing along waterways to exclude livestock and planting more than 246,000 native seedlings.

We also funded 125 Community Grant waterway management projects totalling $590,000 and supported public land managers through 114 Corridors of Green projects totalling $969,000.

Healthy Waterways Strategy

Work is progressing on a crucial new strategy to help maintain and manage 8,400 kilometres of rivers and creeks throughout greater Melbourne.

Melbourne Water• s new Healthy Waterways Strategy (2013-18) will be used as a guide to protect the environmental health of our waterways and the amenity they provide, making Melbourne a better place to live. Due to the high community value placed on waterways as places for recreation, relaxation and enjoyment, the strategy will include specific targets to improve these social values.

The Healthy Waterways Strategy will ensure funds are directed to protecting and enhancing high value areas and maintaining appropriate levels of service in line with customer expectations.

Melbourne Water consulted extensively with interested landowners, community groups, government agencies and local councils when developing the strategy to ensure broad customer and stakeholder support.
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Melbourne Water's new Healthy Waterways Strategy (2013-18) will be used as a guide to protect the environmental health of our waterways and the amenity they provide, making Melbourne a better place to live.

Water quality

Melbourne Water is working to improve the health of waterways by developing sustainable stormwater management practices in collaboration with our stakeholders.

Now in final draft form, our Stormwater Strategy not only outlines the impacts of stormwater but looks at potential opportunities for stormwater harvesting and provides a framework to plan for projects that will achieve desired outcomes.

"Living Rivers" is a Melbourne Water program that operates in partnership with 38 local councils to identify needs and deliver sustainable stormwater management outcomes. Over the past 12 months, Living Rivers has provided $4.56M in project support to local government for strategic and structural projects aimed at building capacity to deliver sustainable stormwater management.

Projects funded through Living Rivers address key elements of total water cycle management including improved stormwater quality, improved waterway health, and liveability. Examples of projects include streetscape works within the Little Stringybark Creek catchment (with Yarra Ranges Shire Council); Kalparrin Gardens, Chelsworth Park and Dewinton Reserve stormwater harvesting projects (with Banyule City Council); Edinburgh Gardens raingarden and harvesting project (with City of Yarra); and development of stormwater implementation targets and integrated water management strategies for the cities of Boroondara, Nillumbik, Yarra Ranges Shire, Brimbank, Casey, and Frankston.

Wallan wetland

Work is now complete on a $1.5M wetland at Wallan Community Park.

The result of more than four years of consultation and planning with Mitchell Shire Council and the local community, the 7,000 square metre wetland will help improve the health of Wallan Creek by reducing the amount of nitrogen and other pollutants being carried in stormwater. The project is expected to prevent about 180 kilograms of nitrogen and 44 kilograms of phosphorous from entering Wallan Creek every year.

More than 35,000 aquatic plants and shrubs were planted in the wetland to capture and treat pollution and help create habitat for native fish and wildlife.

Threatened Catchments Program

The Threatened Catchments Program is trialling a number of measures to mitigate the hydrological impacts of stormwater. Recent highlights include:

• Launch of the "Tanks for Helping Program", in partnership with South East Water and Knox City Council, introducing best practice stormwater management at more than 200 homes in the Dobsons Creek Catchment in Olinda

• Industry-leading sediment control measures on two unsealed roads (Old Coach Road and Farnsdons Road) in the Yarra Ranges to protect the headwaters of Olinda Creek.

A challenge for the Threatened Catchments Program is to successfully work with developers to achieve genuine water sensitive development without policy and regulatory backing.

Tackling pollution at the source

Melbourne Water's "Hot Spot program" seeks to address eight chronic pollution hot spots (faecal or toxicant) within the Westernport and Port Phillip catchments.

The program focuses on problems at the source through a combination of education, behaviour change and enforcement activities (in contrast to its inception as a capital works program). This year's highlights include:

• Initiation of a hot spot tracking program with the Centre for Aquatic Pollution Identification and Management (CAPIM) to investigate the sources of pollution to five waterways

• Completion of a pilot project in partnership with the cities of Yarra and Melbourne, City West Water and EPA Victoria, that targeted food businesses on Victoria Street, Richmond and parts of Melbourne's CBD "Hot Spot program".

A challenge for the "Hot Spot program" is ensuring that appropriate enforcement occurs when polluters are identified and they fail to change their behaviour.

Melbourne Water has established a partnership with EPA Victoria to provide technical assistance to the review of the Best Practice Environmental Guidelines for Stormwater to ensure that future stormwater management projects reflect best practice. A challenge for this project will be ensuring that appropriate standards are adopted.

Dights Falls project

Works to build a new weir at Dights Falls on the Yarra River in Abbotsford are complete, with a new fishway also nearing completion.

The project started in late 2010 to replace an old weir that was at the end of its useful life and acted as a barrier to fish migration.

In 2011, Dights Falls experienced some of its highest flows in 50 years, which caused construction to stop for eight months. Works resumed in January 2012 and the project team made significant progress. Water has now started flowing over the new weir, returning the Yarra upstream to its normal river level conditions.

Design of the new weir replicates the historic structure of the original weir dating to early days of European settlement. One of the most significant conservation projects undertaken by Melbourne Water, we worked closely with Heritage Victoria, the Wurundjeri people, the cities of Yarra and Boroondara, river users and environment groups to preserve the heritage of the site.

The new fishway is on track to be completed by spring 2012 and will boost native migratory fish numbers and species diversity.

Yarra River weed control

Melbourne Water has undertaken $2M of works to control more than 60 types of weed along a 20 kilometre stretch of the Yarra River between Plenty River in Templestowe and Dights Falls in Abbotsford.

Controlling weeds will allow native gum trees, wattles and bottlebrush to regenerate more successfully, helping protect and improve significant areas of vegetation. In time, the project will improve water quality and increase the numbers of native fish, platypus and birds.

Melbourne Water has also carved 30 nesting hollows into condemned trees along the Yarra River to provide a safe haven for birds, such as Crimson Rosellas and Red-rumped Parrots, and Ringtail and Brushtail possums. The hollows will also benefit Australia's largest owl species, the Powerful Owl.
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Investing in research

During 2011-12, Melbourne Water invested more than $1.5M on research to foster strategic decision-making in waterway management as well as increase the effectiveness and efficiency of our activities.

Areas of research include urban stormwater harvesting and treatment, development of water resource modelling and decision support tools, control of aquatic and riparian weeds, aquatic ecotoxicology and pollution management, wildlife conservation, climate change impacts on waterways, functioning of estuaries and environmental flows.

One of the highlights of the year was the release of the Western Port Environment Science Review and the commencement of an integrated environment research program to inform strategic management of Western Port Bay.

Environmental flows

The Victorian Environmental Water Holder (the Water Holder) was established on 1 July 2011 to oversee the planning and delivery of Environmental Entitlements across the state.

The Water Holder adds transparency to decision-making around environmental water delivery through the issuing of an annual Seasonal Watering Plan.

The Water Holder holds three entitlements in the Port Phillip and Westernport region: the Yarra Entitlement; the Tarago and Bunyip Entitlement; and the Werribee Entitlement. Melbourne Water is responsible for managing these entitlements on behalf of the Water Holder.

Yarra environmental flows

The Yarra River has long supplied the majority of Melbourne's drinking water and the city's reliance on the river increased during the drought, which meant less water for the environment.

In September 2011, Melbourne Water released the first significant volume of water from the Upper Yarra Reservoir specifically targeted to benefit the environment. Flows of up to 200 million litres per day were released into the river below the Upper Yarra Reservoir – a significant increase from the regular daily flow of 10 million litres per day.

Monitoring showed this release achieved its objectives of flushing out sediment that had accumulated in the stream bed since the reservoir's construction, improving habitat for fish and macroinvertebrates, and improving the condition of streamside vegetation. A further release of water was made over the warmer summer months to improve water quality in the lower Yarra when natural streamflows decline and river temperatures increase.

More environmental flows are planned for the next 12 months to build on these improvements in the river's health. Environmental flows will also greatly improve the outlook for vulnerable and important native animals such as Macquarie perch and platypus by providing habitat, increasing food sources (water bugs) and encouraging migration and breeding.

Waterway diversions

Melbourne Water manages about 1,900 licensed waterway diverters that extract water from the Yarra River, Maribyrnong River, Stony Creek, Kororoit Creek, Laverton Creek and Skeleton Creek catchments. Water is used mainly for agricultural, industrial, commercial, domestic and stock purposes.

Wetter than average weather conditions prevailed for most of the year resulting in lower water demands and good flows in major waterway catchments. Consequently, there were only limited periods of pumping restrictions put in place on the Yarra River and similarly limited bans and restrictions applied to the major sub-catchments. Compliance issues were largely confined to following up with dam owners on dam safety issues.

Melbourne Water has worked hard to improve its customer focus throughout 2011-12, carrying out more than 300 programmed site visits to diversion customers on top of our normal meter reading and unprogrammed visits.

The Diversions Management Advisory Committee was reformed and expanded to include additional licence holder input and we met our Keilor Diverters Advisory Group in February to discuss both water and payment options for users in the Keilor area, which has declined markedly as a farming area since the recent drought.

Stormwater licensing

Although demand has waned slightly as a result of wetter weather conditions, several new stormwater harvesting schemes were licensed during 2011-12 and a number of other schemes are proposed across urban areas.

As of June 2012, we had issued 17 storm-water licenses for a total of 720 million litres and are working with a number of councils – including Bayside, Banyule, Casey, Maribyrnong and Brimbank – on proposals within their areas to irrigate sporting grounds and public open spaces. These new schemes will be finalised over the coming months as proponents that have received Federal funding for their schemes only have until June 2013 to build them.

In 2011-12, we also developed new guidelines for stormwater harvesting on Melbourne Water drainage assets. These guidelines help industry and other proponents to understand Melbourne Water's requirements for the design, construction and maintenance of diversion structures for harvesting stormwater.

Service standards

Melbourne Water met all of the service standards set out in its Customer Charter for Diversion Services for the second successive year. The number of applications received in total was similar to last year however we managed to improve performance, with 98.6% of applications determined within the specified time limits.

Flood management

As part of implementing key objectives of the Flood Management and Drainage Strategy, Melbourne Water has continued to collaborate with local councils and the Victorian State Emergency Service on a program of 38 local Flood Management Plans by 2013. This has involved work with 30 councils to date, including 12 in 2011-12.

Following on from this work, the Victorian State Emergency Service has continued to engage local councils on the development or updating of local Flood Emergency Plans along with the delivery of FloodSafe and StormSafe community education and awareness programs for residents in known food locations.

Melbourne Water continued to make good progress on the Frankston Drainage Improvement project, the largest and most complex food mitigation project we have ever undertaken.

The three-stage project is a $73M investment to reduce the risk of flooding in Frankston's central activity district and protect significant public and private infrastructure. Stages one and two are now complete, with stage three underway and scheduled for completion by June 2013.
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Flood risk target

Delays in obtaining stakeholder approvals will mean the target of reducing known intolerable flood risks by 10% by 2013 will only be partially achieved.

Although good progress has been made as a result of structural works in Frankston (a 7.3% reduction once complete), there are no other major structural works underway to deliver the remaining 2.7% of the 10% target.

A number of small-scale projects are nearing completion, or will be completed by 2013, and non-structural works could make some contribution but they will not make up the full margin.

Bunyip Main Drain

Progress has been slower than anticipated on completing the Bunyip Main Drain Rehabilitation project between the Princes Highway and Cora Lynn. The upgrade is designed to increase food protection for local properties, roads and bridges and reduce the risk of embankment and levee failure in the drain.

The program of works started in 2001 and has included levee reconstruction, bed stabilisation, bank structural rehabilitation, willow and weed management, and revegetation.

The final stage of the works from 11 Mile Road to 13 Mile Road on the southern bank of the Bunyip Main Drain will complete the major components of the rehabilitation program and increase the capacity of the drain.

However, work on this final stage is yet to commence. We have been working through complex State and Federal approvals to ensure appropriate mitigation and controls are in place for local flora and fauna, particularly for the endangered Southern Brown Bandicoot. Works are anticipated to start in late 2012.

Retarding Basins Strategy

Melbourne Water manages more than 200 food retarding basins across its catchment areas that reduce food risks to people and property.

These retarding basins are managed in accordance with the Statement of Obligations (which is an instrument of the Water Act 1989 issued by the Victorian Minister for Water) and with regard to guidelines from the Australian National Committee on Large Dams.

Melbourne Water has developed a strategy to ensure its retarding basins are managed in line with the Statement of Obligations. During the year, we completed spillway capacity assessments on 24 retarding basins while another eight retarding basin assessments are underway.

Guiding urban growth Development planning

Melbourne Water received $66M in developer contributions in 2011-12 ($52.8M in 2010-11).

These contributions are paid to Melbourne Water to fund infrastructure and water quality projects identified in development services schemes, and are required to provide a safe level of food protection in developing areas and protect the health of waterways.

It was another big year for capital expenditure in developer works, with $76M spent on more than 200 projects ($68.8M for 156 projects in 2010-11).

Developers constructed an additional $21M of Melbourne Water assets, bringing the total asset value for the year to $97M.

We approved and implemented 19 new development services schemes to guide urban development and planning in urban growth areas to the north, west and south-east of Melbourne.

A major focus for the year was our work with the Growth Areas Authority, local councils, water retailers and the land development industry to ensure infrastructure is in place in Melbourne's growth areas to provide food protection, manage stormwater runoff, protect waterways, and facilitate water sensitive urban design and integrated water management.

Caption: Melbourne Water met all of the service standards set out in its Customer Charter for Diversion Services for the second successive year.
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Corporate
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Environmental stewardship

Protect the natural environment and ensure resource availability for future generations

Relationships

To be valued by our customers and stakeholders, and a business of choice for our partners

Financial sustainability

Maintain financial viability and increase business value

Organisational capability

Strengthen the capability of the organisation to deliver better customer and community outcomes

<pp> 34

Corporate
Environmental stewardship

Strategic Goals

Our Aim

Protect the natural environment and ensure resource availability for future generations.

We will do this by:

• Meeting environmental obligations and minimising environmental impacts

• Conserving biodiversity

• Responding to climate change and variability through mitigation measures

• Using natural resources efficiently

• Minimising, recycling and reusing wastes

• Preserving and promoting cultural heritage

• Encouraging our suppliers and partners to apply sustainable business practices.
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Key Achievements

• Won the United Nations Association of Australia (UNAA) World Environment Day Award for "Leadership in Sustainability"
• Achieved our renewable energy target

• Succeeded in reducing our greenhouse gas emissions

• Completed a Waste to Landfill Strategy

• Consolidated most of our office-based operations into one of the most sustainable and efficient buildings of its kind in Australia

• Met our targets for office water, energy and paper use and waste to landfill

Disappointments

• Did not progress investigations into greenhouse gas emissions at our sewage treatment plants as rapidly as anticipated

• Did not progress investigations into a replacement Greenhouse and Energy Data Management System as quickly as anticipated

Challenges

• Maximising value from the sale of Renewable Energy Certificates and the purchase of offsets to meet our 2018 greenhouse target

• Continuing to improve system methodologies to more accurately estimate emissions from our sewage treatment plants. Undertake measurement of emissions for the plants to confirm these estimates

• Minimising waste volumes and converting waste to valuable resources

• Protecting Aboriginal heritage as we deliver on-the-ground projects

• Improving biodiversity and ensuring it continues to be protected and conserved on land and waterways managed by Melbourne Water
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Our commitment

Melbourne Water is committed to protecting and conserving natural assets and using natural resources sustainably. Our Environment Policy specifies actions and outcomes to achieve maximum net environmental benefits to society and promotes sustainable resource management and use.

We have an Environmental Management System certified to the International Standard ISO 14001, which establishes management requirements to protect the environment, prevent pollution and improve environmental performance.

We also use our Stakeholder, Environment and Public Health Assessment process and Triple Bottom Line Guidelines to help assess and plan for potential environmental impacts from our activities while balancing community benefits and meeting efficiency requirements for public spending.

Managing climate change and variability challenges

A variable and changing climate could have a significant impact on the capacity of Melbourne Water to deliver its services effectively. We are implementing several initiatives to ensure we are well placed to adapt and respond to these risks (refer to page 13 for more information on adaptation initiatives).

Due to the potential impact of climate change on our business, Melbourne Water is committed to reducing its contribution to total greenhouse gas emissions. Mitigation measures aim to avoid emissions, improve energy and resource efficiency, reuse waste and substitute traditional sources of energy with cheaper energy generated on site.

Energy and greenhouse gas management

To minimise the potential impacts of climate change on our business and on the people of Victoria, Melbourne Water has introduced a number of mitigation strategies.

As a business we have committed to actively managing our own contribution to greenhouse gas emissions by establishing a target to reduce net greenhouse gas emissions to zero by 2018 and increasing the use of renewable energy.

We completed a comprehensive Greenhouse and Renewable Energy Strategy in 2008-09 to identify how our targets could be met most efficiently. Most of the actions in this strategy have now been achieved and a new strategy is being developed. The new strategy will consider the issues raised by the Carbon Pricing Scheme, the purchase of emission permits and offsets and methods to further reduce greenhouse gas emissions.

Our performance

Melbourne Water uses significant amounts of energy to deliver water and sewerage services to its customers and the community. We are among the top 15 electricity users in Victoria and the top 150 in Australia.

In 2011-12, we used 1.390 million gigajoules of energy (compared to 1.602 million gigajoules in 2010-11) and emitted total net greenhouse gas emissions including:

• Water treatment and pumping

64,501 tCO2e

• Wastewater treatment 342,042 tCO2e

• Transport 3,602 tCO2e

• Other energy use (including offices) 11,869 tCO2e

• Offsets purchased 60,726 tCO2e

Melbourne Water spent $22.9M this year on energy compared with $23.1M in 2010-11.

Energy by Use 2011-12

Minor Plant Fuels 6%

Vehicle Fuels 3%

Water 14%

Sewerage 76%
Other 1%

Energy by Source 2011-12

Minor Plant Fuels 5.8%

Natural Gas 7.1%

Generated Electricity 16.6%

Vehicle Fuels 3.5%

WTP Export 0.7%

Imported Electricity 38.0%

Hydro Renewable Generated 3.2%

Shaft Diesel 0.3%

Hydro Recovered Generated 0.6%
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Melbourne Water achieved a 50.2% reduction in greenhouse gas emissions this year compared with 2000-01 emissions, exceeding the 42% target.

Melbourne Water water supply system with mini hydro electric stations

<transcriber's note> The map has been omitted. </transcriber's note>

Greenhouse gas emissions

Melbourne Water achieved a 50.2% reduction in greenhouse gas emissions this year compared with 2000-01 emissions, exceeding the 42% target.

Emissions during the year totalled 361,288 tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent. This included renewable energy certificates purchased to achieve the renewable energy target, using our own renewable energy, and offsetting emissions from office energy use (3,783 tCO2e), vehicle fuels (3,372 tCO2e) and air travel (230 tCO2e) by employees.

National Greenhouse and Energy Reporting System

We report to the Federal Clean Energy Regulator under the National Greenhouse and Energy Reporting System (NGERS). Under NGERS methodologies, Melbourne Water emitted 420,000 tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent in 2009-10 and 451,035 tonnes in 2010-11. Our preliminary estimation of 2011-12 emissions is 422,015 tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent.

Discussions with the Department of Climate Change, through the Water Services Association of Australia, continued this year to support development of system methodologies that more accurately represent emissions from our sewage treatment plants.

Securing on-site energy sources

Melbourne Water operates biogas-fuelled generation facilities at its Eastern and Western Treatment Plants (ETP and WTP). During 2011-12, the ETP power station generated 134,645 gigajoules of electricity, 39% of ETP's need. The WTP power station (owned and operated by AGL) generated 233,710 gigajoules of electricity, 84% of WTP's need, including 9,850 gigajoules exported to the grid.

Our use and generation of renewable energy was 676,899 gigajoules in 2011-12 (763,454 gigajoules in 2010-11). The amount of renewable energy we used and generated as a proportion of total energy was 48.5%.

However, we had to surrender 43,709 renewable energy certificates to achieve our target of 60% of renewable energy used or exported as a percentage of total energy used.

Since commissioning six mini hydro-electricity plants at our reservoirs, Melbourne Water has investigated sites for additional mini-hydros and identified five suitable sites. These projects are in their design phase.

Energy efficiency studies

Melbourne Water submitted its fourth public report under the Federal Government's Energy Efficiency Opportunities program, which requires large energy-using businesses to conduct energy efficiency studies to identify and evaluate energy saving opportunities.

This year's report examined implementation of efficiency improvements at WTP, ETP and the Winneke Treatment Plant. Completed in December 2011, the report found the potential cost savings associated with implementing several identified opportunities at the three plants was $800,000 per year. Projects with total savings of $350,000 have been implemented to date.
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The opportunities mentioned in the report include upgrading blowers and making operational changes in the secondary treatment process, upgrading and optimising pumps, and changing valve pressure settings associated with the sewerage treatment plant digesters.

At the end of 2011-12, more than 96% of Melbourne Water's electricity use had been audited. Melbourne Water is currently developing its second energy efficiency strategy, the Energy Productivity Strategy.

Environmental Resource Efficiency Plans

Melbourne Water has three sites that are required to participate in EPA Victoria's Environmental Resource Efficiency Plans program – Winneke Treatment Plant, ETP and WTP.

Annual progress on work done to implement these plans is reported to the EPA, as required. The actions being implemented are intended to reduce energy and water use and waste, with most actions having greater than the mandated three-year payback period requirement.

Hoppers Crossing Pumping Station was granted an exemption from the program because recycled water has largely replaced the use of drinking water for pump cooling.

Corporate Licence

Melbourne Water signed up for a Corporate Licence with EPA Victoria in January 2012. This combined the two discharge licences for ETP and WTP into a single licence and added a sustainability commitment. The benefits from having a Corporate Licence include:

• Improved clarity on broader environmental issues

• Inclusion into a regulatory framework of those environmental issues that are encouraged by EPA Victoria but not prescribed

• More consistent discharge standards

• Improved relationship with EPA Victoria

• Additional flexibility and reduced red tape.

The Accredited Licence status for WTP has been retained in the conversion process.

Sustainability in our workplace

Leader in sustainability

Melbourne Water won a prestigious national sustainability award, the United Nations Association of Australia (UNAA) World Environment Day Award for "Leadership in Sustainability".

The award recognised Melbourne Water's coordinated approach to embedding sustainability across the organisation and highlighted our achievements relating to energy and greenhouse gas reduction, renewable energy production, an industry-first sustainable feet policy, award-winning sustainable procurement practice, office sustainability programs and many more initiatives.

Meeting our office sustainability targets

Melbourne Water met all of its sustainability targets in 2011-12 for water, energy, paper and waste to landfill. We have key performance indicators to measure office-based sustainability performance.

Melbourne Water promotes sustainability through upgrades of offices (Sustainable Sites) and behavioural change by employees (OfficeSmart).

OfficeSmart members are represented, and encourage sustainable behaviours, at all major Melbourne Water sites including the Docklands office, ETP, Brooklyn, Winneke Treatment Plant, WTP and Tarago Reservoir.

Office energy

Energy use at Melbourne Water's former East Melbourne offices (100 Wellington Parade and level 6 at 126 Wellington Parade) decreased to 1,583.4 kilowatt hours in 2011-12 (1,704.5 kilowatt hours in 2010-11). We recorded 3.3 megawatt hours (MWh) per full-time employee (FTE) per year compared to a target of 4.2 MWh/FTE/year.*2

Our employees were encouraged to reduce their office energy use through a series of awareness campaigns and energy consumption was further reduced at the East Melbourne offices when the IT data centre was relocated to a new site.

Melbourne Water's new office in Docklands is designed and built to be more energy efficient and will help us continue to reduce our energy use.

Offsetting corporate emissions

We offset our emissions related to vehicles, office electricity use and employee air travel. In 2011-12, this amounted to about 7,385 tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent.

Paper

Paper use at Melbourne Water has dropped, with 7.7 reams/FTE/year in 2011-12 against a target of 9.6 reams/ FTE/year (compared with 8.1 reams/FTE/ year in 2010-11)*3. Since 2006-07, there has been a 27.7% reduction in annual office paper use per FTE. In 2011-12, Melbourne Water continued to ensure all of its office copy paper was 100% recycled and made from post-consumer-waste.

Waste to landfill

Office waste to landfill targets were met in 2011-12. They were 33.1% below our baseline data, measured in 2006-07. We recorded 13.4 kilograms/FTE/year compared with our target of 17.2 kilograms/FTE/year and 11.7 kilograms/FTE/year in 2010-11.

Office waste was measured at the following locations: 100 Wellington Parade, 126 Wellington Parade (levels 2, 4, 6), Western Treatment Plant, Eastern Treatment Plant, Brooklyn, South Eastern Regional Office and Winneke.

Recycling and compost facilities are widely available at all large Melbourne Water sites and all sites with more than 10 FTEs have "commingle" recycling and compost/organics recycling. There are also recycling collection stations at the five largest sites for difficult to recycle items such as batteries, light globes, CDs, DVDs and corks, helping to further reduce our waste to landfill.

Sustainable procurement

In June 2012, Melbourne Water engaged a new stationery supplier to provide environmentally preferred and cost-effective products, including many with a high recycled content. About half of the commonly used stationery in our offices is now sustainable, which is more than double the percentage previously purchased.
*2 Actual office energy use for June 2012 was omitted from the annual result calculations and an averaged amount for June was added based on the monthly average from the previous 11 months. This was due to the staged, 3-week head office move in June 2012. Incorporating actual June figures for the East Melbourne offices would have led to lower actual energy use than the reported amount.

*3 Actual office paper use for June 2012 was omitted from the annual result calculations and an averaged amount for June was added based on the monthly average from the previous 11 months. This was due to the staged, 3-week head office move in June 2012, during which time the paper use results did not reflect actual use. Paper use data is collected from office paper purchased at Melbourne Water's offices at the following locations: 100 Wellington Parade, 126 Wellington Parade, 112 Wellington Parade, Eastern Treatment Plant, Western Treatment Plant, Brooklyn, Healesville, Winneke, Tarago and Sunbury.
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Sustainable buildings

Melbourne Water has consolidated most of its office-based operations into one of the most sustainable and efficient buildings of its kind in Australia.

This major relocation project took place in June 2012 and involved moving nearly 750 staff from four offices in East Melbourne to a newly-constructed 6 Star Green Star building (as designed) at 990 La Trobe Street, Docklands. The consolidation of operations will enable increased sustainability through less water and energy use.

The new building is expected to enhance business efficiency by enabling better collaboration between various business units which were previously spread across several locations. Greater business efficiency has also been achieved by taking advantage of competitive lease costs at Docklands consistent with Victorian Government planning policy to consolidate activity centres.

In 2011-12, Melbourne Water's IT data centre was relocated to a new facility to meet our growing IT requirements. During the planning and development of this data centre, the focus was on minimising whole-of-life costs and reducing environmental impact. An innovative cooling system that uses cooler outside air to regulate the inside temperature will reduce power consumption.

During the year our South East Regional Office was officially awarded a 5 Star Green Star "Office as Built" certified rating from the Green Building Council of Australia. This rating recognises "Australian Excellence" in environmentally sustainable building practices.

The building incorporates solar panels, certified timber products and recycled materials, the use of waste heat from the treatment plant for heating and cooling, rainwater harvesting for gardens and toilet flushing, and water sensitive landscaping.

Waste to Landfill Strategy

Melbourne Water produces a significant range and volume of wastes as part of delivering waterways, water and sewerage services. Some of these wastes are currently disposed to landfill, which results in significant (and growing) costs. Reducing this waste could achieve cost savings and environmental and social benefits for the business and the wider community.

A Waste Management Review, completed in 2010, identified all future waste streams volumes and costs, and recommended the development of a Waste to Landfill Strategy. This strategy was developed in consultation with EPA Victoria and the water retailers and completed in 2011.

During 2011-12, Melbourne Water continued to seek solutions to convert all of its wastes into more valuable resources. This search resulted in Melbourne Water looking outside its business to other waste managers in an effort to find technological synergies, cost-effective and environmentally sound solutions and markets for reusing its waste products.

Caption: Melbourne Water has consolidated most of its office-based operations into one of the most sustainable and efficient buildings of its kind in Australia.
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Melbourne Water Biodiversity

<transcriber's note> The map has been omitted. </transcriber's note>

Protecting biodiversity

Melbourne Water is a significant landholder and waterways manager within the Port Phillip and Westernport region. We actively develop and implement strategies and projects that support biodiversity, in compliance with the Victorian Biodiversity Strategy.

Biodiversity Strategy

Melbourne Water's Biodiversity Strategy ensures a consistent approach to biodiversity management across the organisation and sets priority actions for improvement. Some of the actions undertaken in 2011-12 included:

• Developing a Code of Practice for Native Vegetation in conjunction with metropolitan water retailers. This code is in line with the template developed by VicWater and endorsed by the Department of Sustainability and Environment in 2011

• Preliminary scoping relating to Carbon Farming Initiative opportunities and other biosequestration trends have been examined and will be incorporated into the Greenhouse Strategy review

• Better coordination between Melbourne Water's different business units to benefit all sites of biodiversity significance.

Biodiversity conservation management

Melbourne Water manages two Ramsar-listed wetlands of international importance and 44 other properties identified as sites of biodiversity significance. These sites contain biological communities or populations of rare or threatened species of plants and animals.

The Ramsar-listed WTP is one of the most important refuges for waterfowl in Victoria. It also supports migratory shorebird populations, a significant population of the nationally endangered Growling Grass Frog, and native grassland areas containing the endangered Spiny Rice-flower.

Several research projects were initiated or continued during 2011-12 to improve our knowledge and understanding of ecosystem functioning at WTP. Our management of the site includes water management as well as fox, cat, rabbit and weed control programs.

The Ramsar-listed Edithvale-Seaford Wetlands are included within the larger Carrum Wetlands Important Bird Area. This includes the ETP and several adjacent wetland areas.
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These wetlands are most important for waterbird and wetland vegetation communities but also support a community of microbats. A Discovery Centre has been established at the site to educate students and the community about the importance of wetlands and the plants and animals they support.

Vegetation assessments were undertaken at 10 other Melbourne Water sites of biodiversity significance to record and monitor the quality of their vegetation.

Melbourne Water continues to update management plans for its sites of biodiversity significance. During 2011-12, this work focused on developing a strategy for the protection and enhancement of biodiversity values across the Hallam Valley floodplain. The effectiveness of our biodiversity management program is assessed through monitoring of key fauna and flora.

Cultural heritage

Melbourne Water continues to develop and strengthen its relationship with Registered Aboriginal Parties (RAPs) and Traditional Owner groups to ensure we protect Aboriginal heritage as we deliver on-the-ground projects.

We also work hard to hear and understand what is important to Traditional Owners about the land and waterways we manage on behalf of the Victorian community.

The importance of cultural heritage to Melbourne Water is detailed in our Strategic Direction, where we commit to preserving and promoting cultural heritage. This is further embedded in our policies and procedures such as the RAP-endorsed Cultural Heritage Risk Matrix, the Indigenous Cultural Heritage Guidelines, and a commitment to cultural awareness training for our employees.

There have been some challenges regarding the practicalities of implementing the current legislation and considering cultural heritage up-front as part of the planning process. There have also been challenges with regard to the risks associated with small maintenance works in restricted timeframes. However, we have overcome these challenges by continuing to work closely with Native Title, RAP and Traditional Owner groups.

Caption: Melbourne Water's Biodiversity Strategy ensures a consistent approach to biodiversity management across the organisation and sets priority actions for improvement.
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Corporate
Relationships

Our Aim

To be valued by our customers and stakeholders, and a business of choice for our partners.

We will do this by:

• Strengthening relationships with customers, stakeholders and suppliers

• Developing a deeper understanding of our customers' needs

• Seeking and respecting customer and stakeholder views in our decision-making

• Collaborating widely to find better solutions through knowledge sharing and genuine partnership.
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Key Achievements

• Developed and started to implement a Customer Strategy to ensure we continue to improve the way we respond and relate to customers

• Forged better relationships and coordination among organisations responsible for food and drainage management

• Awarded "Australasian Organisation of the Year" by the International Association for Public Participation, recognising the work our people have done through our Stakeholder and Engagement Strategy

• Working on a long-term vision for Sugarloaf Reservoir and the surrounding

area in consultation with stakeholder organisations and the local community

• Completed dam safety works at Toorourrong Reservoir with sensitivity to community concerns – preserving its heritage and recreational values

Disappointments

• Failed to achieve a 100% performance target of responding to complaints referred to the Energy and Water Ombudsman (Victoria) in a timely manner (scored 97%)

Challenges

• Reflecting on the results of our reputation survey to ensure we continue to improve our relationships with customers and stakeholders

• Improving food management planning in conjunction with local councils and increasing community education and preparedness for foods

• Working with communities and local councils around major project sites to help deliver community legacy projects within agreed timelines
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Building strong relationships

Melbourne Water's success in achieving its new vision of Enhancing Life and Liveability depends on building strong partnerships and relationships with customers and stakeholders. We are committed to listening to their needs, being responsive and pooling our knowledge and expertise to create better solutions.

Melbourne Water's new Strategic Direction, Customer Strategy and Stakeholder Engagement Strategy affirm its commitment to open communication, meaningful engagement and high quality customer service.

Customer Strategy embeds new mindset

The importance of strong relationships has long been acknowledged at Melbourne Water.

We understand that working together with our customers, stakeholders and partners is essential to help achieve our vision of Enhancing Life and Liveability. This commitment is demonstrated in our evolving organisational culture and clearly stated in our new Strategic Direction.

Our Customer Strategy was framed using nearly 4,000 pieces of feedback from customers, stakeholders and partners, and from diverse sources such as our Reputation Survey results, the Water Services Association of Australia benchmarking report, and feedback from the Strategic Direction process.

To ensure a "customer focus" mindset was embedded across the organisation, we implemented a series of change management strategies. This included conducting organisation-wide workshops where customers could provide honest and detailed feedback. We held panel discussions, master classes with management, launched internal behavioural change campaigns, developed individual and team-level Action Plans and wrote a Customer Strategy that will complement our Stakeholder Engagement Strategy.

By generating awareness of the importance of customer relationships and building a commitment to improving those relationships, we will improve satisfaction for our customers, stakeholders and partners.

Reputation survey reveals room to improve

In September 2011, Melbourne Water commissioned an independent research consultant to assess its reputation among customers and stakeholders and to measure its reputation in comparison with global benchmarks.

The research was undertaken to obtain an assessment of our effectiveness in the following key business areas:

• Performance (financial management, efficiency and growth)

• Products/services (quality of service delivery, value for money, responsiveness)

• Innovation (leading)

• Workplace (safety, fair, equal)

• Governance (open and transparent, ethical, fair)

• Citizenship (environmentally responsible, community impacts)

• Leadership (organisation, clear vision).

From the 1,700 surveys completed, Melbourne Water's overall reputational score was 63.7 out of 100, which is categorised as "average" and is in line with the global average for utilities companies. The research highlighted inconsistency in the way Melbourne Water is perceived by both stakeholders and customers, demonstrating opportunities for improvements in our relationships with these groups.

There was also recognition across all groups (including employees) that Melbourne Water should be more focused on innovation and that communication with a number of our biggest customer groups needs to be more responsive, consultative and timely.

Survey results have already been used to inform development of Melbourne Water's new Strategic Direction, specifically in the areas of customer focus, commercial acumen, innovation and adaptability.

Working with our retail water customers

Melbourne Water collaborates closely with water retailers including City West Water, South East Water, Yarra Valley Water and Western Water.

We are working with water retailers on the 2013-18 Water Plan to consider the best way of delivering services to customers, taking into account the needs of Melbourne's growing population.

Stakeholder engagement

In October 2011, Melbourne Water was named the inaugural Australasian Organisation of the Year by the International Association of Public Participation (IAP2). The IAP2 promotes values and leading practices associated with involving the general public in decisions that impact on their lives.

The award recognised Melbourne Water for developing and embedding a corporate Stakeholder Engagement Strategy within the organisation as well as helping build the capacity of our people and project partners.

Many Melbourne Water projects and programs impact on the lives of the community we serve, and we recognise that effective engagement in planning and delivery phases provides benefits for everyone involved.

The development of the Stakeholder Engagement Strategy has resulted in clear benefits to the organisation, but also awareness that we still have room to improve. How and when we involve customers and stakeholders in our decision-making is a continuing focus.

Community engagement

Understanding and advice for food-hit communities

Engaging with other agencies, councils and the community about flooding is integral to reducing the impacts of flooding in the greater Melbourne region.

Melbourne Water continued to engage and provide advice to councils and property owners, especially in the east and south-east of the region, following above-average rainfall and consequent flooding in 2011 and June 2012.

Melbourne Water attended information sessions hosted by councils and local members of Parliament, helping to forge improved relationships and coordination among the organisations responsible for food and drainage management. Through these sessions, we have been able to gather information to help update data, improve food management planning with councils, provide advice, and help people better understand the food risks in their area.

Our VicSES sponsorship for community education and awareness supported a door knocking campaign targeting 10,000 food prone properties, aimed at increasing homeowners' preparedness for foods.
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The development of Flood Management Plans with councils has assisted in identifying food prone areas and helped define responsibilities around food and drainage management – leading to better planning and coordination of urban development and required drainage.

Partnering with local government

After seeking feedback from local government, Melbourne Water implemented a number of initiatives to make it easier for council staff to get the information they need from us, including what we offer by way of services, guidelines and assistance. In 2011-12 we:

• Distributed Waterways Local Updates for 38 municipalities in the region – these are reports on activities funded principally by the Waterways and Drainage Charge

• Introduced a single-point email address dedicated to council enquiries

• Conducted a seminar on Melbourne Water funding, capacity building and partnership opportunities – attracting participants from 27 councils.

During the year we also continued to engage with councils about our capital works projects and ongoing management of built and natural assets.

Community concerns respected at Toorourrong Reservoir

Dam safety works at Toorourrong Reservoir re-commenced after being put on hold in 2009 due to the Black Saturday bushfires.

However, when Melbourne Water began its engagement activities, it was apparent it was still a very difficult time for the community and we had clearly underestimated the personal connection local people felt towards Toorourrong Reservoir Park.

Significant community concerns were raised with Melbourne Water and the project was subsequently delayed again due to a heritage approval process initiated by local residents. We later provided the community with the reassurances and information they sought, including heritage preservation and interpretative signage at the park.

We worked hard to ensure the final product tied in with Parks Victoria's rehabilitation works and left a space that respected the park's heritage and recreational values. Melbourne Water has since received numerous compliments on the care and respect taken to preserve these values.

Plan for Sugarloaf Reservoir's future

Melbourne Water is developing an integrated Place Plan for Sugarloaf Reservoir and the surrounding area known as the Christmas Hills district.

The aim of the Place Plan is to provide a long-term vision for the future of the reservoir and the surrounding area, and to identify the objectives necessary to create that future. Melbourne Water engaged with a wide range of stakeholders and the local community on the draft plan.

The inclusion of individuals and organisations that have a role and interest in the reservoir is essential to ensure the plan is practical and relevant for all.

Expanding our online presence

As more people embrace digital communications, Melbourne Water continues to improve communication, engagement and customer service via its online presence.

We launched a free Android application for storage levels in December 2011 which has been downloaded 2,241 times and receives a 4.7 out of 5 star user rating. Our free iPhone application continues to be popular with 39,887 downloads and a 4 out of 5 star user rating.

Work continues on the upgrade of our external websites to provide more relevant and useful information and services to our customers and stakeholders, and to make our websites easier to use.

Community education

Melbourne Water has updated and expanded its educational tools over the last year to provide the community with information on waterways and other areas of our business. New videos and interactive activities were created to support learning about natural and constructed wetlands.

We also developed a model for use in schools and at festivals and community events that demonstrates the principles of integrating use and management of water in urban areas. These resources will support capacity building programs on aspects of the urban water cycle.

Educational garden wins award

Melbourne Water joined forces with three metropolitan water retailers, the Department of Sustainability and Environment, Savewater!® and landscape designer, Phillip Johnson, to produce an award winning garden on integrated water management at the 2012 Melbourne International Flower and Garden Show.

The educational display was designed to change people's expectations about how water is managed in the urban landscape, creating a vision of integrated water management and the contribution water makes to urban liveability.

Energy and Water Ombudsman

The Energy and Water Ombudsman (Victoria) investigates and resolves disputes between Victorians and their energy and water service providers. Melbourne Water is one of 21 Victorian water businesses that are members of the scheme.

This year we responded to 61 investigated cases, 31 more cases than the previous year. Inquiries covered issues including maintenance and building overlay, developments, drainage maintenance, water licensing, food management, jetty access, jetty replacement, early recovery of desalination costs and property damage.

We are working to resolve two of these cases which remain open – one relating to proposed development works, the other to maintenance.

Melbourne Water Customer Mindset Visual

We Become Customer Focused
When we:
Connect (Affiliative)

with our customers by listening and asking questions, "walking" in their world and education them about our world;
Value (Humanistic/Encouraging)

our customers by ensuring they have a voice, learning from their feedback and turning their ideas into action;
Review (Self-actualising)

our way of working with customers by admitting when things aren't working, acknowledging there might be other ways and working in partnership to develop alternatives;
Deliver (Achievement)

results for our customers by taking ownership, honouring our commitments and managing expectations.
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Corporate
Financial sustainability

Our Aim

Maintain financial viability and increase business value.

We will do this by:

• Maintaining sound financial governance

• Operating efficiently and managing commercial risk effectively

• Investing prudently and efficiently

• Continuously improving business productivity

• Earning a commercial return on investments.
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Key Achievements

• Cash returns to government of $289.3M

• Delivered a net profit after tax expense of $269.9M

• Return on equity of 5.9%

• Successfully delivered $547.1M of capital works, mostly through our alliances

• Efficiency in the delivery of capital projects including the Melbourne Main Sewer Replacement which was under budget

• Improved business support for incidents, during events and training

• Improved risk reporting to the Board to enable more efficient risk governance

• Developed and implemented an innovative maintenance cost model

Disappointments

• Delay in the commissioning of the Victorian Desalination Plant resulted in significant financial impacts. This included early recovery of revenue from customers that was originally intended to fund the plant's operation, which has since been delayed

Challenges

• Clarifying regulatory requirements and customer priorities for our next Water Plan (2013-18), including appropriately managing the significant financial impacts associated with the implementation of and delay in commissioning of the Victorian Desalination Plant – while still demonstrating financial sustainability

• Continuing to demonstrate operational efficiency to our stakeholders

• Continued delivery of significant capital works on time and within budget, which provide value for money to our customers and other stakeholders
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Financial performance

During 2011-12, Melbourne Water made cash payments to the Victorian Government of $289.3M (compared with $173.1M in 2010-11).This consisted of $118.5M in dividends (paid in arrears on 2010-11 financial results), income tax equivalent payments of $133.4M, a financial accommodation levy of $34.0M and local government rate equivalents of $3.6M.

We also incurred expenditure to the Victorian Government of $19.4M in land tax($14.2M in 2010-11) and $4.1 M in payroll tax ($4.1M in 2010-11).

Delays in the commissioning of the Victorian Desalination Plant had a significant impact on our financial performance. In 2009, the Essential Services Commission (ESC) determined Melbourne Water's prices for 2009-10 to 2012-13, which accounted for the revenue needed to recover forecast obligatory payments for the desalination plant in 2011-12 and in 2012-13.

Delays in commissioning the plant meant we were not required to make these payments in 2011-12, which resulted in the revenue we collected from customers being higher than our costs by approximately $225.0M, generating a higher than anticipated profit after taxof$269.9M ($157.8M in 2010-11). In agreement with the water retailers and with oversight from the ESC, we have committed to returning the funds collected to customers.

Operating revenue for 2011-12 was $1,240.2M ($997.3M in 2010-11).The key reason for this increase on last year is increased water, sewerage, and waterways and drainage revenue resulting mainly from higher prices approved by the ESC in our current Water Plan. The increased revenue was primarily intended to fund the Victorian Desalination Plant's operational costs (that have now been deferred as a result of delays in commencement) as well as fund our operating and capital expenditures.

Operating expenditure was $867.4M ($783.3M in 2010-11). The key drivers for the increase, compared to last year, include increased finance expenses (due to higher borrowings required to fund the capital works program), increased depreciation and amortisation expenses (due to increased asset base following capital works) and increased defined benefit superannuation fund expenses (due to a book loss on the value of the fund as a result of lower bond rates and decline in share market conditions).

Total assets increased to $10,034.1M at 30 June 2012 from $9,754.5M at 30 June 2011. This increase is mainly due to the investment of $547.1M ($753.1M in 2010-11) in capital works.

Total liabilities increased to $5,495.1M at 30 June 2012 from $5,379.7M at 30 June 2011.This increase is mainly due to an increase in interest-bearing liabilities (borrowings) of $217.0M due to the funding required to deliver our capital works program.

We achieved a return on equity of 5.9% compared with 3.6% in 2010-11 and our target for 2011-12 of ≥ 0.5%. This increase is mainly due to the increase in net profit after tax as explained above.

Our gearing ratio of 45.8% (45.3% in 2010-11) and our interest cover (cash) ratio of 3.7 times (2.8 times in 2010-11) were also better than our target ranges of 2 66.9% and s 1.5 times (respectively).

Financial Sustainability Strategy

Melbourne Water's vision of Enhancing Life and Liveability is underpinned by providing efficient, affordable and valued services to all customers and stakeholders.

However, changes in our operating environment from time to time can challenge our ability to achieve this. Global economic volatility, the introduction of desalinated water and affordability pressures are among several recent drivers that have led to the need for Melbourne Water to continue to improve its financial performance.

This was highlighted as part of a review performed by Deloitte during the current financial year. The key findings of this review were that the costs of these investments, combined with the financial obligations of the new Victorian Desalination Plant, have placed pressure on Melbourne Water's key measure of financial sustainability - its credit rating. Maintaining a good credit rating is critical to ensuring the costs associated with Melbourne Water's borrowings remain low and don't impact on the price customers pay for our services.

Operating Revenue ($M)

<transcriber's note> The bar graph has been omitted. </transcriber's note>
Operating Expenditure ($M)

<transcriber's note> The bar graph has been omitted. </transcriber's note>
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This year, $547.1M of capital works were delivered through projects including teams working on the Melbourne Main Sewer Replacement, Northern Sewerage Project and Eastern Treatment Plant upgrade.

In response to the findings, Melbourne Water is preparing a Financial Sustainability Strategy which outlines the objectives, operating activities, governance structure and key performance indicators necessary to achieve the aim of financial sustainability as set out in Melbourne Water's new Strategic Direction, and to bring a commercial focus to all of its activities.

Efficiency through collaboration

This year $547.1M of capital works were delivered through:

• Project teams working on the Melbourne Main Sewer Replacement, Northern Sewerage Project and Eastern Treatment Plant upgrade

• System bundled projects through program alliances. These alliances bring together skilled and experienced people from the design and construction industries to enhance innovation and increase operational efficiency

• Minor works through maintenance service partners

• Other traditional project arrangements.

Strong governance is critical to the success of the alliance model. In 2011-12, we continued independent validation of project cost estimates; managed an audit program to ensure compliance with policy, procedures and agreed commercial terms; and administered a continual improvement program, performance/value reporting and post-project reviews.

Efficient asset management

An innovative maintenance cost model has been developed and implemented to ensure sustained levels of service from Melbourne Water’s extensive mechanical and electrical asset base.

This integrated approach to forward planning considers preventative maintenance, breakdown maintenance and renewal requirements through application of a defined Asset Management Strategy.

It includes the development of a probabilistic model of unscheduled maintenance costs based on historical data, the impact of newly constructed assets, and consideration of forecasted asset growth.

These enhancements have enabled Melbourne Water to understand and quantify uncertainty in the preparation of budgets, which has provided a basis for challenging program costs within a risk-based context.

Corporate governance and risk management

Ethics and values

Melbourne Water’s directors and employees are committed to operating ethically and in the best interests of customers, the Victorian Government, employees, suppliers and other stakeholders. The Board has adopted a Director's Code of Conduct.

All directors, managers and employees are expected to perform their duties with integrity and honesty. This expectation extends to dealing with each other, customers, suppliers and the community. Melbourne Water employees and managers must comply with Melbourne Water's Code of Conduct, which was updated this year.

Policies and procedures exist for directors and employees in relation to the identification of actual and potential conflicts of interest. These documents are regularly updated. The Corporate Secretary maintains a Register of Director's Interests and a register of gifts and invitations accepted by directors or employees.

In maintaining a safe and healthy working environment, the Board has approved behavioural and workplace policies for specific purposes, such as occupational health and safety and discrimination. These policies are distributed and widely publicised to our employees for their information and assistance.

Our governance procedures

Melbourne Water’s policy is to adopt appropriate corporate governance practices and regularly review them to ensure we are up-to-date with best practice.

This year the Board held its first Community Forum in compliance with the Water Industry Code of Practice endorsed by the former Minister for Water on 5 October 2010. This increased the transparency of its operations and improved its engagement with the community. The Board Community Forum is planned to be an annual event.

As part of these improvements, all Board members now receive papers in electronic form. A structured approach to Board development (both at a Board and individual Board member level) has also been adopted.

Risk management

Melbourne Water adopts a balanced approach to risk management that considers its commercial, social and environmental responsibilities with regard to short-term and long-term goals.

Risk management is used to ensure Melbourne Water understands its business risks and manages them consistently. Effective and efficient management of risk is central to the achievement of our vision.

Melbourne Water adopts a "whole of business" approach by considering risks on a group, team and project basis. Trends and commonalities are also identified across these areas.

To effectively manage risks across the organisation, risk assessments are conducted on a regular basis to identify the:

• Likelihood or probability of a risk occurring

• Consequence of a risk occurring

• Effectiveness of mitigating strategies in place to manage risks.

Capital Expenditure ($M)

<transcriber's note> The bar graph has been omitted. </transcriber's note>
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Corporate governance and risk management continued

The capital prioritisation process uses risk assessment as a key tool for determining the need for, and relative timing of, investments. Operational risks are managed daily by the organisation and through specialised management systems.

Strategic risk

To assist in the strategic management of risks at an organisational level, Melbourne Water has identified key strategic risks and assessed each risk based on the current risk level.

Melbourne Water actively manages strategic risk with a strong focus on continuous improvement. Our risks will continue to be managed through a Risk Management Framework comprising major elements such as: certified management systems; appropriately skilled people and sound operational procedures; a robust capital works program; sound technological applications such as our Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition (SCADA), Asset Management and GIS systems; and close working relationships with the water industry, government departments, local government, customers, developers and the community.

Melbourne Water has identified the following key strategic risks:

• Health, safety and security of people, property and environment

• Environmental damage to Melbourne's waterways/bays

• Financial and governance framework

• Recycled water (quantity and quality)

• Engaging, understanding and working with key stakeholders and the community

• Water supply

• Water quality

• Asset lifecycle

• Capital delivery

• Impact of flood on the community

• 2018 greenhouse target

• Recruiting, developing and retaining our employees

• Delivering obligations in the Water Plan

• Biosolids and by-products (quantity and quality).

Insurance and incident management framework

To assist with mitigating the commercial, social and environmental impact of risk events, Melbourne Water has many control measures in place including an emergency and incident management framework and a comprehensive insurance portfolio.

As part of this framework, Melbourne Water has developed emergency management and contingency plans, which are regularly tested and reviewed.

In addition to local emergency management arrangements, Melbourne Water assists in the development of industry response plans and protocols. We work with water retailers and government departments/agencies that assign roles and responsibilities in the event of large-scale incidents. These plans are also tested and reviewed with water retailers.

Audits and risk reviews

Melbourne Water continually reassesses its risk profile through external reviews by subject matter specialists and a comprehensive risk-based internal audit program.

In addition to these reviews, Melbourne Water undertakes quarterly self-assessments on the current management of risks and the identification of new or emerging risks and opportunities. The results of these reviews are presented to the Board via its Audit and Corporate Risk Committee, which actively oversees Melbourne Water's risk management processes.

Attestation on Compliance with the Australian/New Zealand Risk Management Standard

I, Eleanor Underwood, certify that:

• Melbourne Water Corporation has risk management processes in place consistent with the Australian/New Zealand Risk Management Standard (AS/NZS ISO 31000:2009)

• An internal control system is in place that enables the executive to understand, manage and satisfactorily control risk exposures

• The Audit and Corporate Risk Committee verifies this assurance

• The risk profile of Melbourne Water Corporation has been critically reviewed within the last 12 months.
Eleanor Underwood

Chairman

Melbourne Water Corporation

Statements of Obligations

Two Statements of Obligations, issued by the Minister for Water pursuant to Section 41 of the Water Industry Act 1994, are applicable to Melbourne Water:

1) The Statement of Obligations applicable from July 2004 formalises Melbourne Water's obligations in relation to the performance of functions and exercise of powers including the areas of:

• The Water Plan

• Governance and risk management

• Planning and service delivery

• Environmental management

• Waterways and drainage

• Reporting

• Compliance.

2) The Statement of Obligations applicable from 1 July 2009:

(a) Imposes obligations on Melbourne Water in relation to our water supply function established under section 171B of the Water Act 1989, and the exercise of our powers.

(b) Clarifies Melbourne Water's role as manager of the Melbourne headworks system in relation to the obligations of the metropolitan water retailers as holders of certain water entitlements.

On 26 March 2012, the Minister for Water issued an amendment to this Statement of Obligations, the purpose of which was to set out the new rules for the future use of the North-South Pipeline.

Melbourne Water's Board monitors compliance with these Statements of Obligations and reports any significant non-compliance to the Minister.
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Board of Directors

The Minister for Water, in consultation with the Treasurer, appoints the directors of Melbourne Water for terms of up to four years and the Victorian Government sets their remuneration. Directors are eligible for reappointment for subsequent terms.

In making new appointments to the Board, the Victorian Government ensures the Board has the necessary combination of skills and experience. The Managing Director is appointed by the Board, subject to the approval of the Minister in consultation with the Treasurer, for a term of up to five years. Annual reviews are conducted of the performance of the Board as a whole and of individual members.

Pursuant to a Statement of Obligations issued by the Minister, the outcomes of these performance reviews are reported to the Treasurer and the Minister. The Board of Directors currently comprises a non-executive Chairman, five non-executive directors and the Managing Director.

Eleanor Underwood
Chairman

Eleanor Underwood took up the position of Chairman in April 2010. Ms Underwood came to Melbourne Water after serving 10 years on the South East Water Board, including five years as its Chair. Before that, she was Deputy Chairman of South Gippsland Water and a Director of Audit Victoria and the Water Training Centre. Ms Underwood is a management consultant with private sector experience in general management, accounting and marketing. She has also worked as a senior academic planner at RMIT University.

Peter Vines
Director (Deputy Chairman)

Peter Vines was appointed to the Board in October 2005. Mr Vines has held chief executive and executive management positions in the energy and infrastructure sector, including directorships in various utility companies in Australia and internationally. Mr Vines holds qualifications in civil engineering, economics and management. He is a member of the Australian Institute of Company Directors and a member of the Institute of Engineers, Australia.

Shaun Cox
Managing Director

Shaun Cox commenced as Managing Director of Melbourne Water on 8 March 2011. Shaun is currently a Board member (and former Chair) of the Smart Water Fund and the Water Services Association of Australia. He holds a degree in civil engineering, a Masters of Engineering and Technology Management and is an Adjunct Professor at the University of Queensland. Before joining Melbourne Water, Mr Cox held the position of Managing Director of South East Water and Chief Executive Officer of Gold Coast Water.

Warren Hodgson
Director

Warren Hodgson was appointed to the Board on 1 July 2008. Mr Hodgson was previously Secretary, Department of Innovation, Industry and Regional Development, and before that, Under Secretary, Department of Treasury and Finance. Mr Hodgson has a background in the manufacturing industry, qualifications in science and engineering, and is a graduate of the Australian Institute of Company Directors.

Maria Wilton
Director

Maria Wilton was appointed to the Board on 1 October 2009. Ms Wilton is a chartered financial analyst with 20 years' experience in the investment management industry. She was Director of the Transport Accident Commission Board until 30 June 2009. Ms Wilton is also the Managing Director of Franklin Templeton Investments Australia Ltd.

Merran Kelsall
B.Com (Hons), FCA, MBA Former Deputy Chairman

Merran Kelsall was appointed to the Board on 1 January 2001. Ms Kelsall is an independent company director and consultant.

Ms Kelsall resigned from the Board on 30 September 2011.

Terry Larkins
PSM Director

Terry Larkins was appointed to the Board on 1 January 2004. He was appointed Chairman of Western Water in 2001. Mr Larkins has extensive experience in the water industry and local government including as Secretary of the former Gisborne Water Board and Chief Executive of the Shire of Gisborne. He has been a member of the VicWater Board since 2005 and Chair from 2007– 08. He is active in a number of community groups in health services, conservation and education.

Dana Hlavacek
B. Com (Hons), M.Acc, FCA, GAICD Director

Dana Hlavacek was appointed to the Board on 1 October 2011. Ms Hlavacek is a finance executive with considerable experience with the treasury of Rio Tinto and, prior to that, KPMG. She is a Governor of the Arts Centre Melbourne Foundation and is also on the board of RSPCA Victoria. Ms Hlavacek is a member of the Salvation Army Corporate and Philanthropic Committee and of the Brotherhood of St Laurence's Audit Committee.

Mary Anne Hartley SC
BA (Hons), LLB (Hons) Director

Mary Anne Hartley was appointed to the Board on 1 July 2002. A barrister, she was appointed as a Senior Counsel on 24 November 2009. Ms Hartley was a director of several government corporations in the maritime and energy sectors.

Ms Hartley resigned from the Board on 6 October 2011.
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Powers and accountability

Melbourne Water operates under the Water Act 1989.

Melbourne Water has two current by-laws, Water Supply Protection No 1 (2006) and Waterways, Land and Works Protection and Management (2009).

The Minister for Water has delegated powers of management under the Water Act relating to licensed private water diversions from waterways to Melbourne Water, effective as of 1 July 1999. The Water Act and by-laws can be purchased from the Information Victoria bookshop, 356 Collins Street, Melbourne (telephone 1300 366 356).

The Honourable Peter Walsh MLA, Minister for Water, was the Minister responsible for Melbourne Water from 1 July 2011 to 30 June 2012. Melbourne Water works with officers of the Department of Sustainability and Environment and the Department of Treasury and Finance. Statutory and other reports are provided covering Melbourne Water's performance against the objectives and performance indicators in the Corporate Plan.

Primary responsibilities

Melbourne Water's Board has adopted a charter that defines its role and responsibilities within the legislative framework provided by the Water Act and other applicable legislation including the Public Administration Act 2004. The Board makes plans to achieve specific objectives, which include:

• Achievement of long-term outcomes based on a triple bottom line approach

• Approval of budgets together with key performance indicators linked to objectives

• Approval of annual financial statements and monitoring of performance against objectives and risks

• Monitoring of safety, health and environmental standards and management systems.

The Board has ratified a Corporate Governance Policy.

Key features of the Board's activities:

• It has formal Board meetings 11 times a year, undertakes site visits and participates in business strategy workshops with Melbourne Water's leadership team

• Monthly updates on Board activities are made available to all employees

• Regular strategy workshops are held with relevant stakeholder groups

• A structured induction program exists for new Board and committee members

• Development opportunities are made available for Board members on an ongoing basis

• Conflicts of interest are declared and a director does not participate in decisions where such a conflict exists

• Directors have the right to seek independent professional advice, at Melbourne Water's expense, in connection with their duties and responsibilities

• Declarations of pecuniary interest by directors are made annually, with procedures for updating that information between declarations

• There is an annual review of Board performance.

Committees

The Board has four sub-committees, each comprising at least three non-executive directors, who meet periodically to focus on audit and corporate risk, people and safety, environment and public health, and capital planning and delivery. The Managing Director attends meetings of committees by invitation. The Board approves each committee charter.

Audit and Corporate Risk Committee

This committee assists the Board in fulfilling its responsibilities relating to risk management, financial management and operational control practices, and compliance with relevant laws and regulations.

At 30 June 2012, the committee comprised Warren Hodgson (Chairman), Peter Vines, Maria Wilton, Eleanor Underwood and Dana Hlavacek. A report about the activities of the committee in fulfilling its charter is prepared annually.

People and Safety Committee

This committee assists the Board in fulfilling its responsibilities relating to human resources issues, remuneration, and workplace health and safety. For details of directors' and executives' remuneration, refer to pages 104-107 of the Financial Statements.

At 30 June 2012, the committee comprised Maria Wilton (Chairman), Terry Larkins, Dana Hlavacek and Eleanor Underwood. A report about the activities of the committee in fulfilling its charter is prepared biennially.

Environment and Public Health Committee

This committee assists the Board in fulfilling its responsibilities relating to environmental sustainability and public health.

At 30 June 2012, the committee comprised Terry Larkins (Chairman), Eleanor Underwood and Rob Joy (independent member). A report about the activities of the committee in fulfilling its charter is prepared biennially.

Capital Projects and Asset Performance Committee

This committee assists the Board in fulfilling its governance responsibilities relating to the planning and delivery of capital projects.

At 30 June 2012, the committee comprised Peter Vines (Chairman), Terry Larkins, Warren Hodgson and Eleanor Underwood. A report about the activities of the committee in fulfilling its charter is prepared annually.
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Caption: Melbourne Water's "Enhancing Life and Liveability" is underpinned by providing efficient, affordable and valued services to all customers and stakeholders.

Managing Director

Shaun Cox

General Manager, Operations & Maintenance
Tony Antoniou

General Manager, Waterways
Chris Chesterfeld until 25 May 2012

David Ryan from 25 June 2012

General Manager, Strategic Planning
Ben Furmage

General Manager, Communications & Community Relations
Anne Randall

General Manager, Business Services
Malcolm Haynes

General Manager, People & Safety
Leigh Keath until 23 March 2012

Linda Herron from 4 June 2012

General Manager, Capital Delivery
David Morse

General Manager, Asset Planning
Paul Pretto
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Corporate
Organisational capability

Strategic Goals

Our Aim

Strengthen the capability of the organisation to deliver better customer and community outcomes.

We will do this by:

• Continuing to build a collaborative culture

• Supporting and encouraging our people to take responsibility for health and safety

• Developing a high-performing organisation that values innovation, customer service and commercial and technical expertise

• Promoting diversity and flexibility to attract and retain a motivated and skilled workforce

• Fostering a learning organisation that collaborates in research, embraces emerging thinking and adapts to new technology

• Using innovative technological solutions to improve the effectiveness and efficiency of business processes.
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Key Achievements

• Implemented a new Strategic Direction with the aim of Enhancing Life and Liveability in the Melbourne region

• Continued to implement engagement programs to support innovation and strengthen organisational capability to deliver better customer service and community outcomes

• A biennial survey confirmed progress is continuing to be made in building a constructive organisational culture

• Launched a new graduate program designed to meet the future needs of the business

• Introduced a program to help people transition to retirement which is helping the organisation retain valuable knowledge

• Engaged with multiple stakeholders on strategic research projects for the Western Port area

Disappointments

• Recorded 20 (employee and contractor) lost time injuries (LTIs), including one fatality, failing to meet our zero target

Challenges

• Improve health and safety performance by continuing the focus on: a zero harm culture; being clear about roles and responsibilities; and agreement to upgrade the safety management system to AS4801, with certification by June 2013

• Continuing to build a strong organisational culture with a focus on customer service, commercial acumen and innovative thinking

• Encourage and support our people to share research, knowledge and experience, and to embrace emerging thinking and adapt to new technology
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New Strategic Direction

Melbourne Water launched a new Strategic Direction in March 2012 after extensive consultation with its customers, stakeholders and employees.

The organisation's new vision, Enhancing Life and Liveability, outlines Melbourne Water's commitment to do its part to improve the quality of life within the greater Melbourne region. Melbourne is continually rated by international agencies as one of the most liveable cities in the world. Melbourne Water is dedicated to working with others to provide safe and secure water, sewage, waterways and drainage services to uphold and enhance Melbourne's liveability.

Constructive culture

Melbourne Water introduced a culture change program in 2005, with regular measuring of progress confirming the organisational culture has noticeably improved over the last seven years. The program helps guide our approach to delivering business activities and underpins our behaviour when working constructively with employees, partners and stakeholders.

The culture program is integrated into Melbourne Water's new Strategic Direction and key strategic documents (e.g. Customer Strategy). It also informs business activities, such as performance and development planning, and employee engagement strategies.

Our progress was measured again in 2012 and demonstrated we have maintained a constructive organisational culture since 2009. All teams within Melbourne Water received data on their own results and are creating action plans to determine opportunities for improvement.

Safe and healthy workplace

Melbourne Water is aiming to ensure all its activities are supported by a constructive culture and a commitment to zero harm in the workplace where the safety of people is paramount.

We failed to achieve our goal of zero lost time injuries (LTIs) for employees and contractors on behalf of Melbourne Water in 2011–12, with 20 LTIs (compared with 15 last year). The most serious incident resulted in the fatality of a person at the Eastern Treatment Plant.

The great sadness and shock we experienced due to the death of one of our colleagues has made us more determined to make the safety of our people our highest priority.

Public safety

Melbourne Water aims to ensure all its assets and activities are effectively managed to protect the community from risk to their health and safety. To achieve this objective, Melbourne Water applies its Risk Management Framework to its Asset Management and Safety Management systems.

This year a serious public safety incident occurred when, without authority to do so, a member of the public accessed one of Melbourne Water's assets. The person sustained serious injury which resulted in them being hospitalised.

This incident has prompted a broad review into how Melbourne Water currently manages public safety risk associated with its assets.

Innovation

To support our ability to supply efficient services in a complex environment, Melbourne Water introduced a program of initiatives to boost innovation in late 2010. This included an innovation toolkit containing resources for creative thinking and team problem-solving, and an online software tool (the Idea Pool) to allow people to share their ideas across the business.

A review of innovation initiatives was undertaken this year and several improvements were made to strengthen the program. Innovation skill-building workshops were conducted and a communications program introduced to share innovation examples and success stories.

The Innovation Assessment Group, which reviews ideas submitted to the Idea Pool, has refined the assessment process with the aim of improving the efficiency and transparency of decision-making.

An annual innovation survey was completed in May 2012, with results showing an improvement in employee assessment of how innovation contributed to Melbourne Water's business performance. Our employees' rating of the tools, resources, collaborative office spaces and techniques available to generate, develop and progress ideas also improved over the year.

While innovation survey results show the Corporate Innovation KPI was met for 2011-12, further opportunities were highlighted in the detailed findings and the program review. Work has started on a strategic improvement plan to target specific innovation initiatives for all business groups.

Our workforce

Melbourne Water continues to attract and retain a diverse, motivated and skilled workforce, bringing required talent into the organisation through a variety of measures.

These initiatives include engaging graduates, trainees and vacation students, and facilitating a range of development opportunities such as job rotations and secondments between internal teams and external organisations. Our measures encourage people to understand and engage with the organisation, develop their full potential and support the delivery of organisational outcomes.

Workforce distribution

By the numbers

At 30 June 2012:

• Our total workforce was 834 (compared with 841 at 30 June 2011)

• The average age of Melbourne Water employees was 42 years (41.8 at

30 June 2011)

• The proportion of women in our workforce was 32.9% (33.1% at 30 June 2011).

The May 2012 Australian Bureau of Statistics Labour Force report shows female participation in the Electricity, Gas, Water and Waste Services Industries at 25%. Melbourne Water continues to provide a wide range of flexible working arrangements and a constructive culture to attract women to its workforce. During 2011-12, 44% of accepted job offers were from women.

In 2011-12:

• The average age of new starters was 33 years (35.9 in 2010-11)

• 162 roles were filled, 70 by internal candidates (151 roles filled in 2010-11)

• Turnover was 7.4% (8.1% in 2010-11), which is within Melbourne Water's accepted range and industry norms.
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The organisation's new vision, Enhancing Life and Liveability,

outlines Melbourne Water's commitment to do its part to improve the quality of life within the greater Melbourne region.

Melbourne Water workforce distribution

	
	2011-12
	2010-11
	2009-10

	
	Male
	Female
	Male
	Female
	Male
	Female

	Executives
	42
	10
	48
	9
	42
	8

	Technical/professional
	361
	216
	352
	214
	348
	206

	Operational
	142
	1
	148
	2
	148
	3

	Administration
	12
	48
	15
	53
	18
	55

	Total
	559
	275
	563
	278
	556
	272

	Total male and female
	834
	841
	828


Management training

A new manager training program was launched in 2011 as part of Melbourne Water's ongoing commitment to developing a high-performing organisation. The Manager Essentials Program is designed to enhance a manager's ability in the areas of workplace relations, leadership and people skills.

The first two modules of the Program "Managing Employee Performance" and "Managing Diverse Teams" were well received with more than 60 managers participating. These modules will run again in 2012, alongside modules on recruitment and managing sick or injured employees.

Graduate development program

This year saw the development and launch of a new graduate program designed to meet Melbourne Water's future business needs. The program focuses on developing capabilities the organisation will need within a workforce planning program.

In addition to technical development, graduates complete a year-long learning program to help improve capabilities in areas such as self-awareness, communication, building relationships and leadership. Action learning is integral to the program and 18 graduates took part this year.

Transition to retirement

A transition to retirement program was developed and launched in 2011-12. This program is designed to achieve outcomes for people who are close to retirement and for retaining key knowledge within the business.

This year, 57 employees received assistance with transitioning to retirement, not only from a financial point of view but also from a health and lifestyle perspective. In return, employees are helping Melbourne Water understand how it can keep older workers engaged and healthy and ensure their knowledge and skills are retained.

Information technology

Melbourne Water's production data facility moved to a purpose-built centre during the last year and is scalable to support the organisation's projected needs for the next 15 years. This move eliminated operational costs associated with leasing data centre floor space.

Sustainable design is a feature of the new centre, which includes an innovative cooling system that uses outside air to regulate the inside temperature. There has already been a reduction of up to 40% in power consumption compared to the previous data facility. The centre also delivers a doubling of data storage capacity and real time synchronisation of production and disaster recovery storage. The migration of IT systems and infrastructure to the new centre was rigorously managed, without disruption to Melbourne Water's business or to our customers.

To boost the organisation's decision-making capacity, an integrated information program is underway to improve efficient access to quality information. This includes implementation of an information governance framework, the creation of an enterprise information model, and renewal of the enterprise document management system.

Several other projects were completed to enhance organisational capability in 2011-12. These included moving our geospatial information from legacy proprietary files to an industry-leading platform – providing the capability for this data to be accessed from a greater range of devices and systems. We also upgraded our desktop environment to Windows 7/Office 2010 and delivered enhanced productivity tools to our people.

Research and technology

To ensure Melbourne Water continues to provide high quality services, research and development is undertaken to enhance knowledge for strategic purposes and improve efficiency through scientific excellence, innovation and the adoption of new technology.

Key initiatives in 2011-12 included:

• Western Port Environment Scientific Review: The review, "Understanding the Western Port Environment: a summary of current knowledge and priorities for future research", was publicly released in March 2012. Since then, several of the high priority strategic research projects have commenced

• A mangrove planting project continued, which was aimed at reducing severe coastal erosion along the north-eastern shores of Western Port Bay. More than 20,000 mangrove seedlings have so far been planted and the project has been developing and improving techniques used for mangrove revegetation at close to their most southerly global distribution

• Investigation of the presence and nature of the protozoan parasite Cryptosporidium in native and feral animals continued in our protected water supply catchments. Results support Melbourne Water's unfiltered status

• Melbourne Water is now involved in the Australian Water Recycling Centre of Excellence, with a position on the Research Advisory Council and representation on a major project to set national validation guidelines for recycled water, aimed at ensuring science-based sensible guidance

• Work continued on a major research program aimed at better understanding the impact of toxicants including pesticides on aquatic ecosystems in waterways through the Victorian Centre for Aquatic Pollution Identification and Management, which opened in 2010

• Melbourne Water has been a successful partner in 15 Australian Research Council grants, resulting in $6.8M

of funding in addition to Melbourne Water's contribution of $2M.
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Five-year financial summary

Summary of Financial Results

Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 30 June - Extract

	
	2012 $M
	2011 $M
	2010 $M
	2009 $M
	2008 $M

	Revenue and other income
	1,240.2
	997.3
	858.4
	732.2
	600.3

	Operating and other expenses
	375.7
	328.0
	326.6
	330.6
	318.5

	Depreciation and amortisation expenses
	242.6
	231.9
	122.0
	105.8
	87.5

	Finance expenses
	249.2
	223.3
	171.3
	122.0
	100.8

	Net result from continuing operations before income tax expense
	372.7
	214.1
	238.5
	173.8
	93.5

	Less: Income tax expense
	102.8
	56.2
	52.1
	45.8
	25.9

	Profit for the period after tax expense
	269.9
	157.8
	186.4
	128.0
	67.6

	Dividends paid
	118.4
	26.5
	79.8
	72.0
	99.4


Statement of Financial Position
As at 30 June – Extract

	
	2012 $M
	2011 $M
	2010 $M
	2009 $M
	2008 $M

	Current assets
	97.6
	109.6
	71.4
	108.7
	65.8

	Non-current assets
	9,936.5
	9,644.8
	8,876.9
	5,312.4
	4,369.7

	Total assets
	10,034.1
	9,754.5
	8,948.3
	5,421.1
	4,435.5

	Current liabilities
	1,142.6
	1,365.5
	1,096.5
	862.3
	541.5

	Non-current liabilities
	4,352.5
	4,014.2
	3,833.4
	2,557.0
	1,907.1

	Total liabilities
	5,495.1
	5,379.7
	4,929.9
	3,419.3
	2,448.6

	Net assets
	4,539.0
	4,374.8
	4,018.4
	2,001.8
	1,986.9

	Total equity
	4,539.0
	4,374.8
	4,018.4
	2,001.8
	1,986.9


Statement of Cash Flows
As at 30 June – Extract

	
	2012 $M
	2011 $M
	2010 $M
	2009 $M
	2008 $M

	Net cash flows from operating activities
	529.2
	266.6
	302.9
	278.8
	163.6

	Payments for property, plant and equipment
	636.8
	814.3
	955.5
	939.2
	367.8
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Summary of Financial Performance
Performance indicator

	
	2012
	2011
	2010
	2009
	2008

	Internal Financing Ratio % = ((Net Operating Cashflow - Dividends)/Capital Expenditure)**
	64.5%
	29.5%
	23.4%
	22.0%
	17.5%

	Gearing Ratio % = (Total Debt/Total Assets)**
	38.2%
	37.1%
	34.3%
	43.5%
	36.7%

	Gearing Ratio % = (Total Debt/(Total Debt + Equity))*
	45.8%
	45.3%
	43.3%
	54.1%
	45.1%

	Interest Cover EBIT (Earnings Before Interest and Tax) Times = (EBIT/Net Interest Expense)**
	2.5
	2.0
	2.4
	2.4
	1.9

	Interest Cover (Cash) Times = (Cashflow from operations before net interest and tax payments/net interest payments)***
	3.7
	2.8
	3.4
	3.3
	2.7

	Return on Assets % = (Earnings Before Interest and Tax/Average Total Assets)**
	6.3%
	4.7%
	5.7%
	6.0%
	4.6%

	Return on Equity % = (Net Profit After Tax/Average Total Equity)**
	6.1%
	3.8%
	6.2%
	6.4%
	3.5%

	Return on Equity % = (Net Profit After Tax/Total Equity)*
	5.9%
	3.6%
	4.6%
	6.1%
	3.4%

	Cash Returns to Government $M = (Dividends + Tax + Financial Accommodation Levy + Local Government Rates Equivalent Cash Payments)*
	289.3M
	173.1M
	175.9M
	92.3M
	114.6M


Explanatory Notes:

* Performance indicator included in Melbourne Water's Corporate Plan

** Performance indicator mandated by the Minister for Water through Ministerial Reporting Direction 01 (Performance Reporting)

*** Performance indicator mandated by the Minister for Water and included in Melbourne Water's Corporate Plan

Refer to the annual Performance Report at pages 112 to 120 for reporting of all 2011–12 performance indicators (financial and non financial) against targets with supporting explanations for any significant variations.
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Directors' Report

Directors

The Directors of the Corporation in office, during the financial year were:

Eleanor Underwood (Chairman)
Peter Vines (Deputy Chairman)
Dana Hlavacek (Appointed 1 October 2011)
Maria Wilton

Mary Anne Hartley (Resigned 6 October 2011)
Merran Kelsall (Appointment expired 30 September 2011)
Shaun Cox (Managing Director)
Terry Larkins

Warren Hodgson

Particulars of the Directors' qualifications, experience and special responsibilities are set out on pages 51-52 of this report.

Directors' meetings

During the financial period, the Corporation held 14 meetings of Directors. Attendance at meetings of the Board and its Committees were:

<transcriber's note> Max = Maximum Possible. </transcriber's note>

	
	Board
	Audit & Corporate Risk Committee
	People & Safety Committee
	Environment & Public Health Committee
	Capital Planning & Delivery Committee

	
	Attended
	Max
	Attended
	Max
	Attended
	Max
	Attended
	Max
	Attended
	Max

	Eleanor Underwood
	14
	14
	5
	5
	3
	3
	1
	2
	4
	4

	Peter Vines
	13
	14
	4
	5
	-
	-
	-
	-
	4
	4

	Dana Hlavacek*
	10
	11
	3
	3
	1
	1
	-
	-
	-
	-

	Maria Wilton
	14
	14
	4
	5
	1
	1
	-
	-
	3
	3

	Mary Anne Hartley**
	3
	3
	-
	-
	-
	1
	1
	1
	-
	-

	Merran Kelsall***
	3
	3
	2
	2
	1
	1
	-
	-
	-
	-

	Shaun Cox
	13
	14
	5
	5
	3
	3
	2
	2
	4
	4

	Terry Larkins
	14
	14
	-
	-
	2
	3
	2
	2
	4
	4

	Warren Hodgson
	13
	14
	5
	5
	3
	3
	-
	-
	4
	3


* Appointed to the Board on 1 October 2011

** Resigned from the Board on 6 October 2011

*** Appointment expired on 30 September 2011

Director benefits

No Director has received or become entitled to receive a benefit (other than a benefit included in Notes 28a and 28b to the Financial Statements) because of a contract that the Director, a firm of which the Director is a member, or an entity in which the Director has a substantial financial interest, has made (during the period ended 30 June 2012 or at any other time) with:

(a) the Corporation; or

(b) an entity that the Corporation controlled, or a body corporate that was related to the Corporation, when the contract was made or when the Director received, or became entitled to receive, the benefit.

Director and officer liability insurance

During the financial year, the Corporation paid insurance premiums in respect of director and officer liability insurance. The policy does not specify a premium for individual directors and officers.

The director and officer liability insurance policy provides cover against all costs and expenses involved in defending legal actions and any resulting payments arising from a liability to persons (other than the Corporation) incurred in their position as director or officer unless the conduct involves a wilful breach of duty or an improper use of information or position to gain advantage.

The terms of the insurance policy prohibit the disclosure of the nature of the liabilities insured and the amount of the premium.
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Interest in contracts

No contracts involving Directors' interests were entered into since the end of the previous financial year, or existed at the end of the 2011-12 financial year, other than the transactions detailed in Notes 28a and 28b to the Financial Statements.

Principal activities

The Corporation is owned by the Victorian Government. The Corporation manages Melbourne's water supply catchments, removes and treats most of Melbourne's sewage, and manages rivers, creeks and major drainage systems throughout the Port Phillip and Westernport region. The Corporation also provides water and sewerage services to Melbourne's three water retailers: City West Water Ltd, South East Water Ltd and Yarra Valley Water Ltd.

Operating results and dividend

The Corporation's net profit, after providing for income tax, was $269.9M (2010-11: $157.8M). A final dividend of $118.4M in relation to the 2010-11 financial year was paid in November 2011. There has been no interim dividend payment made or determined in relation to the 2011-12 financial year. The amount of any interim and final dividend for the 2011-12 financial year will be determined by the Treasurer of Victoria after consultation with the Corporation's Board of Directors and the Minister for Water. Consequently no provision has been recorded as at 30 June 2012.

Review of operations

The Directors' review of the Corporation's operations during the financial period ended 30 June 2012 are set out in the Managing Director's overview on page 2 of this report.

State of affairs

There were no significant changes in the state of affairs of the Corporation during the financial period ended 30 June 2012.

Environmental regulation

The Corporation is subject to significant environmental regulation in respect of managing its sewage treatment plants, maintaining environmental flow requirements and managing the Ramsar wetlands. Information on these topics is included in Melbourne Water's 2011-12 Annual Report.

Sewage treatment plants

Melbourne Water negotiated a Corporate Licence with the Environment Protection Authority (EPA) Victoria during the 2011-12 financial year that has combined the previous discharge licences for Eastern and Western Treatment plants into one. Melbourne Water has used the new Corporate Licence to ensure 100% compliance for the full year with EPA Victoria discharge parameters.

EPA Victoria issued a Works Approval to Melbourne Water for an upgrade to the Eastern Treatment Plant (ETP) in January 2010. The upgrade will improve treatment of effluent to reduce the impact on discharge at Boags Rocks and will increase opportunities for recycled water from the plant.

Ramsar sites at Western Treatment Plant and Edithvale Seaford Wetlands

Melbourne Water has two sites that are listed under the Ramsar International Convention and these are managed within the parameters of the Convention's "wise use" test, which aims to protect wetlands with internationally significant environmental values.

During the year, extensive work on biodiversity conservation and management of habitat ponds at Western Treatment Plant continued in line with the 2010 Ramsar Site Management Plan and the 2008 approved Compliance Plan. Significant on-ground investment was made in water level management, pest plant and animal control, monitoring of key populations/communities and some research projects. Highlights included establishing multiple outlets for effluent to be discharged directly to mudflats to better nourish intertidal invertebrates (the key prey for nationally significant migratory shorebird populations) and a successful coastal saltmarsh restoration project at former sewage treatment ponds.

The Western Treatment Plant Land Use Strategy was considered to be a controlled action under the Environment Protection and Biodiversity Conservation (EPBC) Act. Approval of the Land Use Strategy required preparation of a Compliance Plan and this was started during the year. Once the Compliance Plan has been approved a combined annual report for the plant will be prepared.

Actions in the Edithvale-Seaford Wetlands Ramsar Site Management Plan were implemented as required. Actions required from a referral under the EPBC Act to construct and operate a Discovery Centre at the site were also implemented in the prescribed manner.

Dandenong Treatment Plant

The Corporation has rehabilitated the former Dandenong Treatment Plant (DTP) site for redevelopment (in partnership with Places Victoria) for both residential and industrial purposes. The final Clean Up To the Extent Practical (CUTEP) report was approved by EPA Victoria during the year and a Statement of Environmental Audit has also been finalised. This project has now been completed and the land will continue to be developed and sold to the market.

Environmental flow requirement - bulk entitlements

The Corporation manages bulk entitlements to water from the Thomson, Maribyrnong and Yarra Rivers. During the 2011-12 financial year, the requirements were met for all rivers with environmental flow entitlements.

Environmental incidents

During the 2011-12 financial year, there were no significant environmental incidents related to Melbourne Water's activities.
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Implementation of the Victorian Industry Participation Policy

In accordance with the Victorian Industry Participation Policy Act 2003, the following Victorian Industry Participation Policy (VIPP) contracts commenced or were completed during the 2011-12 financial year:

Contracts commenced to which the VIPP applied:

The Corporation commenced seven contracts totalling S30.2M in value to which VIPP applied. The total number and value of these relate to 6 metropolitan and 1 regional contracts.

The commitments by contractors under VIPP included:

• An overall level of local content of 92.2% of the total value of the contracts

• 121 full time equivalent jobs

• 22 full time equivalent apprenticeships and traineeships

• A number of benefits to the Victorian economy in terms of skills and technology transfers were provided by contractors including:

- On the job training and up skilling in high voltage works and testing for Melbourne Water employees and contractors;

- Commitments to staff training and skills development relating to the chemical industry;

- Commitment made for ongoing training, skills development and research and development across all sampling, analysis and laboratory services for Melbourne Water employees and contractors;

- Skills transfers relating to the building construction industry including carpentry, joinery, mechanical, electrical and plumbing relating to the fit out at the new Melbourne Water corporate office at 990 La Trobe Street for contractors.

Contracts completed to which the VIPP applied:

The Corporation completed twelve contracts totalling S623.8M in value to which VIPP applied. The total number and value of these relate to 11 metropolitan and 1 regional contracts.

The outcomes reported by contractors under VIPP included:

• An overall level of local content of 83.0% of the total value of the contracts

• 533 full time equivalent jobs

• 18 full time equivalent apprenticeships and traineeships

• All committed skills and technology transfer were achieved for these contracts. These skills included:

- Tank floor scanning and data evaluation skills for Melbourne Water employees;

- Training sessions relating to the Common Wide Area Network infrastructure for Melbourne Water employees;

- Extensive general training in relation to the specific requirements of the Desalinated Water Integration Project for contractors;

- Detailed training and skills development program for the Northern Sewer project implemented on an individual and team needs basis;

- Fire Emergency Warning Information System engineering and first aid training achieved at the Eastern Treatment Plant (ETP);

- Opportunities created for Melbourne Water employees and contractors to advance their project supervision skills at the Sludge Augmentation project at ETP;

- Skills training provided to contractors relating to the building construction industry, for the fit out at the new Melbourne Water corporate office at 990 La Trobe Street, including carpentry, joinery, mechanical, electrical and plumbing;

- Training provided on health and safety subjects including first aid, working at heights, confined spaces and operation of plant and equipment at the Edithvale Wetlands Discovery Centre.
Peter Vines

Acting Chairman

Shaun Cox

Managing Director
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Financial Statements

Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 30 June 2012

	
	Notes
	2012 $000
	2011 $000

	Revenue

	Revenue
	3(a)
	1,231,609
	975,231

	Other Income
	3(b)
	8,611
	22,077

	Total revenue
	
	1,240,220
	997,308

	

	Expenses

	Depreciation and amortisation expenses
	4
	(242,582)
	(231,884)

	Operational expenses
	4
	(109,138)
	(111,223)

	Employee benefits expenses
	4
	(103,462)
	(75,065)

	Repairs and maintenance expenses
	4
	(69,328)
	(72,522)

	Administrative expenses
	4
	(36,884)
	(33,072)

	Finance expenses
	4
	(249,152)
	(223,331)

	Other expenses
	4
	(56,911)
	(36,151)

	Total expenses
	
	(867,457)
	(783,248)

	

	Net result from operations before tax expense
	
	372,763
	214,060

	Tax expense
	5(a, b)
	(102,844)
	(56,218)

	Profit for the period after tax expense
	20
	269,919
	157,842

	

	Other comprehensive income/(expense) net of tax

	Gain on revaluation of non-current assets
	19
	-
	224,462

	Reversal of deferred tax liabilities recognised on revaluation of land
	19
	13,507
	-

	Net value gain/(loss) on cash flow hedges
	19
	14
	(67)

	Total other comprehensive income net of tax
	
	13,521
	224,395

	

	Total comprehensive income for the period after tax expense
	
	283,440
	382,237


The above Statement of Comprehensive Income should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Statement of Financial Position
As at 30 June 2012

	
	Notes
	2012 $000
	2011 $000

	ASSETS 

Current assets

	Cash and cash equivalents
	6, 21
	228
	1,849

	Trade and other receivables
	7(a), 21
	78,228
	95,959

	Other current assets
	8
	7,939
	7,738

	Biological assets
	10
	-
	1,159

	
	
	86,395
	106,705

	Non-current assets classified as held for sale
	9
	11,242
	2,937

	Total current assets
	
	97,637
	109,642

	Non-current assets
	

	Property, plant and equipment
	11(a)
	9,920,689
	9,625,895

	Intangible assets
	11(b)
	15,803
	13,056

	Receivables
	7(b), 21
	-
	5,679

	Other non-current assets
	12
	-
	200

	Total non-current assets
	
	9,936,492
	9,644,830

	Total assets
	
	10,034,129
	9,754,472

	LIABILITIES

Current liabilities
	

	Trade and other payables
	13(a), 21
	264,309
	281,078

	Interest bearing liabilities
	14(a), 21
	789,335
	951,780

	Provisions
	15(a), 25
	16,961
	72,100

	Current tax liability
	5(c)
	45,617
	35,232

	Employee benefits
	17(a)
	26,406
	25,305

	Total current liabilities
	
	1,142,628
	1,365,495

	Non-current liabilities
	

	Trade and other payables
	13(b), 21
	1,701
	5,475

	Interest bearing liabilities
	14(b), 21
	3,045,753
	2,666,288

	Provisions
	15(b), 25
	1,082
	198

	Net deferred tax liabilities
	16
	1,272,575
	1,326,931

	Employee benefits
	17(b)
	31,371
	15,270

	Total non-current liabilities
	
	4,352,482
	4,014,162

	Total liabilities
	
	5,495,110
	5,379,657

	

	Net assets
	
	4,539,019
	4,374,815

	EQUITY
Contributed equity
	18
	559,116
	559,952

	Reserves
	19
	2,303,724
	2,292,504

	Retained profits
	20
	1,676,179
	1,522,359

	Total equity
	
	4,539,019
	4,374,815


The above Statement of Financial Position should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended 30 June 2012

	
	Notes
	Contributed Equity $000
	Reserves $000
	Retained Profits $000
	Total $000

	Balance at 1 July 2011
	
	559,952
	2,292,504
	1,522,359
	4,374,815

	Comprehensive income for the period

	Profit for the period after tax expense
	
	-
	-
	269,919
	269,919

	Other comprehensive income for the period after tax expense
	
	-
	11,220
	2,301
	13,521

	Total comprehensive income for the period
	
	-
	11,220
	272,220
	283,440

	Transactions with equity holders in their capacity as equity holders

	Dividends paid
	24
	-
	-
	(118,400) 
	(118,400)

	Net decrease in contributed equity
	18
	(836)


	-


	-


	(836)

	Total transactions with owners
	
	(836)

	-


	(118,400) 
	(119,236)

	Balance at 30 June 2012
	18, 19, 20
	559,116
	2,303,724
	1,676,179
	4,539,019

	

	Balance at 1 July 2010
	
	559,326
	2,069,480
	1,389,646
	4,018,452

	Comprehensive income for the period

	Profit for the period after tax expense
	
	-
	-
	157,842
	157,842

	Other comprehensive income for the period after tax expense
	
	-
	223,024
	1,371
	224,395

	Total comprehensive income for the period
	
	-
	223,024
	159,213
	382,237

	Transactions with equity holders in their capacity as equity holders

	Dividends paid
	24
	-
	-
	(26,500) 
	(26,500)

	Net increase in contributed equity
	18
	626
	-
	-


	626

	Total transactions with owners
	
	626
	-
	(26,500) 
	(25,874)

	Balance at 30 June 2011
	18, 19, 20
	559,952
	2,292,504
	1,522,359
	4,374,815


The above Statement of Changes in Equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended 30 June 2012

	
	Notes
	2012 $000
	2011 $000

	Cash flows from operating activities

	Receipts from customers (inclusive of goods and service tax)
	
	1,211,642
	968,265

	Payments to suppliers and employees (inclusive of goods and service tax)
	
	(418,702)


	(438,250)

	Income tax paid
	
	(133,308)
	(116,625)

	Interest received
	
	112
	122

	Interest and other costs of finance paid
	
	(244,722) 
	(211,752)

	Other receipts
	
	114,178
	64,865

	Net cash inflow from operating activities
	31
	529,200
	266,626

	Cash flows from investing activities

	Payments for property, plant, equipment and works in progress
	
	(636,771) 
	(814,280)

	Proceeds from sales of property, plant and equipment
	
	7,331


	28,479

	Net cash outflow from investing activities
	
	(629,440)
	(785,801)

	Cash flows from financing activities

	Proceeds from borrowings
	1(r), 2
	2,186,207
	1,394,179

	Repayment of borrowings
	1(r), 2
	(1,968,983)
	(846,379)

	Repayments for outstanding finance lease liability
	
	(205)
	(430)

	Dividends paid
	24
	(118,400)
	(26,500)

	Net cash inflow from financing activities
	
	98,619
	520,870

	Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents
	
	(1,621) 
	1,695

	Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the financial year
	
	1,849
	154

	Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the financial year
	6
	228
	1,849


The above Statement of Cash Flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Financial Statements
Notes to the Financial Report

1 Summary of significant accounting policies

(a) Basis of Accounting

(i) General

These Financial Statements of Melbourne Water Corporation ("the Corporation") represent the audited general purpose financial report that consists of a Statement of Comprehensive Income, Statement of Financial Position, Statement of Changes in Equity, Statement of Cash Flows and Notes accompanying these statements. This general purpose financial report complies with Australian equivalents to International Financial Reporting Standards (AIFRS), other authoritative pronouncements of the Australian Accounting Standards Board, including Australia interpretations, the requirements of the Financial Management Act 1994 and applicable Ministerial Directions. These financial statements have been prepared on accrual and going concern bases. The Financial Statements were authorised for issue by the Directors on the 5th day of September 2012.

(i i) Accounting policies

Unless otherwise stated, all accounting policies applied are consistent with those of the prior year. Where appropriate, comparative figures have been amended to accord with current presentation and disclosure made of material changes.

(i i i) Classification between current and non-current

In the determination of whether an asset or liability is current or non-current, consideration is given to the time when each asset or liability is expected to be realised or paid. The asset or liability is classified as current if it is expected to be turned over within the next twelve months, being the Corporation's operational cycle - see Note 1(q) for a variation in relation to employee benefits, and Note 1(r) for a variation in relation to borrowings.

(iv) Rounding

Unless otherwise stated, amounts in the report have been rounded to the nearest thousand dollars.

(v) Historical cost convention

These Financial Statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of certain classes of property, plant and equipment, biological assets and financial instruments.

(vi) Accounting estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with AIFRS requires the use of certain accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Corporation's accounting policies. Areas involving a high degree of estimates and assumptions, which can materially impact the financial statements relate to the actuarial assumptions used to determine the Corporation's estimate of the defined superannuation benefit liability and fair value of infrastructure assets, employee benefit provisions and commitments for the Victorian Desalination Plant. These assumptions and their related carrying amounts are discussed in Notes 1(q), 11, 15, 17, 22(h), 25 and 26.

(vi i) Financial statement presentation

The Corporation has adopted the revised AASB 124 which became effective on 1 July 2011. It provides a partial exemption from related party disclosure requirements for government-related entities and clarifies the definition of a related party. This has resulted in reduced related party disclosures for the Corporation relating to other government owned entities and comparative information has been re-presented so that it is in conformity with the revised standard.

(b) Revenue

(i) Bulk water and sewerage services

The Corporation collects bulk water and sewerage services revenue for providing storage operator and bulk water and sewerage services to retail metropolitan and regional water businesses.

Bulk water and sewerage services revenue consists of a variable metered component (based on volumes of usage) and a fixed fee (for service availability). The metered usage component of the revenue is recognised when the service has been used with settlement from date of invoice. The fixed fee service availability component of the revenue is recognised on a monthly basis with settlement at 14 days. Collateral is not obtained for this class of debtor. Bulk water and sewage services revenue is collected from the various water retailers.

The Essential Services Commission (ESC) regulates the prices and service standards for the provision of storage operator and bulk water and sewerage services. The ESC's general regulatory powers are set out in:

• the Essential Services Commission Act 2001;
• Part 1A of the Water Industry Act 1994; and

• a Water Industry Regulatory Order made under section 4D of the Water Industry Act 1994.

(i i) Waterways charges

Waterways charges are recognised in the year for which the rate is levied. Charges are levied either quarterly or annually. Waterways charges are collected by various water retailers on behalf of the Corporation. A lien is held over each property to ensure that any outstanding amounts are recovered upon sale of the property.

The ESC regulates the prices and service standards for the provision of waterways.

(i i i) Developer charges and contributions and contributed assets

Developer charges and contributions in the form of cash are recognised when received. Developer contributed assets consist of assets received free of charge or for nominal consideration and are recognised as revenue at fair value on completion of works and their acceptance by the Corporation.

(iv) Interest receivable

Interest receivable is recognised as revenue when earned and is accrued in accordance with the terms and conditions of the underlying financial instrument or other contract.

(v) Net gain from disposal of property, plant and equipment

Property sales are recognised on signing of an unconditional contract of sale. Property sales are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income on a net basis of sale proceeds less costs.
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(vi) Government grants and contributions

Grants from the Government are recognised at their fair value where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and the Corporation will comply with all required conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are included as deferred income in liabilities and are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income over the period necessary to match them with the costs that they are intended to compensate.

Government grants relating to the purchase or construction of property, plant and equipment are deducted in arriving at the carrying amount of the asset

Expenses

(c) Finance costs

Finance costs are recognised as expenses in the period in which they are incurred.

All qualifying assets (being assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale) are measured at fair value. Therefore, any finance costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of these qualifying assets are not required to be capitalised and will continue to be expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

Finance costs include interest on short-term and long-term borrowings, finance lease charges and the Victorian Government's financial accommodation levy.

(d) Taxation

The Corporation is subject to the National Tax Equivalent Regime (NTER), which is administered by the Australian Taxation Office (ATO). The essential difference between the NTER and the Commonwealth legislation is that the tax liability is paid to the State Government rather than the Commonwealth Government.

The income tax expense or revenue for the period is the tax payable on the current period's taxable income based on the national corporate income tax rate of 30%, adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements, and to unused tax losses.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised for temporary differences at the tax rate expected to apply when the assets are recovered or liabilities settled, based on those tax rates which are enacted or substantially enacted. The relevant tax rates are applied to the cumulative amounts of deductible and taxable temporary differences if they arose in a transaction, that at the time of the transaction did not affect either accounting profit or taxable profit or loss. Deferred tax assets are recognised for deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses only if it is probable that future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those temporary differences and losses. Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Assets

(e) Property, plant and equipment

(i) Recognition and measurement of assets

Property, plant and equipment represent non-current physical assets comprising land, buildings, water, sewerage and drainage infrastructure, plant and equipment assets used by the Corporation in its operations. Items with a cost or value in excess of $500 (capitalisation threshold) and a useful life of more than one year are recognised as an asset. All items with a cost or value less than $500 are expensed.

Cost includes such expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset. Cost may also include transfers from equity of any gains/losses on qualifying cash flow hedges relating to foreign currency purchases of non-current physical assets.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Corporation and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other subsequent costs are charged to the Statement of Comprehensive Income during the financial period in which they are incurred.

(i i) Repairs and maintenance

Routine maintenance, repair costs and minor renewal costs are expensed as incurred. Where the repair relates to the replacement of a component of an asset and the cost exceeds the capitalisation threshold, the cost is capitalised and depreciated over the remaining life of the asset.

(i i i) Valuation of non-current physical assets

All non-current physical assets are recognised initially at cost and subsequently revalued at fair value less accumulated depreciation and impairment in accordance with the requirements of the Department of Treasury and Finance's (DTF's) Financial Reporting Direction 103D Non-current Physical Assets.

Revaluations are conducted either independently (as required under FRD103D) or using management expertise and classified as a managerial revaluation. Any accumulated depreciation at the date of revaluation is eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the asset and the net amount is restated to the revalued amount of the asset.

The fair value of land and buildings is determined as the amount for which an asset could be exchanged between knowledgeable, willing parties, in an arm's length transaction. Crown land is measured with regard to the property's highest and best use after due consideration is made for any legal or constructive restrictions imposed on the asset. The last independent valuation of the Corporation's land and buildings was performed by the Valuer General Victoria (VGV) in 2010-11 to determine the fair value of the land and buildings, in accordance with FRD 103D as explained in note 11(a)(i).

The fair value of infrastructure assets is determined annually using the "income approach" (based on discounted cash flows), as explained further at Note 11 (a)(i i).
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The fair value of the remaining plant and equipment (consisting of plant and equipment, leasehold improvements, feet vehicles and works in progress) is determined based on cost less any accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses. This is deemed the most appropriate basis to approximate fair value given:

• there is no evidence that a reliable market based fair value or other relevant fair value indicators for these assets exists; and/or

• these assets are acquired and disposed of frequently, typically have short depreciable lives, and these assets are relatively low in value (with the exception of works in progress) compared to land and buildings and infrastructure assets.

(iv) Impairment

All assets are assessed for indicators of impairment on an annual basis. Such assets are tested to ascertain whether the carrying amount exceeds their recoverable amounts. At 30 June 2012, no indicators of impairment were present.

(v) Revaluations

Revaluation increments are credited directly to equity in the revaluation reserve, except that, to the extent that an increment reverses a revaluation decrement in respect of the same asset previously recognised as an expense in determining the net result, the increment is recognised as revenue in determining the net result.

Revaluation decrements are recognised immediately as expenses in the net result, except that, to the extent that a credit balance exists in the revaluation reserve in respect of the same class of asset, they are debited to the revaluation reserve.

(vi) Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets that are classified as held for sale are stated at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell, as their carrying amount will be recovered principally through a sale transaction, rather than through continuing use. The Corporation considers that the sale of these assets is highly probable and the assets are available for immediate sale in their present condition. These assets are not depreciated or amortised while classified as held for sale and are disclosed separately in the Statement of Financial Position.

(f) Depreciation and amortisation of non-current assets

Where assets have separate identifiable components that have distinct useful lives and/or residual values, a separate depreciation rate is determined for each component.

Depreciation on other assets is calculated using the straight line method to allocate their cost or revalued amounts, net of their residual values, over their estimated useful lives, commencing from the time the asset is held ready for use. The assets" residual values and useful lives are reviewed annually, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period. Land is not depreciated.

Major depreciation and amortisation periods used are listed below and are consistent with the prior year:

	Buildings
	10 to 100 years

	Leasehold improvements
	3 to 10 years

	Plant and equipment
	3 to 50 years

	Infrastructure assets
	3 to 200 years

	Fleet vehicles
	3 to 10 years

	Intangible assets
	3 to 5 years


g) Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, deposits held at call with financial institutions, other short-term and highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less, that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value. Bank overdrafts (if applicable) are shown within interest bearing liabilities on the Statement of Financial Position.

(h) Receivables

All receivables are recognised at the amounts receivable less any allowance for doubtful debts. Collectability of receivables is reviewed on an ongoing basis. Debts which are known to be uncollectable are written-off when identified. A provision for doubtful debts is established when there is objective evidence that the Corporation is highly unlikely to collect all amounts due according to the original terms of receivables. The amount of the provision is the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the effective interest rate. The amount of the provision is recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

(i) Other current assets

Other non-financial assets include prepayments which represent payments in advance of receipt of goods or services or that part of expenditure made in one accounting period covering a term extending beyond that accounting period.

(j) Inventories

Stores and materials are used in the construction of new works and for the repair and maintenance of existing assets. All stores are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

k) Smart Water Fund

The Smart Water Fund was established by the Victorian Government and is managed by the Corporation and the three metropolitan water retailers for the purpose of providing grant funding to support the development of sustainable water use projects. Each water business has a 25 per cent interest in the Fund.
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Contributions made to the Smart Water Fund are initially recognised as prepayments in the Corporation's Statement of Financial Position. Expenses are subsequently recognised by the Corporation when incurred by the Fund.

l) Intangible assets and research & development costs

(i) Intangible assets

Intangible assets (primarily consisting of Information Technology software) represent identifiable non-monetary assets without physical substance. Intangible assets are measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment. Costs incurred subsequent to initial acquisition are capitalised when it is expected that additional future economic benefits will flow to the Corporation.

Amortisation is allocated to intangible assets with finite useful lives on a systematic basis over the asset's useful life. Amortisation begins when the asset is available for use, that is, when it is in the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end of each annual reporting period. In addition, an assessment is made at each reporting period to determine whether there are indicators that the intangible asset concerned is impaired. If so, the assets concerned are tested as to whether their carrying value exceeds their recoverable amount.

(i i) Research & development costs

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in the period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from a development project is recognised when it is probable that the project will be completed and generate future economic benefits and its costs can be measured reliably.

Where no internally-generated intangible asset can be recognised, development expenditure is recognised as an expense in the period as incurred.

m) Biological assets

Livestock, including cattle, sheep and crops are held in connection with operating the Corporation's Werribee Agriculture Operations.

Determination of net increment/decrement of fair value less estimated point-of-sale costs

Livestock is measured at fair value less estimated point of sale costs. The fair value of trading livestock is determined with reference to market prices at the end of each reporting period. The fair value of non-trading livestock is determined by independent valuation at the end of each reporting period.

Changes to the fair value of livestock assets are recognised as a gain or loss in the Statement of Comprehensive Income in the period in which it arises.

Crops are measured at fair value less estimated point of sale costs. Changes to the fair value of crops are recognised as a gain or loss in the Statement of Comprehensive Income in the period in which it arises.

n) Goods and Services Tax

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of goods and services tax (GST), unless GST incurred is not recoverable from the ATO. In these circumstances, the GST is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense.

Receivables and payables (including commitments) are stated inclusive of GST. The net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the ATO is included as a current asset or liability in the Statement of Financial Position. Cash flows arising from operating activities are disclosed in the Statement of Cash flows on a gross basis (i.e. inclusive of GST).

The GST component of cash flows arising from investing and financing activities which is recoverable from, or payable to, the ATO are presented as operating cash flows.

Liabilities

(o) Leased assets

(i) Finance leases

Leases of property, plant and equipment, where the Corporation substantially bears all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership, are classified as finance leases. Finance leases are capitalised at the lease's inception at the lower of the fair value of the leased property and the present value of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding rental obligations, net of finance charges, are included in the Statement of Financial Position. Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and finance charges so as to achieve a constant rate on the finance balance outstanding. The interest element of the finance cost is charged to the Statement of Comprehensive Income over the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each period. The property, plant and equipment acquired under finance leases is amortised on a straight line basis over the estimated useful life of the asset.

(i i) Operating leases – expenses

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards incidental to ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases, net of any incentives received from the lessor, are charged to the Statement of Comprehensive Income on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease, in the periods in which they are incurred, as this represents the pattern of benefits derived from the leased assets.

(i i i) Lease incentives

In the event that lease incentives are received upon entering into operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a liability. The aggregate benefits of incentives are recognised as a reduction of rental expense on a basis which reflects the time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed.
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(iv) Leasehold improvements

Leasehold improvements are recognised at fair value less accumulated depreciation (as explained above in note 1(e)) and are amortised over the unexpired period of the lease or the estimated useful life of the improvement, whichever is the shorter.

(p) Payables

(i) Trade payables

Payables are recognised when the Corporation becomes obliged to make future payments resulting from the purchase of goods and services.

(i i) Accruals

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Corporation prior to the end of the financial year, which are unpaid. The amounts are unsecured and are usually paid within 30 days of recognition or in accordance with contract terms.

(i i i) Interest payable

Interest is recognised as an expense in the reporting period in which it is payable and accrued in accordance with the terms and conditions of the underlying financial instruments or other contract.

(q) Employee benefits

(i) Salaries and annual leave

Liabilities for salaries, including non-monetary benefits expected to be settled within 12 months of the reporting period, are recognised in employee benefit liabilities in respect of employees' services up to the end of the reporting period and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled, at their nominal values. Employee benefits which are not expected to be settled within 12 months are measured as the present value of the estimated future cash outflows to be made by the Corporation, in respect of services rendered by employees up to the end of the reporting period. Regardless of the expected timing of settlements, provisions made in respect of employee benefits are classified as a current liability, unless there is an unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period, in which case it would be classified as a non-current liability.

(i i) Sick leave

Sick leave payments are made in accordance with relevant awards, determinations and Corporation policy. No provision is made in the financial statements for unused sick leave entitlements as these are non-vesting benefits.

(i i i) Long service leave

The liability for long service leave is recognised in the provision for employee benefits and is measured as the present value of expected future payments to be made in respect of services provided by employees up to the end of the reporting period. Consideration is given to expected future salary levels, experience of employee departures and periods of service. Expected future cash payments are discounted using interest rates attached to the 10 year Commonwealth Government guaranteed securities as at the end of the reporting period with terms to maturity that closely match the estimated future cash outflows. Provisions made for unconditional long service leave (where the employee has a present entitlement to the benefit) are classified as a current liability. The non-current liability represents long service leave entitlements accrued for employees with less than 7 years of continuous service. Amounts expected to be paid within 12 months are measured at nominal value, and amounts expected to be paid beyond 12 months are measured at present value.

(iv) Superannuation

Defined contribution plans

Contributions to defined contribution superannuation plans are expensed when incurred.

Defined benefit plans

A liability or asset in respect of the Corporation's equipsuper defined superannuation benefit plan is recognised in the Statement of Financial Position and is measured as the difference between the present value of employees' accrued benefits at the end of the reporting period and the net market value of the superannuation plan's assets at that date. The present value of benefits is based on expected future payments which arise from membership of the plans at the end of the reporting period. Consideration is given to expected future salary levels, experience of employee departures and periods of service. Expected future payments are discounted using rates of the 10 year Commonwealth Government bonds with terms to maturity that match, as closely as possible, the estimated future cash outflows.

The amount brought to account in the Statement of Comprehensive Income in respect of superannuation represents the contributions made to the superannuation plan, adjusted by the movement in the defined benefit plan liability or asset which is determined annually by actuarial assessment.

(v) Termination benefits

Liabilities for termination benefits are recognised when the Corporation is demonstrably committed to terminating employment of current employees, according to a detailed formal plan without possibility of withdrawal. The liabilities for termination benefits are recognised as payables in the provision for employee benefits.

Liabilities for termination benefits expected to be settled within 12 months are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when they are settled. Amounts expected to be settled more than 12 months from the end of the reporting period are measured as the estimated cash outflows, discounted using market yields at the reporting date on the 10 year Commonwealth Government bonds with terms to maturity that match as closely as possible, the estimated future cash flows.

(vi) Employee benefit on-costs

Employee benefit on-costs, including payroll tax and workers compensation are recognised and included in employee benefit liabilities and costs when the employee benefits to which they relate are recognised as liabilities.

(vi i) Performance payments

Performance payments for the Corporation's employees are based on a percentage of the annual salary package provided under their contracts of employment. A liability is recognised and is measured as the aggregate of the amounts accrued under the term of the contracts at the end of the reporting period.
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(vi i i) WorkCover

The Corporation is registered as a self-insurer for workers compensation and is liable to the workers or workers' dependants to pay compensation under the Accident Compensation Act 1985. An independent actuarial assessment is obtained for outstanding claims incurred and not settled, and for claims incurred but not reported as at 30 June 2012 which are recognised as a liability. Other claims incurred and settled during the period are charged to the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

In accordance with Section 146(5)(a) of the Accident Compensation Act 1985, the Corporation must provide a bank guarantee to the Victorian Work Cover Authority as part of its Work Cover self insurance commitments.

Refer to note 17(i) for details of the independent actuarial assessment and bank guarantee.

(ix) Workers compensation

The Corporation continues to be liable for workers compensation claims incurred prior to the introduction of Work Care (now Work Cover) in 1985. An independent actuarial assessment is obtained for all outstanding workers compensation claims as at 30 June 2012, which are recognised as a liability.

Refer to note 17(ii) for details of the independent actuarial assessment.

(r) Interest Bearing Liabilities

Interest bearing liabilities consist of borrowings and finance lease liabilities. All borrowings are required to be transacted through the Treasury Corporation of Victoria whose liabilities are guaranteed by the Victorian Government.

The Corporation's borrowings are currently comprised of floating rate note (FRN) loans, fixed interest loans and an overnight loan (11 am account) facility. FRN loans are fixed term loans with a margin that is reset to a variable interest rate every ninety days. Generally, these notes are issued with maturity terms between 3 and 5 years. Fixed interest loans are interest only loans with the full face value repaid at maturity or refinanced for a new term. Most have maturity terms set between 1 and 12 years (2010-11: 1 and 12 years). The overnight loan facility interest rates are floating rates that fluctuate with the cash rate.

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, with interest expense recognised on an effective yield basis.

Where the Corporation has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the balance date, borrowings are classified as non-current liabilities. Otherwise, borrowings are classified as current liabilities. See Note 2 for further details on financing arrangements and risk management.

(s) Provisions, Contingent Assets and Contingent Liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Corporation has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and the amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. Where a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows.

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party, the receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that recovery will be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

Provisions for Gainshare on Capital Projects and Remediation Works are included within the cost of the non-current physical assets they are directly attributable to in accordance with criteria in note 1(e).

Contingent assets and contingent liabilities are not recognised in the Statement of Financial Position but are disclosed by way of a note, and if quantifiable, are measured at nominal value.

Other Significant Accounting Policies

(t) Foreign currency translation

(i) Functional and presentation currency

The functional and presentation currency of the Corporation is the Australian dollar.

(i i) Transactions

All foreign currency transactions during the reporting period are brought to account using the exchange rate in effect at the date of the transaction.

(u) Cash flow hedges

In order to hedge the effect of foreign exchange rate movements on the fair values of assets purchased, the Corporation occasionally enters into forward foreign exchange contracts. These hedges are classified as cash flow hedges with the associated gains or losses recognised directly in equity. As the hedged firm commitment results in the recognition of an asset, the associated gains/losses that had previously been recognised in equity are included in the initial measurement of the acquisition cost. These are accounted for at settlement date. The gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion is recognised immediately in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

At any point in time, any cumulative gain or loss on the cash flow hedge is retained in equity until the forecast transaction occurs.

If a hedged transaction is no longer expected to occur, the net cumulative gain or loss recognised in equity is transferred to the Statement of Comprehensive Income.
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(v) Commitments

Commitments (capital and other) are disclosed at their nominal value and inclusive of the GST payable. In addition, where it is considered appropriate and provides additional relevant information to users, the net present values of significant individual projects are stated. The Corporation assesses project costs of all commitments for inclusion in future pricing submissions to the Essential Services Commission.

(w) Contributed equity

Additions and disposals to net assets are designated as contributed equity when approved by the Minister for Finance and have met the requirements of FRD 119 Contributions By Owners. Other transfers that are in the nature of contributions or distributions have also been designated as contributed equity.

(x) Dividend policy

The Corporation is required to pay a dividend in accordance with a determination of the Treasurer of Victoria under the Public Authorities (Dividend) Act 1983, based on a prescribed methodology. An obligation to pay a dividend only arises after consultation with the Minister for Water and the Treasurer and a formal determination is made by the Treasurer.

(y) New Accounting Standards and Interpretations

Certain new accounting standards and interpretations relevant to the Corporation have been published that are not mandatory for 30 June 2012 reporting periods. The Corporation has not and does not intend to adopt these standards early. The Corporation's assessment of the impact of these new standards and interpretations is set out below:

(i) AASB 9 "Financial Instruments (December 2009)", AASB 2009-11 and AASB 2010-7 "Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from AASB 9"

The revised version of AASB 9 incorporates revised requirements for the classification and measurement of financial liabilities, and carrying over of the existing derecognition requirements from AASB 139 "Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement". This Standard supersedes AASB 9 (December 2009) and is effective for annual reporting periods commencing on or after 1 January 2013. The revised financial liability provisions maintain the existing amortised cost measurement basis for most liabilities. New requirements apply where an entity chooses to measure a liability at fair value through profit or loss. In these cases, the portion of the change in fair value related to changes in the entity's own credit risk is presented in other comprehensive income rather than within profit or loss. The Corporation does not expect this to have a material impact as all financial liabilities are currently measured at amortised cost.

(i i) AASB 13 "Fair Value Measurement" and related AASB 2011-8 and AASB 2012-1 "Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from AASB 13"

This standard is applicable for annual reporting periods commencing on or after 1 January 2013. It replaces the guidance on fair value measurement in existing AASB accounting literature with a single standard. The AASB defines fair value, provides guidance on how to determine fair value and requires disclosures about fair value measurements. However, AASB 13 does not change the requirements regarding which items should be measured or disclosed at fair value. The Corporation is currently assessing the impact and does not expect any material changes given that it is already applying the fair value requirements in existing AASB accounting standards which are not expected to change.

(i i i) AASB 1053 "Application of Different Tiers of Australian Accounting Standards", AASB 2010-2 and AASB 2011-2 "Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from Reduced Disclosure Requirements"

AASB 1053 and AASB 2010-2 are applicable to annual reporting periods commencing on or after 1 July 2013. AASB 1053 establishes a differential financial reporting framework consisting of two tiers of reporting requirements for preparing general purpose financial statements. AASB 2010-2 makes amendments to many Australian Accounting Standards, including Interpretations, to introduce reduced disclosure requirements to the pronouncements for application by certain types of entities. The Corporation is currently assessing the impacts and does not expect any material changes as it is expected that Tier 1 will be mandated to apply.

(iv) AASB 119 "Employee Benefits (2011)", AASB 2011-10 "Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from AASB 119 (2011)" and AASB 2011-11 "Amendments to AASB 119 (September 2011) arising from Reduced Disclosure Requirements"

An amended version of AASB 119 "Employee Benefits" with revised requirements for pensions and other post-employment benefits, termination benefits and other changes is applicable for annual reporting periods commencing on or after 1 January 2013. The key amendments include eliminating the "corridor approach" permitted by the existing AASB 119, introducing enhanced disclosures about defined benefit plans and modifying accounting for termination benefits, including distinguishing benefits provided in exchange for service and benefits provided in exchange for the termination of employment and affect the recognition and measurement of termination benefits. The Corporation is currently assessing the impacts which are expected to only be reclassifications to the relevant disclosures in the Annual Report.

(v) AASB 2011-9 "Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Presentation of items of Other Comprehensive Income"

This change is applicable to annual reporting periods commencing on or after 1 July 2012. The main change resulting from this Standard is a requirement for entities to group items presented in other comprehensive income (OCI) on the basis of whether they are potentially reclassifiable to profit or loss subsequently (reclassification adjustments). These amendments do not remove the option to present profit or loss in other comprehensive income in two statements, nor change the option to present items of OCI either before tax or net of tax. The Corporation is currently assessing the impacts which are expected to only be reclassifications to the relevant disclosures in the Annual Report.
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2 Financial risk management objectives and policies

(a) Principal financial instruments

The Corporation's principal financial instruments comprise of (as per Note 21):

(i) Cash assets;

(i i) Receivables;

(i i i) Derivatives;

(iv) Payables;

(v) Lease liabilities;

(vi) Advances; and

(vi i) Borrowings.

(b) Financial risk management objectives

The objectives of the Corporation's Financial Risk Management Guidelines and Procedures are to;

(i) Manage the daily and long-term liquidity needs of the Corporation;

(i i) Optimise cash resources, in such a way as to minimise net financing costs and maximise the repayment of debt within acceptable levels of risk;

(i i i) Ensure that all financial and treasury management operational exposures are fully identified, quantified, planned, approved and managed; and

(iv) Safeguard the organisation's financial resources by maintaining appropriate internal control over the corporate treasury functions.

These objectives are consistent with the Corporate Risk Management Policy and Framework of the Corporation, the Corporation's Commercial Management Policy, the Treasury Management Guidelines issued by the Department of Treasury and Finance and the Victorian Public Sector Debt Management Objectives.

(c) Financial risk management strategy

The Corporation manages financial risk by maintenance of approved debt portfolio structure and strategic targets. This includes:

(i) Portfolio composition (i.e. fixed, floating, indexed exposure):

The Corporation's debt portfolio is managed within the bands of:

Floating interest rate borrowings 10-40

Fixed interest rate borrowings 60-90%

(i i) Physical maturity profile:

Debt maturity of fixed and floating interest rate borrowings (excluding 11am account) is not to exceed 20% of the total debt portfolio in any year.

(i i i) Interest rate risk profile:

Fixed and floating interest rate borrowings maturing or to be re-priced within one year do not exceed 40% of the total debt portfolio.

Forward rate agreements are used occasionally where it is perceived that a lower interest rate can be achieved. The purchase of forward agreements is limited in terms of volume and time, and is subject to a maximum term of 18 months forward.

(d) Financing arrangements

The capacity to borrow funds and manage the associated risks is subject to the provisions of the Borrowing and Investment Powers Act 1987. In accordance with this Act, the Treasurer of Victoria issues annual approval, permitting new borrowings and the refinancing of all loan maturities for that year. All funding is sourced from the Treasury Corporation of Victoria.

The Corporation's total approved maximum borrowing for 2011-12 $4,166.3M (2010-11: $3,914.7M) was not exceeded at any stage throughout the financial year.

e) Capital Management

The Corporation manages its finances in order to maintain a satisfactory gearing ratio, to provide adequate returns, maintain its current credit rating and to ensure that it can fund its operations as a going concern.

There have been no changes to the strategy adopted by the Corporation to manage its finances during the year. The current gearing levels are considered appropriate given the Corporation's current and future funding requirements. The Corporation is currently reviewing the strategy adopted to manage its finances.

The only externally imposed capital requirements of the Corporation are that:

• financial accommodation does not exceed the approval limits set by the Treasurer of Victoria pursuant to the Borrowing and Investment Powers Act 1987; and

• the Corporation, with the exception of a trading account with overdraft facilities, is required to borrow exclusively with the Treasury Corporation of Victoria.
The Corporation's gearing ratio (debt/(debt equity)) for 30 June 2012 was 45.8% (2010-11: 45.3%). The increase compared to 2010-11 is mainly attributed to increased borrowing as a result of capital expenditure on projects.

Gearing is one of a number of commercial benchmarks considered by the Board when reviewing the capital structure and are approved via the Corporate Plan.
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f) Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices will affect the fair value or future cash flows of the financial instruments. Market risk comprises of the Corporation's foreign exchange risk, price risk and interest rate risk. The Corporation's exposure to market risk is primarily through interest rate risk. There is insignificant exposure to foreign exchange and other price risks.

Objectives, policies and processes used to manage these risks are disclosed below.

(i) Foreign exchange risk

Foreign exchange risk arises when future commercial transactions and recognised assets and liabilities are denominated in a currency that is not the entity's functional currency.

It is the Corporation's policy to hedge the effect of foreign currency exchange rate movements on the fair values of any transactions in excess of AUD$1M. The Corporation's policy requires all hedging to be undertaken through the Treasury Corporation of Victoria in the form of forward foreign exchange contracts.

At 30 June 2012, the Corporation did not have any material forward exchange contracts.

(i i) Price risk

Price risk is the risk that the Corporation will suffer financial loss due to adverse movements in the price of commodity inputs and/or outputs related to its business operations.

No significant exposure exists within the Corporation's present operating framework. Lower level exposures exist and supply and service contracts are executed as part of the normal course of business to mitigate this risk where possible.

(i i i) Interest rate risk sensitivity analysis

Exposures arise predominantly from liabilities bearing variable interest rates as the Corporation intends to hold fixed rate liabilities to maturity. At 30 June 2012, if interest rates had changed by +/- 50 basis points from the year end rates with all other variables held constant, pre-tax profit and equity would have changed by the amounts shown below:

	
	Profit or + Loss
	Equity

	Effect in millions of dollars
	0.5%
	- 0.5%
	+ 0.5%
	- 0.5%

	30 June 2012
Cash
	-
	-
	-
	-



	Interest bearing liabilities
	(5.2)
	5.2
	(5.2)
	5.2

	
	(5.2)
	5.2
	(5.2)
	5.2

	30 June 2011
Cash
	-
	-
	-
	-

	Interest bearing liabilities
	(4.3)
	4.3
	(4.3)
	4.3

	
	(4.3)
	4.3
	(4.3)
	4.3


g) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Corporation as a result of a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument failing to meet its contractual obligations in full and on the due date. The Corporation's exposure to credit risk is influenced by the individual characteristics of each customer.

All receivables are recognised at the amounts receivable less any allowance for doubtful debts. Collectability of receivables is reviewed on an ongoing basis. Debts which are known to be uncollectable are written-off. A provision for doubtful debts is established when there is objective evidence that the Corporation will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the original terms of receivables.

The amount of the provision is the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the effective interest rate. The amount of the provision is recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

As Trade Debtors are made up predominantly by the metropolitan water retailers, the Corporation's exposure to credit risk has been assessed to be minimal. These debtors are invoiced in two parts. The first part is a usage charge that is invoiced weekly and paid within seven days. The second part is an availability charge that is invoiced monthly and paid within 14 days.

The major exposure to credit risk arises from Other Receivables, which have been recognised net of any provision for doubtful debts. The receivable balance consists of a large number of residential and business customers which are spread across a diverse range of industries. Receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis to ensure that exposure to bad debts is not significant. The Corporation has in place a policy and procedure for the collection of overdue receivables.

All financial risk management instruments are transacted with the Treasury Corporation of Victoria, whose liabilities are guaranteed by the Victorian Government. The Corporation potentially has a concentration of credit risk with the Treasury Corporation of Victoria as the central borrowing authority of Victoria. This risk is considered minimal.
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h) Liquidity risk

The Corporation manages liquidity risk by maintaining and conducting efficient banking practices and account structures, sound cash management practices and regular monitoring of the maturity profile of assets and liabilities, together with anticipated cash flows.

The Corporation obtains annual approval from DTF for new borrowings, borrowings to refinance maturing and non-maturing loans and temporary purpose borrowing facilities.

The Corporation's financial risk management policies are driven towards optimal utilisation of cash with all funds repaid in borrowings. This results in a working capital deficiency of $1,056.2M (2010-11: $1,255.6M) at the end of the reporting period. The deficiency occurs at a point in time only due to timing of revenue receipt and does not reflect the permanent situation of the Corporation. This deficiency is funded by the financing arrangement with the Treasury Corporation of Victoria and there is no reason to indicate that the Corporation cannot pay its debts as and when they fall due.

The Corporation's financial liability maturities have been disclosed in Note 21.
3 Revenue and other income

	
	Notes
	2012 $000
	2011 $000

	a) Revenue

Sales revenue

	Bulk water services
	512,277
	379,702

	Bulk sewerage services
	406,911
	308,156

	Waterways charges
	213,845
	197,849

	Total sales revenue
	1,133,033
	885,707

	

	Other revenue

	Developer charges and contributions
	65,997
	52,837

	Developer contributed assets
	21,071
	23,250

	Interest revenue
	112
	122

	Biological assets
	4,941
	6,001

	Licence fees received
	2,556
	2,619

	Bad and doubtful debt expenses recovered
	15
	-

	Miscellaneous
	3,884
	4,695

	Total other revenue
	98,576
	89,524

	

	Total revenue
	1,231,609
	975,231

	

	b) Other income
Defined benefit plan superannuation income
	26(e)
	-
	1,040

	Net gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment
	4,968
	16,288

	Government grants*
	3,643
	3,211

	Gain arising from changes in fair value less estimated

point of sale costs of biological assets
	-
	10

	Gain arising from initial recognition of agricultural

produce
	-
	1,528

	Total other income
	8,611
	22,077

	Total revenue and other income
	1,240,220
	997,308


*Government grants
Government grants of $3.6M (2010-11: $3.2M) were recognised as other income by the Corporation during 2011-12 for various projects including the $10M stormwater project and Water Watch program.

All conditions attached to Government grants have been satisfied prior to their recognition in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. The recognition of Government grants with unfulfilled conditions have been recognised as deferred income (included in advances within trade and other payables) in the Statement of Financial Position.
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4 Expenses

	
	Notes
	2012 $000
	2011 $000

	Depreciation and amortisation expenses

Depreciation

	Buildings
	11(c)
	1,497
	767

	Leasehold improvements
	11(c)
	293
	518

	Plant and equipment
	11(c)
	9,161
	7,756

	Infrastructure assets
	11(c)
	221,216
	213,428

	Fleet vehicles
	11(c)
	1,079
	692

	Total depreciation
	
	233,246
	223,161

	

	Amortisation

	Infrastructure assets under finance leases
	11(c)
	2,158
	2,115

	Intangible assets
	11(c)
	7,178
	6,608

	Total amortisation
	9,336
	8,723

	Total depreciation and amortisation expenses
	242,582
	231,884

	

	Operational expenses
Materials, chemicals and laboratory expenses
	12,276
	13,705

	Energy expenses (including renewable energy)
	22,903
	23,121

	Agricultural expenses
	3,832
	8,454

	External expenses
	3,113
	2,923

	Transport expenses
	4,916
	4,859

	Grants and contributions expenses
	10,911
	11,941

	External professional services expenses
	13,086
	10,330

	Contract works
	29,210
	28,427

	Other expenses
	8,891
	7,463

	Total operational expenses
	109,138
	111,223

	

	Employee benefits expenses
Salary expenses
	60,115
	56,017

	Post employment benefits
	6,136
	4,860

	Annual, long service and shift leave expenses
	12,728
	7,242

	Defined benefit superannuation expense
	26(e)
	16,925
	-

	Other employee expenses
	7,558
	6,946

	Total employee expenses
	103,462
	75,065

	

	Repairs and maintenance expenses
Repairs and maintenance
	65,949
	69,431

	Information technology maintenance
	3,379
	3,091

	Total repairs and maintenance expenses
	69,328
	72,522

	

	Administrative expenses
Waterways charges billings and collection
	10,852
	9,941

	Information technology and telecommunication

expenses
	13,117
	11,781

	Legal expenses
	1,859
	1,071

	Education and training expenses
	2,811
	2,912

	Advertising expenses
	267
	609

	Other expenses
	7,978
	6,758

	Total administrative expenses
	36,884
	33,072
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	Notes
	2012 $000
	2011 $000

	Finance expenses
Interest expense
	214,134
	194,530

	Treasury Corporation of Victoria fees
	-
	18

	Financial accommodation levy
	35,018
	28,783

	Total finance costs
	249,152
	223,331

	

	Other expenses
Government rates and taxes (including land tax, FBT

and other)
	26,519
	20,647

	Rental and lease expenses
	3,183
	3,209

	Bad and doubtful debt expenses
	-
	46

	Assets written off/written down
	25,000
	10,005

	Other expenses
	2,209
	2,244

	Total other expenses
	56,911
	36,151

	Total expenses
	867,457
	783,248


5 Income tax

	
	Notes
	2012 $000
	2011 $000

	(a) Components of tax expense
Current tax
	147,808
	93,362

	Deferred tax relating to temporary differences
	(42,458) 
	(35,092)

	Adjustments for current tax of prior periods
	(2,506)
	(2,052)

	Total tax expense
	102,844
	56,218

	

	(b) Numerical reconciliation of income tax to prima

facie tax payable
Profit before income tax expense
	
	

	
	372,763
	214,060

	Tax at the Australian tax rate of 30% (2010-11: 30%)
	111,829
	64,218

	Tax effect of amounts which are not deductible

(taxable) in calculating taxable income:

	Adjustment in respect of income tax of previous year
	(2,506)
	(2,052)

	Non assessable and non deductible for income tax

purposes
	(1,964)
	(918)

	Assessable income/(Deductible expenses) not booked
	48
	(1,225)

	Research and development concession / incentive
	(4,563)
	(3,805)

	Income tax as reported in the Statement of

Comprehensive Income
	102,844
	56,218

	

	(c) Income tax payable
Current tax payable
	(45,617)
	(35,232)

	Total income tax payable
	(45,617)
	(35,232)

	

	(d) Income tax recognised in other comprehensive

income
Deferred tax arising on items recognised in other

comprehensive income:

	Net gain on revaluation of infrastructure assets
	19
	-
	4,826

	Net gain on revaluation of land and buildings
	19
	-
	11,844

	Reversal of deferred tax liabilities on revaluation of land
	19
	(13,507)
	-

	Net value gain/(loss) on cash flow hedges
	19
	6
	(26)

	Total income tax recognised in other comprehensive income
	16
	(13,501)
	16,644
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6 Cash and cash equivalents

	
	Notes
	2012 $000
	2011 $000

	Cash on hand
	18
	18

	Cash at bank
	160
	1,812

	Cash advances
	50
	19

	Total cash and cash equivalents
	21
	228
	1,849


7 Trade and other receivables

	
	Notes
	2012 $000
	2011 $000

	(a) Trade and other receivables - current
Total Trade debtors
	21
	44,462
	32,690

	Other receivables - current

	Other receivables
	19,268
	27,121

	Other receivables - Northern Victoria Irrigation Renewal

Project (NVIRP)
	-
	29,300

	Net GST receivable from the Australian Tax Office
	8,664
	6,895

	Sugarloaf pipeline security deposit*
	5,866
	-

	Less: provision for impaired other receivables
	(32)
	(47)

	Total other receivables
	33,766
	63,269

	Total trade and other receivables - current
	78,228
	95,959

	(b) Other receivables - non-current
Other receivables
	-
	61

	Sugarloaf pipeline security deposit*
	-
	5,618

	Total other receivables - non-current
	-
	5,679

	Total Trade and other receivables
	78,228
	101,638


* The Corporation was required to deposit $5M with the Treasury Corporation of Victoria (TCV) on 4 September 2008 as an environmental security deposit in relation to the Sugarloaf Pipeline project. This deposit is now classified as current as the security can be withdrawn by the Corporation when project environmental conditions have been fulfilled satisfactorily, which is expected to occur in the next 12 months. Interest is received at a floating rate.

(c) Ageing Analysis of Receivables

All receivables are recognised at the amounts receivable less any allowance for impaired receivables. Collectability of receivables is reviewed on an ongoing basis. Debts, which are known to be uncollectable, are written-off.

A provision for impaired receivables is established when there is objective evidence that the Corporation is highly unlikely to collect all amounts due according to the original terms of receivables. The amount of the provision is the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the effective interest rate. The amount of the provision is recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.
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	30 June 2012
	Current
	Past due but not Impaired
	

	
	Notes
	0-30 days $000
	31-60 days $000
	61-90 days $000
	91 days + $000
	Impaired $000
	Total $000

	Receivables Trade debtors
	7(a)
	41,980
	2,449
	10
	23
	-
	44,462

	Other receivables
	7(a)
	26,483
	77
	19
	6,819
	(32)
	33,766

	Total trade receivables
	68,463
	2,926
	29
	6,842
	(32)
	78,228


	30 June 2011
	Current
	Past due but not Impaired
	

	
	Notes
	0-30 days $000
	31-60 days $000
	61-90 days $000
	91 days $000+
	Impaired $000
	Total $000

	Receivables
Trade debtors
	7(a)
	12,786
	14,358
	5,526
	20
	-
	32,690

	Other receivables
	7(a)
	26,015
	7,446
	14,928
	20,606
	(47)


	68,948

	Total trade receivables
	38,801
	21,804
	20,454
	20,626
	(47)
	101,638


8 Other current assets

	
	Notes
	2012 $000
	2011 $000

	Prepayments
	2,057
	2,307

	Stores
	5,882
	5,431

	Total other current assets
	7,939
	7,738


9 Non-current assets classified as held for sale

	
	Notes
	2012 $000
	2011 $000

	Property, plant and equipment - held for sale*
	11,242
	2,937

	Total assets classified as held for sale
	11,242
	2,937


* The Corporation currently holds 36 lots of land for sale mainly as part of the Riverwalk (Western Treatment Plant) and Logis and Meridian (Dandenong Treatment Plant) developments. These lots were being marketed for private sale by Places Victoria (formerly VicUrban) during the 2011-12 financial year. At 30 June 2012, these lots were still on the market and an active program is underway to locate buyers.

Of the 171 lots of surplus land recorded as held for sale at 30 June 2011, 152 were sold in the 2011-12 financial year and are no longer recorded within held for sale assets. The remaining lots were still on the market and an active program is underway to locate buyers at 30 June 2012.
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10 Biological assets

(a) Nature of biological assets

In 2009-10, Melbourne Water and MPH Agriculture (MPH), finalised outsourcing arrangements consistent with the implementation of the Corporation's Western Treatment Plant Land Use Strategy. The Corporation has been working collaboratively with MPH over the last 2 years to enable a greater understanding of the site and determine the business plan best suited to the long-term sustainable management of the farm. MPH signed a contract with the Corporation on 28 June 2012 to enter into a twenty year lease agreement to manage the operations of the site. All livestock and other biological assets have been sold at 30 June 2012.

(b) (i) Reconciliation of fair value of livestock biological assets for 2011-12

	
	Cattle $000
	Sheep $000
	Total $000

	Biological assets

	Fair value at beginning of period
	426
	262
	688

	Gain arising from changes in fair value less estimated point of sale costs attributable to physical changes
	-
	-
	-

	Gain arising from changes in fair value less estimated point of sale costs attributable to price changes
	-
	-
	-

	Increases attributable to births
	-
	-
	-

	Decreases attributable to sales
	(380)
	(255)
	(635)

	Decreases attributable to death
	(46)
	(7)
	(53)

	Fair value at end of period
	-
	-
	-


(b) (i i) Reconciliation of fair value of livestock biological assets for 2010-11

	
	Cattle $000
	Sheep $000
	Total $000

	Biological assets

	Fair value at beginning of period
	2,674
	305
	2,979

	Gain arising from changes in fair value less estimated point of sale costs attributable to physical changes
	962
	-
	962

	Gain arising from changes in fair value less estimated point of sale costs attributable to price changes
	38
	20
	58

	Increases attributable to births
	48
	-
	48

	Decreases attributable to sales
	(3,239) 
	(54) 
	(3,293)

	Decreases attributable to death
	(57)
	(9)
	(66)

	Fair value at end of period
	426
	262
	688
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(c) Reconciliation of fair value of wool and hay/crops biological assets

	
	Notes
	2012 $000
	2011 $000

	Fair value at beginning of period
	471
	379

	Fair value less estimated point of sale costs of agricultural produce harvested during the period
	-
	518

	Loss arising from changes in fair value less point of sale costs attributable to price changes
	-
	(48)

	Decreases attributable to sales
	(221)
	(238)

	Decreases attributable to internal consumption
	(250)
	(259)

	Increases due to purchases
	-
	119

	Fair value at end of period
	-
	471


(d) Representing biological assets:

	
	Notes
	2012 $000
	2011 $000

	Current biological assets
	
	-
	1,159

	Total biological assets
	
	-
	1,159


(e) Significant assumptions

Market values for each herd type are determined after assessing a number of key independent market indicators to ensure the values determined are representative of the full herd.

Cattle:

Trading cattle

Prices for these cattle generally reflect the shorter term spot prices available in the market place. Relevant market indicators include the carcass weight rates published by the Meat and Livestock Australia Ltd (MLA).

Sheep:

Trading sheep

Prices for these sheep generally reflect the shorter term spot prices available in the market place. Relevant market indicators include the carcass weight rates published by MLA.

	Herd numbers
	Notes
	2012 $000
	2011 $000

	Cattle
	
	

	Trading
	-
	623

	Sheep
	
	

	Trading
	-
	2,821

	Total
	-
	3,444
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11 Property, plant and equipment and Intangible assets

	
	Notes
	2012 $000
	2011 $000

	(a) Classes of property, plant and equipment

Crown Land

	Crown land at fair value
	133,867
	133,774

	Total Crown land
	(i)
	133,867
	133,774

	Freehold land

	Freehold land at fair value
	1,023,058
	1,007,921

	Total freehold land
	(i)
	1,023,058
	1,007,921

	Buildings

	Buildings at fair value
	22,890
	19,575

	Less: accumulated depreciation
	(2,023)
	(23)

	Total buildings
	(i)
	20,867
	19,552

	Leasehold improvements

	Leasehold improvements at fair value
	7,054
	7,054

	Less: accumulated depreciation
	(7,054)
	(6,761)

	Total leasehold improvements
	-
	293

	Plant and equipment

	Plant and equipment at fair value
	83,303
	67,960

	Less: accumulated depreciation
	(63,118)
	(50,622)

	Total plant and equipment
	20,185
	17,338

	Fleet vehicles

	Fleet vehicles at fair value
	7,373
	4,746

	Less: accumulated depreciation
	(1,900)
	(797)

	Total fleet vehicles
	5,473
	3,949

	Infrastructure assets

	Infrastructure assets at fair value
	7,644,065
	6,700,657

	Less: accumulated depreciation
	(215,173)
	-

	Sub total infrastructure assets
	7,428,892
	6,700,657

	Infrastructure assets under finance lease at fair value
	39,490
	39,490

	Less: accumulated amortisation
	(2,158)
	-

	Sub total finance lease
	37,332
	39,490

	Total infrastructure assets
	(i i)
	7,466,224 
	6,740,147

	Capital works in progress at fair value
	1,251,015
	1,702,921

	Total non-current assets - property, plant and

equipment
	9,920,689
	9,625,895


(i) Valuations of land and buildings

A valuation of the Corporation's land and buildings was performed internally by management in 2011-12 to determine the fair value of the land and buildings using Valuer General Victoria (VGV) postcode and building/land use indices. This valuation indicated that the fair value of land and buildings has not materially changed from the previous valuation performed in 2010-11. The last independent valuation of the Corporation's land and buildings was performed by the VGV in 2010-11.
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If land and buildings were measured at historical cost, the carrying amounts would be as follows:

	
	Notes
	$000
	$000

	Land
	
	768,770
	742,344

	Buildings
	
	25,195
	27,239

	Total
	
	793,965
	769,583


(i i) Valuations of infrastructure assets

A fair value assessment of infrastructure assets has been performed by management at 30 June 2012, using the "income approach" (discounted cash flow) method. This assessment has indicated that there is no material change in the fair value of infrastructure assets from the previous valuation performed in 2010-11. The discounted cash flow method estimates fair market value by discounting reliable estimates of future cash flows to their present values. An independent review of the Weighted Average Cost of Capital input into the fair value assessment was performed by Deloitte. There were no major changes to the significant assumptions used in determining fair value since 30 June 2011 as summarised below:

- Nominal after tax discount rate in the range of 6.0% to 6.5% (2010-11: 6.25% to 6.5%)

- Long-term inflation of 2.5%

- Six year valuation model life (based on two water plan periods)

The last independent valuation of infrastructure assets was performed at 30 June 2010 by Deloitte. If infrastructure assets were measured at historical cost, the carrying amount would be as follows:

	
	Notes
	$000
	$000

	Infrastructure assets - owned
	
	4,871,778
	4,059,666

	Infrastructure assets - under finance lease
	
	20,910
	22,532

	Total
	
	4,892,688
	4,082,198


(i i i) Impairment

Property, plant and equipment is assessed for indicators of impairment on an annual basis. At 30 June 2012, no indicators of impairment were identified (30 June 2011: Nil).

(b) Intangible assets

	
	Notes
	$000
	$000

	Intangible assets at cost
	
	46,122
	35,938

	Less: accumulated amortisation
	
	(30,319)
	(22,882)

	Total non-current assets - intangible assets
	
	15,803
	13,056


(c) (i) Reconciliation of movement in property, plant and equipment and intangible assets for 2011–12

Legend:

A = Crown Land at fair value

B = Freehold land at fair value

C = Buildings at fair value

D = Leasehold improvements at fair value

E = Plant and equipment at fair value

F = Fleet Vehicles at fair value

G = Infrastructure assets at fair value

H = Infrastructure assets under finance lease at fair value

I = Capital works in progress at fair value

J = Intangible assets at cost

	2011–12
	A
	B
	C
	D
	E
	F
	G
	H
	I
	Total
	J

	
	$000
	$000
	$000
	$000
	$000
	$000
	$000
	$000
	$000
	$000
	$000

	Carrying amount at 1 July 2011
	133,774
	1,007,921
	19,552
	293
	17,338
	3,949
	6,700,657
	39,490
	1,702,921
	9,625,895
	13,056

	Additions
	-
	26,620
	2,813
	-
	12,175
	2,603
	973,917
	-
	-
	1,018,128
	9,642

	Disposals
	-
	(3,085)
	(1)
	-
	(167)
	-
	(22,428)
	-
	(425)
	(26,106)
	(1,755)

	Depreciation/amortisation
	-
	-
	(1,497) 
	(293)
	(9,161)
	(1,079)
	(221,216)
	(2,158)
	-
	(235,404)
	(7,178)

	Transfers between classes
	93
	(93)
	-
	-
	-
	
	(2,038)
	-
	-
	(2,038)
	2,038

	Assets classified as held for sale
	-
	(8,305)
	-
	-
	-
	-
	
	-
	-
	(8,305)
	-

	Revaluation increments
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-

	Revaluation decrements
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-

	Capital expenditure
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	547,110
	547,110
	-

	Capitalisation of works in progress
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	(998,591)
	(998,591)
	-

	Carrying amount at 30 June 2012
	133,867
	1,023,058
	20,867
	-
	20,185
	5,473
	7,428,892
	37,332
	1,251,015
	9,920,689
	15,803
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(c) (ii) Reconciliation of movement in property, plant and equipment and intangible assets for 2010111

Legend:

A = Crown Land at fair value

B = Freehold land at fair value

C = Buildings at fair value

D = Leasehold improvements at fair value

E = Plant and equipment at fair value

F = Fleet Vehicles at fair value

G = Infrastructure assets at fair value

H = Infrastructure assets under finance lease at fair value

I = Capital works in progress at fair value

J = Intangible assets at cost

	2010-11
	A 
	B
	C
	D
	E
	F
	G
	H
	I
	Total
	J

	
	$000
	$000
	$000
	$000
	$000
	$000
	$000
	$000
	$000
	$000
	$000

	Carrying amount at 1 July 2010 
	88,292
	823,766
	16,904
	811
	16,836
	1,347
	6,466,163
	41,551
	1,398,241 
	8,853,911
	17,009

	Additions
	627
	10,432
	7,068
	-
	8,304
	3,294
	438,822
	-
	-
	468,547
	3,456

	Disposals
	-
	(11,904)
	(31) 
	-
	(46) 
	-
	(9,243)
	(40)
	-
	(21,264)
	(801)

	Depreciation/ amortisation
	-
	-
	(767)
	(518)
	(7,756)
	(692)
	(213,428)
	(2,115)
	-
	(225,276)
	(6,608)

	Transfers between classes
	-
	-
	(2,352)
	-
	-
	-
	2,352
	-
	-
	-
	-

	Assets classified as held for sale
	-
	4,165
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	4,165
	-

	Revaluation increments
	44,855
	181,462
	-
	-
	-
	-
	15,991
	94
	-
	242,402
	-

	Revaluation decrements
	-
	-
	(1,270) 
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	(1,270)
	-

	Capital expenditure
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	753,055
	753,055
	-

	Capitalisation of works in progress
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	(448,375)
	(448,375)
	-

	Carrying amount at 30 June 2011
	133,774
	1,007,921
	19,552
	293
	17,338
	3,949
	6,700,657
	39,490
	1,702,921
	9,625,895
	13,056


12 Other non-current assets

	
	Notes
	2012 $000
	2011 $000

	Prepayments
	-
	200

	Total non-current assets - other non-current assets
	-
	200


13 Trade and other payables

	
	Notes
	2012 $000
	2011 $000

	(a) Current
Creditors
	42,144
	26,743

	Interest payable
	62,928
	58,498

	Accruals - other
	33,719
	48,780

	Accruals - capital
	112,309
	138,283

	Advances
	13,209
	8,774

	Total trade and other payables - current
	21
	264,309
	281,078

	

	(b) Non-current
Creditors
	-
	53

	Advances
	1,701
	5,422

	Total trade and other payables - non-current
	21
	1,701
	5,475

	Total trade and other payables
	266,010
	286,553
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14 Interest bearing liabilities

	
	Notes
	2012 $000
	2011 $000

	(a) Current

	Lease liabilities *
	22(d)
	535 
	480

	Borrowings *
	788,800
	951,300

	Total interest bearing liabilities - current
	21
	789,335
	951,780

	

	(b) Non-current
Lease liabilities *
	22(d)
	5,753 
	6,288

	Borrowings *
	3,040,000
	2,660,000

	Total interest bearing liabilities - non-current
	21
	3,045,753
	2,666,288

	Total interest bearing liabilities
	3,835,088
	3,618,068


* Interest bearing liabilities are unsecured (note - The Victorian Government does provide a guarantee to the Treasury Corporation of Victoria over its liabilities as detailed in note 2).

15 Provisions (excluding employee benefits)

	
	Notes
	2012 $000
	2011 $000

	(a) Current

	Insurance claims
	25
	1,783
	415

	Remediation works
	25
	-
	514

	Gainshare on capital projects
	25
	13,363
	68,618

	Other provisions
	25
	1,815
	2,553

	Total provisions - current
	16,961
	72,100

	

	(b) Non-current
Insurance claims
	25
	1,082
	198

	Total provisions - non-current
	
	1,082
	198

	Total provisions
	
	18,043
	72,298


16 Net deferred tax liabilities - non-current

	
	Notes
	2012 $000
	2011 $000

	The balance comprises temporary differences

attributable to:

	Amounts recognised in Profit or Loss
Property, plant and equipment
	440,467
	472,791

	Employee entitlements
	(8,421)
	(7,154)

	Developer contributions
	12,022
	14,545

	Finance lease
	2,325
	2,619

	Defend benefit obligation
	(6,596)
	(2,093)

	Provisions
	(1,703)
	(2,245)

	Revenue in advance
	(1,414)
	(2,864)

	Other
	(1,761)
	174

	Total recognised in Profit or Loss
	434,919
	475,773
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	Notes
	2012 $000
	2011 $000

	Amounts recognised in Other Comprehensive

Income

Gain on revaluation of land and buildings
	15,366
	28,873

	Gain on revaluation of infrastructure assets
	822,295
	822,295

	Net value loss on cash flow hedges
	(5)
	(11)

	Net deferred tax liability
	1,272,575
	1,326,930

	Movements
Opening balance at 1 July
	1,326,930
	1,345,374

	Credited to Profit or Loss
	(42,459)
	(35,092)

	(Debited)/credited to Other Comprehensive Income 
	5(d), 19
	(13,501)
	16,644

	Adjustment in respect of deferred tax of prior period
	1,605
	4

	Closing balance at 30 June
	1,272,575
	1,326,930

	Net Deferred tax liabilities to be recovered after more

than 12 months
	1,280,841
	1,333,767

	Net Deferred tax liabilities to be recovered within 12

months
	(8,266)


	(6,837)

	Total non-current liabilities - Deferred tax liabilities
	1,272,575
	1,326,930


17 Employee benefits

	
	Notes
	2012 $000
	2011 $000

	(a) Current
Accrued salaries
	611
	2,787

	Employee benefits expected to be settled within 12 months after the end of the period measured at nominal value
	6,778
	8,003

	Long service leave representing more than 7 years of continuous service measured at present value
	17,975
	13,383

	Other employee benefits
	1,042
	1,132

	Total employee benefits liability - current
	26,406
	25,305

	

	(b) Non-current
Other employee benefits
	6,003
	5,816

	Long service leave representing less than 7 years of

continuous service measured at present value
	3,380
	2,478

	Defined benefit superannuation 
	26(e)
	21,988
	6,976

	Total employee benefits liability - non-current
	31,371
	15,270

	Total employee benefits liability
	57,777
	40,575


The aggregate employee benefit liability includes amounts for annual leave, shift leave, long-service leave, salaries, Work Cover, superannuation and termination benefits. All employees of the Corporation are entitled to superannuation benefits upon retirement, disability or death through membership of the funds disclosed in Note 26.

(i) WorkCover

Based upon an independent actuarial assessment, a provision of $5.2M (2010-11: $5.7M) has been made for outstanding claims incurred and not settled, and for claims incurred but not reported at 30 June 2012. The value of the bank guarantee to the Victorian WorkCover Authority (as part of the Corporation's WorkCover self insurance commitments) at 30 June 2012 is $8.9M (2010-11: $8.6M).

(i i) Workers Compensation

Based on an independent actuarial assessment, a provision of $1.0M ($1.1M in 2010-11) has been made for all outstanding workers compensation claims at 30 June 2012.
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18 Contributed equity

	
	Notes
	2012 $000
	2011 $000

	Opening balance
	559,952
	559,326

	Capital transactions with the State in its capacity as

owner arising from:

	Adjustments relating to the transfers of Crown assets

(to)/from the Government
	(836)
	626

	Total contributed equity at the end of the year
	559,116
	559,952


19 Reserves

	
	Notes
	2012 $000
	2011 $000

	Asset revaluation reserve

Land

	Opening balance
	373,168
	160,439

	Revaluation increment on non-current physical assets
	11(c)
	-
	226,317

	Revaluation reserves transferred to retained profits on derecognition of asset
	20
	(2,301)
	(1,363)

	Decrement/(Increment) in deferred tax on asset revaluation
	16
	13,507
	(12,225)

	Closing balance
	384,374
	373,168

	Buildings

	Opening balance
	677
	1,574

	Revaluation decrement on non-current physical assets
	11(c)
	-
	(1,270)

	Revaluation reserves transferred to retained profits on derecognition of asset
	20
	-


	(8)

	Decrement in deferred tax on asset revaluation
	16
	-
	381

	Closing balance
	677
	677

	Infrastructure assets

	Opening balance
	1,918,685
	1,907,426

	Revaluation increment on non-current physical assets
	11(c)
	-
	16,085

	Increment in deferred tax on asset revaluation
	16
	-
	(4,826)

	Closing balance
	1,918,685
	1,918,685

	Closing balance (total asset revaluation reserve)
	2,303,736
	2,292,530

	Summary of movements in asset revaluation reserve

	Opening balance
	2,292,530
	2,069,439

	Revaluation increment on non-current physical assets
	-
	241,132

	Revaluation reserves transferred to retained profits on

derecognition of asset
	(2,301)
	(1,371)

	Decrement/(Increment) in deferred tax on asset

revaluation
	13,507
	(16,670)

	Closing balance (total asset revaluation reserve)
	2,303,736
	2,292,530


The asset revaluation reserve is used to record asset revaluation increments and decrements in the value of non-current physical assets.

	Cash flow hedge reserve

	Opening balance
	(26)
	41

	Gain/(Loss) taken to equity
	9
	(78)

	Decrement in deferred tax on cash flow hedges
	16
	5
	11

	Closing balance
	(12)
	(26)


The cash flow hedge reserve represents the gain or loss on conversion to Australian dollars of the cash flow hedge.

	Total reserves at the end of the year
	2,303,724
	2,292,504
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20 Retained profits

	
	Notes
	2012 $000
	2011 $000

	Retained profits at the beginning of the year
	
	1,522,359
	1,389,646

	Net profit for the period after tax expense
	
	269,919
	157,842

	Transfer from asset revaluation reserve
	19
	2,301
	1,371

	Dividends paid
	24
	(118,400)
	(26,500)

	Retained profits at the end of the year
	
	1,676,179
	1,522,359


21 Financial instruments

Financial instruments are shown exclusive of GST.

(a) Categorisation of financial instruments

	30 June 2012
	Notes
	Derivative financial instruments $000
	Contractual financial assets - loans and receivables $000
	Contractual financial liabilities at amortised cost $000
	Total carrying amount $000

	Financial assets
Cash
	6
	-
	228
	-
	228

	Trade debtors
	7
	-
	44,462
	-
	44,462

	Other receivables
	7
	-
	25,102
	-
	25,102

	Total financial assets
	-
	69,792
	-
	69,792

	Financial liabilities
Creditors, accruals & interest payable
	13
	-
	-
	(251,100) 

 
	(251,100) 
 

	Lease liabilities
	14
	-
	-
	(6,288)
	(6,288)

	Advances
	13
	-
	-
	(14,910)
	(14,910)

	Borrowings
11am overnight loans
	14
	-
	-
	(568,800)
	(568,800)

	Floating rate notes
	14
	-
	-
	(80,000)
	(80,000)

	Fixed interest
	14
	-
	-
	(3,180,000)
	(3,180,000)

	Total financial liabilities
	-
	-
	(4,101,098)
	(4,101,098)


	30 June 2011
	Notes
	Derivative financial instruments $000
	Contractual financial assets - loans and receivables $000
	Contractual financial liabilities at amortised cost $000
	Total carrying amount $000

	Financial assets
Cash
	6
	-
	1,849
	-
	1,849

	Trade debtors
	7
	-
	32,690
	-
	32,690

	Other receivables
	7
	-
	62,053
	-
	62,053

	Total financial assets 
	-
	96,592
	-
	96,592

	Financial liabilities Creditors, accruals & interest payable
	13
	-
	-
	(275,145)
	(275,145)

	Lease liabilities
	14
	-
	-
	(6,768)
	(6,768)

	Advances
	13
	-
	-
	(14,195)
	(14,195)

	Borrowings:
11am overnight loans
	14
	
	-
	(641,300)
	(641,300)

	Floating rate notes 
	14
	-
	-
	(160,000)
	(160,000)

	Fixed interest
	14
	-
	-
	(2,810,000)
	(2,810,000)

	Total financial liabilities
	
	-
	-
	(3,907,408)
	(3,907,408)
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(b) Net holding gain/(loss) on financial instruments by category

	30 June 2012
	Notes
	Net holding gain/(loss) $000
	Total interest income/ (expense) $000
	Fee income/ (expense) $000
	Impairment loss $000
	Total $000

	Financial assets
Financial assets - loans and receivables
	4
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-

	Derivative financial instruments
	19
	9
	-
	-
	-
	9

	Total financial assets
	9
	-
	-
	-
	9

	Financial liabilities

	Financial liabilities at amortised cost
	4
	-
	(249,152)
	-
	-
	(249,152)

	Total financial liabilities
	-
	(249,152)
	-
	-
	(249,152)


	30 June 2011
	Notes
	Net holding gain/(loss) $000
	Total interest income/

(expense) $000
	Fee income/ (expense) $000
	Impairment loss $000
	Total $000

	Financial assets
Financial assets - loans and receivables
	4
	(46)
	-
	-
	-
	(46)

	Derivative financial instruments
	19
	(78)


	-
	-
	-
	(78)

	Total financial assets
	(124)
	-
	-
	-
	(124)

	Financial liabilities

	Financial liabilities at amortised cost
	4
	-
	(223,331)


	-
	-
	(223,331)

	Total financial liabilities
	-
	(223,331)
	-
	-
	(223,331)


(c) Interest rate exposure

At 30 June 2012, the Corporation has no significant interest-bearing assets. As such, the Corporation's income and operating cash inflows are not materially exposed to changes in market interest rates.

For the financial year 2011-12, the Corporation was exposed to interest rate risk on outstanding interest bearing liabilities. The mix of floating and fixed rate debt was managed strategically within a range of Board approved parameters, in order to minimise exposure to fluctuations in variable rates and to minimise the long-term net cost of funding. Refer to Note 2(c)(i i i) for more details.
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	Interest Rate Exposure

	30 June 2012
	Notes
	Weighted average interest rate %
	Floating interest rate $000
	Fixed interest rate $000
	Non interest bearing $000
	Total carrying amount $000

	Financial assets

Cash
	6
	4.28
	228
	-
	-
	228

	Trade debtors
	7
	
	-
	-
	44,462
	44,462

	Other receivables
	7
	3.45
	5,866
	-
	19,236
	25,102

	Total financial assets
	
	6,094
	-
	63,698
	69,792

	Financial liabilities Creditors, accruals & interest payable
	13
	
	-
	-
	(251,100) 


	(251,100)

	Lease liabilities 
	14
	11.03
	-
	(6,288)
	-
	(6,288)

	Advances
	13
	
	-
	-
	(14,910)
	(14,910)

	Borrowings
11am overnight loans
	14
	3.67
	(568,800)
	-
	-
	(568,800)

	Floating rate notes 
	14
	3.36
	(80,000)
	-
	-
	(80,000)

	Fixed interest
	14
	5.86
	-
	(3,180,000)
	-
	(3,180,000)

	Total financial

liabilities
	
	(648,800)
	(3,186,288)
	(266,010)

	(4,101,098)


	30 June 2011
	Interest Rate Exposure

	
	Notes


	Weighted average interest rate %
	Floating interest rate $000
	Fixed interest rate $000
	Non interest bearing $000
	Total carrying amount $000

	Financial assets
Cash
	6
	4.56
	1,849
	-
	-
	1,849

	Trade debtors
	7
	
	-
	-
	32,690
	32,690

	Other receivables
	7
	4.70
	5,618
	-
	56,435
	62,053

	Total financial assets
	
	7,467
	-
	89,125
	96,592

	Financial liabilities Creditors, accruals & interest payable
	13
	
	-
	-
	(275,145)


	(275,145)

	Lease liabilities
	14
	11.03
	-
	(6,768)
	-
	(6,768)

	Advances
	13
	
	-
	-
	(14,195)
	(14,195)

	Borrowings
11am overnight loans
	14
	4.92
	(641,300)
	-
	-
	(641,300)

	Floating rate notes
	14
	4.74
	(160,000)
	-
	-
	(160,000)

	Fixed interest
	14
	6.09
	-
	(2,810,000)
	-
	(2,810,000)

	Total financial liabilities
	
	(801,300)
	(2,816,768)
	(289,340)
	(3,907,408)
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(d) Fair value

The carrying amounts and net fair values of financial assets and liabilities at balance date are:

	
	2012
	2011

	
	Book value $000
	Net fair value* $000
	Book value $000
	Net fair value* $000

	Financial assets

Cash
	228
	228
	1,849
	1,849

	Trade debtors
	44,462
	44,462
	32,690
	32,690

	Other receivables
	25,102
	25,102
	62,053
	62,053

	Total financial assets
	69,792
	69,792
	96,592
	96,592

	Financial liabilities
Creditors, accruals & interest payable
	(251,100)
	(251,100)
	(275,145)
	(275,145)

	Lease liabilities
	(6,288)
	(6,288)
	(6,768)
	(6,768)

	Advances
	(14,910)
	(14,910)
	(14,195)
	(14,195)

	Borrowings
11am overnight loans
	(568,800) 
	(568,672) 
	(641,300) 
	(643,462)

	Floating rate notes
	(80,000)
	(80,016)
	(160,000)
	(159,876)

	Fixed interest
	(3,180,000)
	(3,576,151)
	(2,810,000)
	(2,946,437)

	Total financial liabilities
	(4,101,098)
	(4,497,137)
	(3,907,408)
	(4,045,883)


* Net book values are capital amounts. The differences between book values and net fair values relate principally to interest rate movements.

Net fair values of financial instruments are determined as follows:

Cash, deposit investments, short-term borrowings, cash equivalents and non-interest-bearing financial assets and liabilities (trade debtors and trade creditors) are valued at cost.

Other borrowings are estimated based on the present value of expected future cash flows discounted at current market interest rates quoted for securities issued by the Treasury Corporation of Victoria. Derivative financial instruments are measured at fair value.

(e) Maturity analysis of financial liabilities

The following table discloses the contractual maturity analysis for the Corporation's financial liabilities. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.

	30 June 2012
	Total carrying amount $000
	Total contractual cashflows $000
	1 year or less $000
	1 to 5 years $000
	Over 5 years $000

	Financial liabilities
Non-interest bearing
	(266,010)
	(266,010)
	(264,309)
	(1,701)
	-

	Variable rate
	(648,800)
	(676,640)
	(630,990)
	(45,650)
	-

	Fixed rate
	(3,186,288)
	(4,408,713)
	(191,145)
	(1,394,148)
	(2,823,420)

	Total financial liabilities
	(4,101,098)
	(5,351,363)
	(1,086,444)
	(1,441,499)
	(2,823,420)


	30 June 2011
	Total carrying amount $000
	Total contractual cashflows $000
	1 year or less $000
	1 to 5 years $000
	Over 5 years $000

	Financial liabilities
Non-interest bearing
	(289,340)
	(289,340)
	(283,865)
	(5,475)
	-

	Variable rate
	(801,300)
	(852,902)
	(756,613)
	(96,289)
	-

	Fixed rate
	(2,816,768)
	(4,113,197)
	(244,543)
	(1,052,118)
	(2,816,536)

	Total financial liabilities
	(3,907,408)
	(5,255,439)
	(1,285,021)
	(1,153,882)
	(2,816,536)
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22 Commitments

Commitments are shown inclusive of GST.

	
	2012 $000
	2011 $000

	(a) Capital commitments
Total capital expenditure contracted for the construction of water,

sewerage and waterways and drainage infrastructure at

30 June 2012 but not provided for in the accounts:

	Property, plant and equipment payable:

	Within one year
	107,575
	236,290

	Later than one year but not later than five years
	7,097
	46,130

	Total capital commitments
	114,672
	282,420


Significant projects forming the capital commitments balance above include: ETP Tertiary Upgrade Project and ETP Additional Aeration Tanks.

(b) Operating lease commitments

(i) Melbourne Water as lessee

The Corporation's Docklands building is held under a non-cancellable operating lease expiring on 30 June 2027. The Corporation also leases three other buildings under non-cancellable operating leases.

These building lease agreements have varying terms, escalation clauses and renewal rights. On renewal, the terms of the leases are renegotiated.

The Corporation also leased land, photocopiers and motor vehicles under non-cancellable operating leases.

	
	2012 $000
	2011 $000

	Commitments for minimum lease payments in relation to 

non-cancellable operating leases are payable as follows:

	Within one year
	7,500
	6,879

	Later than one year but not later than five years
	30,831
	32,056

	Later than five years
	97,914
	118,042

	Total operating lease commitment
	136,245
	156,977

	Lease incentives on non-cancellable operating leases included

in trade creditors is as follows:

Representing operating lease liability:

	Current (part of note 13a)
	-
	74

	Non-current (part of note 13b)
	-
	-

	Total operating lease liability
	-
	74


(i i) Melbourne Water as lessor

Operating leases relate to land owned by the Corporation with lease terms generally for a period of 10 years. All operating lease contracts contain market review clauses. The lessee does not have an option to purchase the land at the expiry of the lease period.

	
	2012 $000
	2011 $000

	Commitments for minimum lease payments in relation to

non-cancellable operating leases are receivable as follows:

	Within one year
	1,309
	1,371

	Later than one year but not later than five years
	2,158
	2,455

	Later than five years
	274
	341

	Total operating lease commitment
	3,741
	4,167
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(c) Smart Water Fund

The Corporation has a commitment to the Victorian Government's Smart Water Fund in the amount of $5.0M over the next 5 years (2010-11: $5.2M, 5 years). The timing of such payments cannot be reliably estimated and as such have not been disclosed in yearly bands.

(d) Finance lease commitments (excluding Victorian Desalination Project)

The Corporation has a finance lease agreement with TopAq Pty Ltd. The agreement involves the development of a water recycling project that uses effluent sourced from the Corporation's Eastern Treatment Plant and treats this effluent to produce and supply Class A Water to customers in the project area. This agreement commenced on 29 April 2005 and expires on 30 April 2020.

	
	2012 $000
	2011 $000

	Commitments in relation to finance lease are payable as follows:

	Within one year
	1,203
	1,203

	Later than one year but not later than five years
	4,810
	4,810

	Later than five years
	3,406
	4,610

	Minimum lease payments
	9,419
	10,623

	Less: Future finance charges
	(3,131)
	(3,855)

	Total finance lease liability
	6,288
	6,768

	Representing finance lease liability:

	Current (refer to note 14a)
	535
	480

	Non-current (refer to note 14b)
	5,753
	6,288

	Total finance lease liability
	6,288
	6,768


(e) Other operating commitments

	
	2012 $000
	2011 $000

	Total operating expenditure (excluding leases) contracted for at

balance date but not provided for in the accounts is payable as

follows:

	Not later than one year
	13,965
	11,767

	Later than one year but not later than five years
	18,645
	11,887

	Later than five years
	20,289
	5,275

	Total other operating commitments
	52,899
	28,929


(f) Build, Own and Operate (BOO) commitments

On 25 February 2000, Melbourne Water signed a Build, Own and Operate (BOO) contract with AGL to purchase a minimum of 21.2 GWh of Biogas Electricity (BGE) per year for a period of 10 years. AGL have a contractual obligation to supply the minimum amount.

Under this contract AGL will build, own and operate the power generation plant which has been constructed on land owned by Melbourne Water at the Western Treatment Plant. This arrangement became fully commercially operational on 1 July 2003.

On 1 January 2006, this was superseded by the Stage 2 contract with a new term of 15 years ending December 2020. This new agreement required AGL to expand annual BGE generation within the first five years from 51GWh to 71.5GWh, and to make all BGE output available to MWC at the contracted delivery rate.

The Stage 3 variation required AGL to commission hardware enabling MWC to export electricity to the grid; this was signed on 29th June 2009. Work was completed in May 2010 and new rates came into effect for both BGE purchases and exported electricity. In 2011–12, the import electricity part of the contract has been replaced to align with grid supply arrangements with AGL of other MWC sites.

This calculation has been based on both historical site data and contracted volumes of peak and off-peak electricity throughput.
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(f) Build, Own and Operate (BOO) commitments (continued)

	
	2012 $000
	2011 $000

	Future minimum obligations

	Not later than one year
	3,586
	2,360

	Later than 1 year but not later than 5 years
	14,340
	10,142

	Later than 5 years
	12,547
	12,208

	Total value of future minimum obligations
	30,473
	24,710


(g) Food Bowl Modernisation Commitment

Stage one of the Victorian Government's Northern Victoria Irrigation Renewal Project (NVIRP) had planned total expenditure of $1.004 billion.

The previous Victorian Government mandated that the Corporation will contribute $330M (including GST) towards the total investment in the project, and an agreement has been reached for the three metropolitan water retailers to make direct payments to the Corporation to finance this contribution.

At 30 June 2012, $297M (including GST) has been invoiced by DSE to the Corporation, and accordingly the Corporation has invoiced $297M to the water retailers. The amounts invoiced have been paid to DSE and reimbursed by the water retailers. The associated income and expense flows have been offset in the Statement of Comprehensive Income and the Statement of Financial Position to reflect the substance of the transaction being that the Corporation is merely a “pass through” agent.

	
	2012 $000
	2011 $000

	The remaining commitment payable to DSE

and correspondingly receivable from the

retailers is as follows:

	Not later than one year
	33,000
	22,000

	Later than 1 year but not later than 5 years
	-
	33,000

	Total commitment
	33,000
	55,000


(h) Victorian Desalination Project Commitment

On 30 July 2009, the State of Victoria ("the State") through the Department of Sustainability and Environment (DSE) entered into a 30 year Project Deed with the AquaSure consortium to build and operate the desalination plant in Wonthaggi under a Public Private Partnership (PPP) arrangement, with a connection to the Melbourne Water System. Construction of the desalination plant began in September 2009. The project operation term will commence from the date of commercial acceptance which is intended to occur by 15 November 2012.

The State has an obligation to make water security payments to the AquaSure consortium provided the plant is maintained to the appropriate standard. The water security payments comprise an operating and maintenance component, a capital component and a finance lease component including GST, where applicable. The State also has an obligation to purchase the High Voltage Alternating Current (HVAC) transmission line assets from the AquaSure consortium.

A Statement of Obligations (SoO) was issued to Melbourne Water under section 41 of the Water Act on 26 June 2009. The SoO requires Melbourne Water to pay all costs under the Project Deed with AquaSure.

Melbourne Water has also entered into a Victorian Desalination Project "Water Interface Agreement" (WIA) and a Supplementary Water Interface Agreement with the State to record the terms of the interface and financial arrangements between the Project and Melbourne Water.

At commencement of the desalination plant operations, a lease liability will be recognised by DSE for the obligation under the Project Deed to pay water security payments to the AquaSure consortium. A corresponding lease receivable will also be recognised by DSE reflecting the sub-leasing arrangement with Melbourne Water set out under the WIA. Melbourne Water will recognise a lease liability and a leased asset under the WIA.

The desalination plant assets are intended to transfer from the State to the Corporation at the end of the project contract term presently planned for 2039.

As per information provided by DSE, subject to commercial acceptance of the desalination plant, the Corporation will recognise the following finance lease liability, and an asset of equal value:
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	Present value
	Nominal values

	
	2012 $000
	2011 $000
	2012 $000
	2011 $000

	Uncommissioned public private partnership commitments
Minimum future lease payments:
Finance lease payable from commencement date *(i)
Not later than 1 year
	306,561
	121,297
	321,042
	127,911

	Later than one year but not later than five years
	1,679,657
	1,683,437
	2,260,735
	2,835,419

	Later than five years
	2,537,437
	2,718,921
	11,941,205
	11,941,205

	Minimum future lease payments
	4,523,655
	4,523,655
	14,522,982
	14,904,535

	Less: GST recoverable from the Australian Taxation Office
	(411,241)
	(411,241)
	(1,320,271)
	(1,354,958)

	Total minimum lease payments
	4,112,414
	4,112,414
	13,202,711
	13,549,577

	Other commitments *(i i)
Operation and maintenance commitments:
Not later than one year
	23,746
	10,207
	26,120
	11,227

	Later than 1 year but not later than 5 years
	154,949
	149,515
	215,928
	208,355

	Later than 5 years
	424,891
	418,441
	1,982,502
	2,039,412

	Total operation and maintenance commitments:
	603,586
	578,163
	2,224,550
	2,258,994

	Capital expenditure commitments
Not later than one year
	246,138
	-
	270,728
	-

	Later than 1 year but not later than 5 years
	15,124
	234,730
	21,084
	286,652

	Later than 5 years
	122,255
	114,305
	638,684
	644,269

	Total capital expenditure commitments
	383,517
	349,035
	930,496
	930,921

	Total other commitments (inclusive of GST)
	987,103
	927,198
	3,155,046
	3,189,915

	Less: GST recoverable from the Australian Taxation Office
	(89,737)


	(84,291)


	(286,822)


	(289,992)



	Total other commitments (exclusive of GST)
	897,366
	842,907
	2,868,224
	2,899,923

	Total commitments for public private partnerships (inclusive of GST)
	
	
	17,678,028
	18,094,450

	Less: GST recoverable from the Australian Taxation Office
	
	
	(1,607,093)


	(1,644,950)

	Total commitments for public private partnerships (exclusive of GST)
	
	
	16,070,935

	16,449,500


Notes

*(i) The present value of the "Minimum future lease payments" has been discounted to the date of commercial acceptance using the interest rate implicit in the lease.

*(i i) The present value of "Other commitments" has been discounted to the 30 June 2012 using a nominal pre tax rate.
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23 Contingent assets and liabilities

	
	Notes
	2012 $000
	2011 $000

	(a) Contingent assets
Details and estimates of maximum amounts of

contingent assets for which no provision is

included in the accounts, are as follows:

	Claims or possible claims by the Corporation

arising out of various matters connected with

the Corporation's business dealings.
	35,119
	17,000

	Total contingent assets
	35,119
	17,000

	(b) Contingent liabilities
Details and estimates of maximum amounts of

contingent liabilities for which no provision is

included in the accounts, are as follows:

	Claims or possible claims against the

Corporation arising out of various matters

connected with the Corporation's business

dealings.
	4,074
	2,074

	Possible gainshare payable by the Corporation on capital projects (not yet able to be measured with sufficient reliability as a provision).
	25(i i i) & (v)
	3,718
	33,171

	Total contingent liabilities
	7,792
	35,245


24 Dividends

	
	Notes
	2012 $000
	2011 $000

	Final dividend paid (relating to previous financial year)
	
	118,400
	26,500

	Interim dividend paid (relating to current financial year)
	
	-
	-

	Total dividends paid
	20
	118,400
	26,500


The Corporation's net profit, after providing for income tax, was $269.9M (2010-11: $157.8M). A final dividend of $118.4M in relation to the 2010-11 financial year was paid in November 2011. There has been no interim dividend payment made or determined in relation to the 2011-12 financial year. The amount of any interim and final dividend for the 2011-12 financial year will be determined by the Treasurer of Victoria after consultation with the Corporation's Board of Directors and the Minister for Water and consequently no provision has been recorded as at 30 June 2012.

25 Provisions

(i) Insurance Claims

The amount represents a provision for public liability, motor vehicle and property claims. The amount classified as current is expected to be settled within 12 months. The amount classified as non-current is expected to be settled later than 12 months. The provision amounts are based on an independent assessment of claim costs.

(i i) Remediation Works

The balance in 2010-11 represented a provision for remediation works at the Riverwalk Estate at Werribee. There is no 2011-12 provision as the amount cannot be reliably estimated, but there is a contingency of $0.6M included in the amount at note 23(b).

(i i i) Gainshare on Capital Projects

The amount represents a provision for "gainshare" on capital projects. The amount classified as current represents the expected completion of works within the next 12 months. The amount classified as non-current represents works expected to be completed later than 12 months.

(iv) Other provisions

The amount represents other provisions that satisfy the recognition requirements of AASB 137 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets. The amount is based on legal advice and is expected to be settled within 12 months.
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(v) Movements in Provisions

Movements in each class of provision, other than employee benefits, are set out below:

	
	Insurance Claims $000
	Remediation Works $000
	Gainshare on Capital Projects $000
	Other Provisions $000
	Total $000

	Carrying amount at 1 July 2011
	613
	514
	68,618
	2,553
	72,299

	Additional provisions recognised 
	2,744
	396
	14,289
	395
	17,824

	Amounts utilised during the year
	(492)


	(910)


	(69,544)


	(1,133)


	(72,079)

	Carrying amount at 30 June 2012
	2,865

	-

	13,363

	1,815

	18,043


	
	Insurance Claims $000
	Remediation Works $000
	Gainshare on Capital Projects $000
	Other Provisions $000
	Total $000

	Carrying amount at 1 July 2010
	1,089
	4,643
	71,761
	2,491
	79,985

	Additional provisions recognised
	497
	-
	20,604
	299
	21,400

	Amounts utilised during the year
	(973)


	(4,129)


	(23,747)


	(237)


	(29,086)

	Carrying amount at 30 June 2011
	613

	514

	68,618

	2,553

	72,299


26 Defined superannuation benefit

Defined benefit superannuation

The equipsuper superannuation fund provides lump sum benefits based on length of service and final superannuable salary for employees engaged up until 31 December 1993. Employees contribute at rates between 0 to 7.5 per cent of their superannuation salary. The Corporation contributes to the fund based on the Corporation's commitments under the Employee Participation Agreement and Contribution Policy with the Trustee of the Fund.

	
	2012 $000
	2011 $000

	(a) Employer contributions
Employer contributions to defined contribution funds
	5,956
	6,296

	Employer contributions to the defined benefit fund
	1,913
	1,069

	Total employer contributions
	7,869
	7,365

	(b) Reconciliation of the Present Value of the Defined

	Benefit Obligation

Balance at the beginning of the year
	104,807
	100,174

	Current service cost
	2,651
	2,200

	Interest cost
	4,441
	4,268

	Contributions by Plan participants
	1,185
	1,210

	Actuarial losses
	9,485
	242

	Benefits paid
	(7,130)
	(2,817)

	Taxes and premiums paid
	(486)
	(470)

	Transfers in
	-
	-

	Present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the year
	114,953
	104,807
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	Notes
	2012 $000
	2011 $000

	(c) Reconciliation of the Fair Value of Plan Assets

	Balance at the beginning of the year
	97,831
	90,221

	Expected return on Plan assets
	6,578
	5,979

	Actuarial losses
	(6,926) 
	1,771

	Employer contributions
	1,913
	1,937

	Contributions by Plan participants
	1,185
	1,210

	Benefits paid
	(7,130)
	(2,817)

	Taxes and premiums paid
	(486)
	(470)

	Transfers in
	-
	-

	Fair value of Plan assets at the end of the year
	92,965
	97,831

	(d) Reconciliation of the Assets and Liabilities

	Recognised in the Statement of Financial Position
Present value of the defined benefit obligation
	114,953
	104,807

	Less: fair value of Plan assets
	(92,965)
	(97,831)

	*Net superannuation liability
	17
	21,988
	6,976


Defined contribution superannuation

Employees engaged from 1 January 1994 are entitled to benefits under accumulation funds. The majority of these employees are covered by Vision Super Pty Ltd. Employees have the opportunity to make personal contributions to this fund (or other funds) at a self-nominated rate or amount. The minimum employer contribution to the fund, pursuant to the Superannuation Guarantee Charge was 9.0 per cent in 2011–12 (2010–11: 9.0 per cent).

* The Corporation has recognised a liability in the Statement of Financial Position in respect of its defined superannuation benefit arrangements at 30 June 2012 (2010–11: liability). If a surplus exists in the Plan, the Corporation may be able to take advantage of it in the form of a reduction in the required contribution rate, depending on the advice of the Plan's actuary. If a deficit exists in the Plan, the Corporation may be required to increase the contribution rate, depending on the advice of the Plan's actuary consistent with the Plan's deed. The contribution rate increased from 10.6% to 18.3% during the year ended 30 June 2012.

(e) Expense recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income

	
	2012 $000
	2011 $000

	Service cost
	2,651
	2,200

	Interest cost
	4,441
	4,268

	Expected return on Plan assets
	(6,578) 
	(5,979)

	Actuarial (gain)/loss recognised in year
	16,411
	(1,529)

	Total superannuation expense/(income) (Note 3 & 4)
	16,925
	(1,040)


(f) Categories of Plan assets

	
	2012 $000
	2011 $000

	The percentage invested in each asset class at the Statement

of Financial Position date was:

	Australian Equity
	35%
	35%

	International Equity
	27%
	27%

	Fixed Income
	11%
	12%

	Property
	10%
	10%

	Alternatives/Other
	10%
	10%

	Cash
	7%
	6%

	Total
	100%
	100%
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(g) Fair Value of Plan Assets

The fair value of Plan assets includes no amounts relating to:

a) any of the Corporation's own financial instruments;

b) any property occupied by, or other assets used by, the Corporation.

(h) Expected Rate of Return on Plan Assets

The expected return on Plan assets assumption is determined by weighting the expected long-term return for each asset class by the target allocation of assets to each asset class and allowing for the correlations of the investment returns between asset classes. The returns used for each asset class are net of investment tax and investment fees. An allowance for administration expenses has also been deducted from the expected return.

	
	2012 $000
	2011 $000

	(i) Actual return on Plan assets
	(348)
	7,750

	

	(j) Principal Actuarial Assumptions at the Balance Sheet Date

	Discount rate (active members)
	2.7% pa
	4.5% pa

	Discount rate (pensioners)
	3.0% pa
	4.9% pa

	Expected return on Plan assets (active members)
	7.0% pa
	7.0% pa

	Expected return on Plan assets (pensioners)
	7.5% pa
	7.5% pa

	Expected salary increase rate
	4.0% pa
	5.0% pa

	Expected pension increase rate
	3.0% pa
	3.0% pa


(k) Historical Information

	
	2012 $000
	2011 $000
	2010 $000
	2009 $000

	Present value of defined benefit obligation
	114,953
	104,807
	100,174
	91,327

	Less: fair value of Plan assets
	(92,965)
	(97,831)
	(90,221)
	(81,396)

	(Surplus)/deficit in Plan
	21,988
	6,976
	9,953
	9,931

	Experience adjustments (gain)/loss - Plan assets
	6,926
	(1,771) 
	(2,144) 
	(13,133)

	Experience adjustments (gain)/loss - Plan liabilities
	1,296
	(159)
	(1,337)
	5,124


(l) Expected Contributions

Employer contributions for defined benefit members during the financial year ending 30 June 2013 are expected to be $2.89M.

27 Related party transactions

(a) Parent entity

The Department of Sustainability and Environment (DSE) leads and directs the Corporation in the implementation of the framework for achieving the Victorian Government's responsibilities for sustainability of the natural and built environment.

(b) Entities with significant influence - Department of Treasury and Finance

The Department of Treasury and Finance (DTF) administers the Water Act 1989 and the Financial Management Act 1994, with which the Corporation is required to comply. DTF is responsible for protecting the shareholder's interest in respect of corporate business plans and capital project approvals above $50M (2010-11: $50M). DTF also collects income taxes, the financial accommodation levy and dividend payments from the Corporation.
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(c) Related parties with significant transactions

The following entities have the same controlling entities as the Corporation, and therefore are considered to be related parties of the Corporation.

City West Water, South East Water, Yarra Valley Water, Western Water, Gippsland Water, Southern Rural Water and Barwon Water

City West Water, South East Water, Yarra Valley Water, Western Water, Gippsland Water, Barwon Water and Southern Rural Water are Government owned water corporations with agreements with the Corporation that include bulk water and sewerage, bulk recycled water supply and biosolids storage arrangements. These agreements operated on normal terms and conditions during the reporting period.

Treasury Corporation of Victoria

The Treasury Corporation of Victoria (TCV) provides financial accommodation (loans to the Corporation), executes financial arrangements (derivatives) and provides/arranges the provision of financial services to the Corporation. Any investments above $2M are also required to be invested with TCV.

State Revenue Office

The State Revenue Office (SRO) is the Victorian Government's major tax collection agency. The SRO is a service agency of the DTF, which falls within the portfolio responsibilities of the Treasurer of Victoria. The SRO administers Victoria's taxation legislation and collects a range of taxes, duties and levies.

Places Victoria

Places Victoria (formerly VicUrban) is the Victorian Government's sustainable urban development agency. The Corporation is involved with Places Victoria in commercial arrangements associated with the development of land at the Dandenong Treatment Plant, surplus land at Werribee Treatment Plant and drainage developer works.

(d) Other related parties

The following entities have the same controlling entities as the Corporation, and therefore are considered to be related parties of the Corporation.

• Sustainability Victoria

• Parks Victoria

• Victorian Water Association (VicWater)

• Environment Protection Agency (EPA) Victoria
• VicRoads

(e) Transactions with related parties

	
	Notes
	2012 $000
	2011 $000

	Receipts from related parties
Department of Sustainability and Environment
	2,299
	3,321

	City West Water Ltd
	288,221
	248,924

	South East Water Ltd
	421,231
	353,737

	Yarra Valley Water Ltd
	428,075
	357,401

	Western Water
	9,287
	9,227

	Southern Rural Water
	40
	552

	Gippsland Water
	24
	50

	Places Victoria
	17,864
	33,462

	Other related parties
	2,761
	1,726

	Payments to related parties
Department of Sustainability and Environment
	24,319
	103,476

	Department of Treasury and Finance
	172,416
	176,021

	City West Water Ltd
	3,758
	3,784

	South East Water Ltd
	4,742
	5,547

	Yarra Valley Water Ltd
	5,770
	4,296

	Western Water
	147
	132

	Treasury Corporation of Victoria
	151,206
	136,050

	State Revenue Office
	27,080
	18,429

	Places Victoria
	15,107
	41,752

	Other related parties
	2,906
	4,078

	Dividend expense
Department of Treasury and Finance
	118,400
	26,500

	Equity contributions (transfer of crown land) Department of Sustainability and Environment
	18
	(836)
	626
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(f) Outstanding balances arising from sales/purchases of goods and services

The following balances are outstanding at the reporting date in relation to transactions with  elated parties:

	
	Notes
	2012 $000
	2011 $000

	Current receivables

City West Water Ltd
	9,940
	21,810

	South East Water Ltd
	13,366
	8,909

	Yarra Valley Water Ltd
	21,157
	32,529

	Western Water
	307
	261

	Southern Rural Water
	4
	-

	Treasury Corporation of Victoria
	5,866
	5,619

	Places Victoria
	-
	10

	Current payables
Department of Sustainability and Environment
	64,058
	43,704

	Department of Treasury and Finance
	8,898
	-

	City West Water Ltd
	142
	-

	South East Water Ltd
	58
	937

	Yarra Valley Water Ltd
	509
	-

	Western Water
	-
	28

	State Revenue Office
	147
	9,167

	Treasury Corporation of Victoria
	13(a), 14(a)
	851,728
	1,009,798

	Places Victoria
	635
	10,242

	Non-current payables
Treasury Corporation of Victoria
	14(b)
	3,040,000
	2,660,000


(g) Terms and conditions

Transactions relating to dividends are subject to final determination by the Treasurer after consultation with the Corporation's Board of Directors and the Minister for Water.

Transactions relating to equity contributions are determined by the DSE in consultation with the Corporation.

Transactions relating to trading activities of the Corporation including sale of bulk water, sale of sewage services and collection of drainage rates are based on normal commercial terms and conditions.

Outstanding balances are unsecured and are repayable in cash.

(h) Guarantees

There are no guarantees given or received for the current and non-current payables, current receivables and borrowings.
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28 Responsible persons disclosures

(a) Responsible persons

The names of persons who were responsible persons at anytime during the financial year were: The Hon. Peter Walsh MP, Minister for Water (1 July 2011 to 30 June 2012)

Board Members

	Chairman
	Eleanor Underwood
	1 July 2011 to 30 June 2012

	Deputy Chairman
	Merran Kelsall
	1 July 2011 to 30 September 2011

	Deputy Chairman
	Peter Vines*
	1 July 2011 to 30 June 2012

	Director
	Dana Hlavacek
	1 October 2011 to 30 June 2012

	Director
	Maria Wilton
	1 July 2011 to 30 June 2012

	Director
	Mary Anne Hartley
	1 July 2011 to 6 October 2011

	Managing Director
	Shaun Cox
	1 July 2011 to 30 June 2012

	Director
	Terry Larkins
	1 July 2011 to 30 June 2012

	Director
	Warren Hodgson
	1 July 2011 to 30 June 2012


*Commenced as Deputy Chairman from 1 October 2011

Remuneration of responsible persons

Remuneration paid to the Minister is reported in the Annual Report of the Department of Premier and Cabinet.

Other relevant interests are declared in the Register of Members' Interests which each Member of Parliament completes.

The number of responsible persons whose remuneration from the Corporation was within the specified bands were as follows:

	
	Total Remuneration

	
	2012 Number
	2011 Number

	Income Band ($)
	
	

	10,000 - 19,999
	2
	-

	20,000 - 29,999
	-
	-

	30,000 - 39,999
	1
	-

	40,000 - 49,999
	4
	6

	70,000 - 79,999
	-
	-

	90,000 - 99,999
	1
	1

	100,000 - 109,999
	-
	1

	370,000 - 379,999
	-
	1

	410,000 - 419,999
	-
	-

	420,000 - 429,999
	1
	-

	Total numbers
	9
	9

	

	
	2012 $000
	2011 $000

	Total amount
	778
	865
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(b) Related party transactions

There were no amounts paid by the Corporation in connection with the retirement of responsible persons of the Corporation during the 2011-12 financial year.

There were no loans in existence by the Corporation to responsible persons or related parties during the 2011-12 financial year.

Related party transactions involving Board Members are as follows:

	
	2012 $000
	2011 $000

	(i) Terry Larkins - Director
Terry Larkins, is the Chairman of Western Water. He is also a Director and Melbourne Water's representative at the Victorian Water Industry Association (VicWater). All dealings with these agencies were on normal terms and conditions during the reporting period.
	
	

	Total revenue received from Western Water was:
	9,287
	9,227

	Total payments made to Western Water were:
	147
	132

	Total payments made to VicWater were:
	55
	66

	

	(i i) Shaun Cox - Managing Director
Shaun Cox is a Director of Water Services Association Of Australia (WSAA). All dealings with this agency were on normal terms and conditions during the reporting period.
	
	

	Total payments made to WSAA were:
	358
	254

	

	(i i i) Merran Kelsall - Former Deputy Chairman
Merran Kelsall, is the Chair of the risk and audit committee of the Environment Protection Authority Victoria (EPAV) and a member of the audit committee of the Department of Business and Innovation (DBI). She is also a Director of the Auditing and Assurance Standards Board (AASB) and a Director of the Victorian Regional Channels Authority (VRCA). All dealings with these agencies were on normal terms and conditions during the reporting period.
	
	

	Total payments made to EPAV were:
	400
	924

	Total revenue received from DBI was:
	1,238
	-


All other transactions with related party entities were made on normal terms and conditions during the financial year.
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29 Remuneration of executives

The numbers of executive officers, other than responsible persons (as defined in FRD 21B Responsible Person and Executive Officer Disclosures in the Financial Report) whose remuneration (total and base) falls within the specified bands above $100,000 are as follows:

(Total remuneration is inclusive of bonus payments, long-service leave payments, redundancy payments and retirement benefits paid and payable. Base remuneration excludes these components).

	
	Total Remuneration
	Base Remuneration

	Income Band ($)
	2012 Number
	2011 Number
	2012 Number
	2011 Number

	100,000 - 109,999
	-
	-
	-
	-

	110,000 - 119,999
	-
	-
	-
	-

	120,000 - 129,999
	-
	-
	-
	1

	130,000 - 139,999
	-
	-
	1
	3

	140,000 - 149,999
	1
	3
	4
	9

	150,000 - 159,999
	-
	4
	8
	8

	160,000 - 169,999
	5
	5
	10
	5

	170,000 - 179,999
	7
	9
	4
	2

	180,000 - 189,999
	10
	5
	7
	7

	190,000 - 199,999
	5
	2
	1
	-

	200,000 - 209,999
	3
	7
	3
	3

	210,000 - 219,999
	3
	-
	-
	-

	220,000 - 229,999
	1
	-
	-
	2

	230,000 - 239,999
	3
	3
	2
	-

	240,000 - 249,999
	-
	-
	-
	4

	250,000 - 259,999
	-
	2
	4
	-

	260,000 - 269,999
	2
	-
	-
	-

	270,000 - 279,999
	-
	-
	-
	-

	280,000 - 289,999
	3
	4
	-
	-

	290,000 - 299,999
	1
	-
	-
	-

	300,000 - 309,999
	-
	-
	-
	1

	310,000 - 319,999
	-
	-
	1
	-

	330,000 - 339,999
	-
	-
	-
	-

	340,000 - 349,999
	-
	1
	-
	-

	350,000 - 359,999
	1
	-
	-
	-

	Total numbers
	45
	45
	45
	45

	

	Total annualised employee equivalent (AEE)*
	43.8
	43.7
	43.8
	43.7

	

	
	2012 $000
	2011 $000
	2012 $000
	2011 $000

	Total amount
	9,259
	8,719
	8,227
	7,906


* Annualised employee equivalent is based on working 38 ordinary hours per week over the reporting period.
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30 Key management personnel compensation

Key management personnel (as defined in AASB 124 Related Party Disclosures) includes the Managing Director and executive officers who have the authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the Corporation, directly or indirectly, during the financial year.

	
	2012 $000
	2011 $000

	Short-term employment benefits
	2,694
	2,715

	Post-employment benefits
	-
	-

	Other long-term benefits*
	568
	527

	Termination benefits
	-
	-

	Share-based payment
	-
	-

	Total amount
	3,262
	3,242

	

	
	2012 Number
	2011 Number

	Total numbers
	9
	9


* Other long-term benefits represents long service leave.

31 Reconciliation of net cash provided from operating activities to net profit

	
	Notes
	2012 $000
	2011 $000

	Profit for the period after tax
	20
	269,919
	157,842

	Plus/(less) non cash items:
Depreciation
	4
	242,582
	231,884

	Net (gain)/loss on sale of non-current assets
	3(b)
	(4,968) 
	(16,288)

	Assets written off/written down
	4
	25,000
	10,005

	Developer contributed assets
	3(a)
	(21,071) 
	(23,250)

	Changes in operating assets and liabilities

(net of investing items):
Decrease/(Increase) in trade and other

receivables
	23,425
	(45,839)

	Decrease in other assets
	1,159
	4,264

	(Decrease)/increase in provision for impaired receivables
	7(a)
	(15) 
	46

	Increase in trade and other payables
	2,643
	16,011

	Increase/(decrease) in provisions
	5,978
	(3,468)

	(Decrease) in other liabilities
	-
	(1,197)

	Increase/(decrease) in current tax liability
	5(c)
	10,385 
	(25,305)

	Net movement in defined benefit liability
	26
	15,012
	(2,977)

	Decrease in deferred tax liabilities
	16
	(40,849)
	(35,102)

	Net cash provided by operating activities
	529,200
	266,626
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32 Remuneration of auditors

During the reporting period, the following fees were paid or payable for services provided by the Victorian Auditor General's Office:

	
	2012 $000
	2011 $000

	Audit of financial report
	151
	146

	Other work performed
	39
	48

	Total amount paid/payable
	190
	194


33 Events occurring after balance sheet date

No matters or circumstances have arisen since the end of the reporting period which significantly affected or may significantly affect the operations of the Corporation, the results of those operations, or the state of affairs of the Corporation in future financial years.
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Melbourne Water Corporation
Statement by Directors and Chief Finance Officer

We certify the attached Financial Statements for the Melbourne Water Corporation have been prepared in accordance with Standing Direction 4.2 of the Financial Management Act 1994, applicable Australian Accounting Standards, Interpretations and other mandatory professional reporting requirements.

We further state that, in our opinion, the information set out in the Statement of Comprehensive Income, Statement of Financial Position, Statement of Changes in Equity, Statement of Cash Flows and Notes to and forming part of the Financial Statements, presents fairly the financial transactions during the year ended 30 June 2012 and the financial position of the Corporation as at 30 June 2012.

We are not aware of any circumstance which would render any particulars included in the Financial Statements to be misleading or inaccurate.

Dated at Melbourne on this 5th day of September 2012.

On behalf of the Board:

Peter Vines
Acting Chairman

Shaun Cox
Managing Director

Malcolm Haynes
Chief Finance Officer
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VAGO

Victorian Auditor-General's Office

Level 24, 35 Collins Street

Melbourne VIC 3000

Telephone 61 3 8601 7000

Facsimile 61 3 8601 7010

Email comments@audit.vic.gov.au

Website www.audit.vic.gov.au

Independent Auditors Report
To the Board Members, Melbourne Water Corporation

The Financial Report

The accompanying financial report for the year ended 30 June 2012 of the Melbourne Water Corporation which comprises the statement of comprehensive income, statement of financial position, statement of changes in equity, statement of cash flows, notes comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information, and the statement by directors and chief finance officer has been audited.

Tho Board Members' Responsibly for the Financial Report

The Board Members Of the Melbourne Water Corporation are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial report in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards, and the financial reporting requirements of the Financial Management Act 1954, and tor such internal control as the Board Members determine is necessary to enable the preparation of the financial report that is free from material misstatement, whether duo to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

As required by the Audit Act 1994, my responsibility Is to express an opinion on the financial report based on the audit, which has been conducted in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Those standards require compliance with relevant ethical requirements relating to audit engagements and that the audit He planned and performed to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report Is free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial report. The audit procedures selected depend on judgement, Including the assessment of the risks or material misstatement of the financial report, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, consideration is given to the internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial report in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the Board Members, as well as evaluating the overall presentation or the financial report.

I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my audit opinion.
<pp> 111

Independence

The Auditor-General's independence is established by the Constitution Act 1975. The Auditor-General is not subject to direction by any person about the way in which his powers, and responsibilities are to be exercised. In conducting the audit, the Auditor-General, his staff and delegates complied with all applicable independence requirements of the Australian accounting profession.

Opinion

In my opinion, the financial report presents fairly in all material respects, the financial position of the Melbourne Water Corporation as at 30 June 2012 and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with applicable Australian Accounting Standards, and the financial reporting requirement of the Financial Management Act 1994.

Matters Relating to the Electronic Publication of the Audited Financial Report

The auditor's report relates to the financial report of the Melbourne Water. Corporation for the year ended 30 June 2012 included both in the Melbourne Water Corporation's annual report and on the website. The Board Members of the Melbourne Water Corporation are responsible for the integrity of the Melbourne Water Corporation's website. I have not been engaged to report on the integrity of the Melbourne Water Corporation's website. The auditor's report refers only to the subject matter described above. It does not provide an opinion on any other information which may have been hyperlinked to/from these statements. If users of the financial report are concerned with the inherent risks, arising from publication on a website, they are advised to refer to the hard copy of the audited financial report to confirm the information contained in the website version of the financial report.

MELBOURNE

5 September 2012

DDR Pearson

Auditor-General

<pp> 112

Performance Reporting

Contents

Performance Report

Certification of Performance Report

Auditor General's Report

Melbourne Water's Key Performance Indicators

Performance Report

Financial Performance Indicators

	MRD 01 Reference
	Performance Indicator
	2010 -2011
	2011 - 2012

	[1]
	
	Target
	Result
	Target%
	Result 
	Variance
	Target Met
	Notes

	F1
	Internal Financing Ratio % - (Net operating cash flow - dividends)/Capital expenditure)
	32.7%
	29.5%
	22.9
	64.5%
	181.7%
	Y
	[2]

	F2
	Gearing Ratio % - (Total debt/Total assets)
	37.9%
	37.1%
	59.5% 
	38.2% 
	-35.8% 
	Y
	[2]

	F3
	Interest Cover - EBIT (Earnings before net interest and tax expense/net interest expense) - times
	>1.8
	2.0
	≥1.0
	2.5
	150.0%
	Y
	[2]

	F4
	Interest Cover - Cash (Cash flow from operations before net interest and tax payments/net interest payments) - times
	>2.7
	2.8
	>1.5
	3.7
	146.7%
	Y
	[2], [3]

	F5
	Return on Assets % (Earnings before net interest and tax/Average total assets)
	4.5%
	4.7%
	4.2%
	6.3%
	50.0%
	Y
	[2]

	F6
	Return on equity % - (Net profit after tax/Average total equity)
	3.6%
	3.8%
	0.5%
	6.1%
	1120.0%
	Y
	[2]
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Service and environmental and other performance indicators

	MRD 01 Reference
	Performance Indicator
	2010– 2011
	2011– 2012

	[1]
	
	Target
	Result
	Target
	Result
	Variance
	Target Met
	Notes

	S1
	Water Quality

	
	Compliance with BWSA

water quality

requirements:

	S1.1
	* Microbiological standards - E.coli %
	100%
	98.75%
	100%
	100%
	0%
	Y
	[3]

	S1.2
	* Aesthetics – turbidity %
	>91.5%
	100%
	>91.5%
	100%
	9.3%
	Y
	[3]

	E1
	Reliability of Sewerage

Collection Services
EPA Victoria SEPP

System failure

	E1.1
	* System failure - zero spills due to sewerage system failure
	0
	0
	0
	1
	-100.0%
	N
	[3], [5]

	E2
	Sewerage Treatment

and Disposal - WTP

	E2.1
	* Offensive odours beyond the boundary (number)
	0
	0
	0
	0
	0.0%
	Y
	[3]

	E2.2
	* Raw sewage TDS (mg/L)
	<1000
	1000
	<1000
	980
	2.0%
	Y
	[3]

	E3
	Sewerage Treatment

and Disposal - ETP

	E3.1
	* Offensive odours beyond the boundary
	0
	0
	0
	0
	0.0%
	Y
	[3]

	E3.2
	* Ammonia limit (mg/L)
	<5.0
	3.3
	<5.0
	2.79
	44.2%
	Y
	[3], [4]

	E4
	Waterways – Drainage

and Flood Protection

	E4.1
	Currently known intolerable food risks reduced by 10% by 2013
	0
	0
	0
	0
	0.0%
	Y
	[3]

	E4.2
	Achieve Water Plan implementation targets assigned to Melbourne Water from the Regional River Health Strategy and Addendum (%)
	100%
	100%
	100%
	100%
	0.0%
	Y
	[3]

	E5.1
	Recycled Water

	E5.1
	Capacity to supply recycled water of specified reliability and quality from ETP and WTP to enable retail water businesses to meet their targets for potable water substitution (volume - ML)
	736
	1,338
	830
	1,404
	68.8%
	Y
	[3]


Notes - to Performance Report:

[1] Performance indicators as mandated in Ministerial Reporting Direction 01 - Performance Reporting (MRD 01) have been marked with their MRD 01 reference numbers.

[2] While the targets have been achieved for these financial performance indicators, the variance between the results achieved and targets set for these financial performance indicators are above the % thresholds mandated under MRD 01 defining significant variances requiring explanatory notes. The key factor for the significant improvement compared to target across all of these financial performance indicators is due to the delay in commencement of the Victorian Desalination Plant operations (and associated reduction in expenditure, finance lease assets and liabilities compared to the Corporate Plan).

[3] These performance indicators are mandated and measured consistently by both MRD 01 and by the Melbourne Water Board of Directors. Therefore the results have not been repeated within the "Melbourne Water's Key Performance Indicators" section of the Performance Reporting chapter.

[4] The % variance between the results achieved and target set for this performance indicator is above the % threshold mandated under MRD 01 defining significant variances requiring explanatory notes. Given that the target was set at a range of "less than or equal to" rather than a specific number, and results achieved were well within the less than or equal to range, this is not deemed as a significant variance by Melbourne Water.

[5] The annual target was not achieved. In August 2011 an air valve on the Mordialloc No1 Pump Station rising main failed causing a

minor sewer spill. As soon as Melbourne Water was notified the pump station was shut down and crews dispatched to fix and clean up. The spill was contained in a local depression and did not enter any waterways.

Target = Target has been assessed as met when actual result is greater than or equal to the target set or the performance indicator. Met
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Certification of Performance Report for 2011-12

We certify that the accompanying Performance Report of Melbourne Water in respect of the 2011-12 financial year is presented fairly in accordance with the Financial Management Act 1994.

The statement includes the relevant performance indicators as determined by the responsible Minister, the actual results achieved for the financial year against predetermined performance targets and these indicators, and an explanation of any significant variance between the actual results and performance targets.

As at the date of signing, we are not aware of any circumstances which would render any particulars in the Performance Report to be misleading or inaccurate.

Dated this 5th day of September 2012

Peter Vines
Acting Chairman

Shaun Cox
Managing Director
Malcolm Haynes

Chief Finance Officer
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VAGO

Victorian Auditor-General's Office

Level 24, 35 Collins Street

Melbourne VIC 3000

Telephone 61 3 8601 7000

Facsimile 61 3 8601 7010

Email comments@audit.vic.gov.au

Website www.audit.vic.gov.au

Independent Auditor's Report
To the Board Members, Melbourne Water Corporation

The Performance Report

The accompanying performance report for the year ended 30 June 2012 of the Melbourne Water Corporation comprises the report, the related notes end the certification.

The Board Members' responsibility for the Performance Report

The Board Members of the Melbourne Water Corporation are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the performance report in accordance with the Financial Management Act 1994 and for such internal control as the Board Members determine is necessary to enable the preparation of the performance report that is free or material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

As required by the Audit Act 1994, my responsibility is to express an opinion on the performance report based on the audit, which has been conducted in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Those Standards, require compliance with relevant ethical requirements relating to audit engagements and that the audit be planned and performed to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the performance report is free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the performance report. The audit procedures selected depend on judgment including the assessment or the risks of material misstatement of the performance report, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, consideration is given to the internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the performance report in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the overall presentation of the performance report.

l believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide- a basis for my audit opinion.

<pp> 116

Independence

The Auditor-General's independence is established by the Constitution Act 1975. The Auditor-General is not subject to direction by any person about the way in which his powers and responsibilities are to be exercised. In conducting the audit the Auditor-General, his staff and delegates complied with all applicable independence requirements of the Australian accounting profession.

Opinion

In my opinion, the performance report of the Melbourne Water Cooperation in respect or the 30 June 2012 financial year presents fairly in all material respects, and in accordance with the Financial Management Act 1994.

Matters Relating to the Electronic Publication of the Audited Performance Report

This auditor's report relates to the performance report of the Melbourne Water Corporation for the year ended 30 June 2013 included both in me Melbourne Water Corporation's annual report and on the website. The Board Members of the Melbourne Water Corporation are responsible for the integrity of the Melbourne Water Corporation's website. I have not been engaged to report on the integrity of the Melbourne Water Corporation's website. The auditor's report refers only to the subject matter described above. It does not provide an opinion on any other information which may have been hyperlinked to/from these statements. If users of the performance report are concerned with the inherent risks arising from publication on a website, they are advised to refer to the hard copy of the audited performance report to confirm the information contained in the website version of the performance report.

Melbourne

5 September 2012

DDR Pearson

Auditor-General
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Melbourne Water's Key Performance Indicators

Financial Performance Indicators

	Performance Indicator
	2010 –2011
	2011 –2012

	Corporate
	Target
	Result
	Target
	Result
	Target Met
	Notes

	Maintain Financial Viability

	Meet regulated Water Plan operating expenditure $M
	313.0
	307.0
	368.8
	325.4
	Y
	

	Cash Returns to Government $M
	205.7
	173.1
	158.3
	289.3
	Y
	

	Gearing % - (Debt/Debt + Equity)
	51.2%
	45.3%
	66.9%
	45.8%
	Y
	

	Return on equity % - (NPAT/Total Equity)
	4.0%
	3.6%
	0.5%
	5.9%
	Y
	

	Efficient and effective delivery of the

capital program;

	* On time
	80.0%
	59.0%
	80.0%
	55.9%
	N
	[1]

	* On budget
	95.0%
	82.0%
	95.0%
	82.4%
	N
	[2]


Service and environmental and other Performance Indicators

	Performance Indicator
	2010-2011
	2011-2012

	Water
	Target
	Result
	Target
	Result
	Target Met
	Notes

	Production and Storage

	Operate water supply system within environmental requirements - % compliance
	100%
	100%
	100%
	100%
	Y
	

	Maintain system losses as a % of water supplied to retail water businesses %
	≤1.0
	1.41%
	≤1.0%
	1.27%
	N
	[3]

	Water Transfer

	Compliance with retail water businesses' pressure requirements as set out in BWSAs %
	≥99.6%
	100%
	≥99.6%
	99.9%
	Y
	

	Water Quality

	Compliance with BWSA water quality

requirements:

	* Disinfection by-products %
	100%
	100%
	100% 
	100% 
	Y
	

	* Aesthetics – Aluminium %
	100%
	100%
	100%
	100%
	Y
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	Performance Indicator
	2010-2011
	2011-2012

	Sewerage
	Target
	Result
	Target
	Result
	Target Met
	Notes

	ETP

	EPA Licence Compliance

	Compliance with EPA Victoria discharge licence requirements %
	100%
	100%
	100%
	100%
	Y
	[4]

	* Litter at beach [that results in a licence breach]
	0
	0
	0
	0
	Y
	

	WTP

	EPA Licence Compliance

	Compliance with EPA Victoria discharge licence requirements %
	100%
	100%
	100%
	100%
	Y
	[4]

	Sewerage Transfer System

	EPA SEPP compliance for sewerage

system spills

	* Hydraulic deficiency – progressively achieve zero spills due to storm events of a severity of up to 1-in-5 years
	0
	0
	0
	0
	Y
	

	Complaints relating to transfer system odour
	<10
	16
	<10
	14
	N
	[5]

	Work with Water Retail businesses to

improve sewage quality management

	* Maintain Integrated Sewage Quality Management System certification to IOS022000 Standard
	N/A
	N/A
	100%
	100%
	Y
	[6]

	Biosolids Management

	Maximise sustainable re-use of

biosolids:

	* ETP- biosolids reuse of 90,000 cubic metres for construction fill by 2013
	0
	10,500m3
	35,000m3
	0
	N
	[7]

	* WTP- biosolids reuse
	0
	0
	0
	0
	N
	[8]


	Performance Indicator
	2010-2011
	2011-2012

	Waterways
	Target
	Result
	Target 
	Result
	Target Met
	Notes

	Achieve Waterways and Drainage Operating Charter performance targets
	100%
	100%
	100%
	97.5%
	N
	[9]

	Drainage & Flood Protection

	All new development complies with food protection standards
	100%
	100%
	100%
	100%
	Y
	

	Stormwater Quality

	Contribute to reducing the waterway nitrogen load to Port Phillip Bay through targeted stormwater action (tonnes)
	102
	102
	104
	109
	Y
	

	Waterways Condition

	Achieve Water Plan implementation targets assigned to Melbourne Water from the Regional River Health Strategy and Addendum
	100%
	100%
	100%
	100%
	Y
	

	Land Development

	Development and redevelopment services schemes prepared, implemented and reviewed according to the development planning program
	100%
	100%
	100% 
	100% 
	Y
	

	Statutory and agreed industry response times to be achieved for all development referrals
	100%
	100%
	100%
	100%
	Y
	

	Waterways Condition

	Diversions to be managed:

	* In accordance with rules specified in streamflow management plans, local management rules or drought responses plans
	100%
	100%
	100% 
	100% 
	Y
	

	* To meet the service requirements in Melbourne Water's Customer Charter [Diversion Services]
	100%
	100%
	100%
	100%
	Y
	

	Community & Stakeholder Engagement

	Maintain at least 70% total community satisfaction with Waterways
	N/A
	N/A
	70.0%
	77%
	Y
	[10]
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	Performance Indicator
	2010-2011
	2011-2012

	Recycled Water
	Target
	Result
	Target
	Result
	Target Met
	Notes

	Compliance with retail BRWAs requirements

for reliability and water quality;

	* ETP
	100%
	50.0%
	100%
	92%
	N
	[11]

	* WTP
	100%
	90.0%
	100%
	92%
	N
	N


	Performance Indicator
	2010-2011
	2011-2012

	Corporate
	Target
	Result
	Target
	Result
	Target Met
	Notes

	Sustainability

	Achieve sustainability performance score within 20% of the best score by global water utilities and Australian utilities, using the Dow Jones Sustainability World Indices (DJSI) - measured every two years
	Within 20% of best score
	Pass
	N/A
	N/A
	N/A
	[10]

	Natural Environment

	Renewable energy and greenhouse

	* Renewable energy used or exported as % of total energy used
	>59.0%
	59.0%
	>60.0%
	60.0%
	Y
	

	* % reduction on 2000/01 greenhouse gas emissions
	>42.0%
	46.5%
	>42.0%
	50.2%
	Y
	

	Biodiversity

	For the 9 DSE designated sites of high biodiversity significance [BioSites], the number of BioSites that have:
	

	* Had management plans developed [cumulative]
	8
	9
	9
	9
	Y
	

	* Had management plans implemented [cumulative]
	3
	4
	8
	8
	Y
	

	Our People/Our Workplace

	Number of lost time injuries:

* Melbourne Water people and contractors [injuries]
	0
	15
	0
	20
	N
	[13]

	Maintain National Audit Tool accreditation
	Yes
	Yes
	Yes
	Yes
	Y
	

	Staff Turnover [%]
	5-10%
	8.1%
	5-10% 
	7.4% 
	Y
	

	Absenteeism - per person per year [days]
	<2.7
	2.8
	≤2.7
	2.5
	Y
	

	Minimise everyday environmental impacts:
	

	* % reduction on 2006/07 office water consumption per FTE
	3.50%
	13.2%
	3.50% 
	9.9% 
	Y
	[14]

	* % reduction on 2006/07 paper use per FTE
	12.0%
	24.2%
	14.0%
	27.7%
	Y
	[15]

	* % reduction on 2006/07 office waste to landfill per FTE
	8.0%
	41.6%
	14.0%
	33.1%
	Y
	[16]

	* % reduction on 2006/07 office energy per FTE
	4.0%
	14.5%
	4.5%
	24.4%
	Y
	[17]

	* % offsetting greenhouse gas emissions from office energy use & travel
	100%
	100%
	100%
	100%
	Y
	

	Increase in constructive behaviours (measured every two years)
	N/A
	N/A
	Achieved
	Achieved
	Y
	

	Employee ranking of innovation in contribution to business performance
	N/A
	N/A
	Improved
	Improved
	Y
	

	Relationships - Customer, Community, Stakeholder

	Customers

	* Complaints referred to EWOV responded to within EWOV established time
	100%
	100%
	100%
	97.3%
	N
	[18]

	Community

	* Effectiveness of community committee and community consultation processes
	85.0%
	95.0%
	85.0%
	86.0%
	Y
	

	* Effectiveness of community education programs
	85.0%
	97.0%
	85.0%
	97.7%
	Y
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Notes - to Melbourne Water Key Performance Indicators:

[I] The annual target was not achieved. Optimistic scheduling and lack of sophisticated tools are being addressed by initiatives to improve performance including assignment of performance accountability to the program alliance Value Managers, trialling of a program based scheduling tool and development of improved contractor key performance indicators for the next delivery strategy.

[2] The annual target was not achieved. Misalignment between Alliance total outturn cost preparation and Melbourne Water provisional sums in Business Case approvals is being addressed. Initiatives to improve performance include assignment of performance accountability to the program alliance Value Managers, trialling of a program based scheduling tool and development of improved contractor key performance indicators for the next delivery strategy.

[3] The annual target was not achieved mainly due to higher than normal operational losses as a result of proactive flushing of water

mains, Tarago Treatment Plant turbidity issues and the tank and reservoir cleaning program which has reverted back to normal following the drought, including cleaning activities at Frankston, Surrey Hills, Olinda and Mt Waverley Reservoirs.

[4] There have been recent changes to EPA Victoria licencing requirements that affect the existing definitions related to odour for ETP and WTP. Melbourne Water has applied previous definitions for the 2011-12 Annual Report and will cross over to the new definitions for the 2012-13 period.

[5] The annual target was not achieved due mainly to dislodged sewer manhole covers and ventilation activities associated with works

being undertaken in the sewer network. An enhanced proactive maintenance program and implementation of the Odour and Corrosion Strategy Improvement actions will reduce the likelihood of future odour complaints.

[6] New performance indicator for 2011-12.

[7] The annual target was not achieved due to no biosolids being reused in the period. Discussions and negotiations regarding feasibility studies continued.

[8] The annual target was not achieved due to no biosolids being reused in the period. Research trials continued and energy recovery through pyrolysis processes commenced.

[9] The annual target was not achieved due to the Waterways Operating Charter targets for Flood Awareness not being met. The Flood Awareness project is conducted jointly with VICSES and delivery of the program has been delayed due resourcing challenges arising from a restructure.

[10] Performance indicator is measured every two years (if N/A in 2011-12 performance indicator is not measured in 2011-12).

[II] The annual target was not achieved due mainly to a number of wet weather events coupled with delay in some augmentation works (grit and screenings and aeration tanks).

[12] The annual target was not achieved due mainly to the cessation of supply from October to December due to Dicamba in recycled water.

[13] The annual target was not achieved due to 20 lost time injuries to employees and contractors including one fatality. We are committed to improving our health and safety performance by continuing the focus on a zero harm culture; being clear about roles and responsibilities and upgrading the safety management system to AS4801 and achieving certification by end June 2013.

[14] Office water use data was collected from the 100 Wellington Parade head office and includes water used for air-conditioning cooling towers.

[15] Paper use data was collected from office paper purchased at Melbourne Water's offices at the following locations: 100 Wellington Parade, 126 Wellington Parade, 112 Wellington Parade, Eastern Treatment Plant, Western Treatment Plant, Brooklyn, Healesville, Winneke, Tarago and Sunbury.

[16] Office waste was measured at the following locations: 100 Wellington Parade, 126 Wellington Parade (levels, 2,4,6), Western Treatment Plant, Eastern Treatment Plant, Brooklyn, South Eastern Regional Office and Winneke.

[17] Office energy was measured at 100 Wellington Parade and level 6 at 126 Wellington Parade.

[18] The annual target was not achieved due mainly to one case not being responded to in time in May. Retraining on processes has occurred.

Target = Target has been assessed as met when actual result is greater than or equal to the target set or the performance indicator. Met
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Statutory Information

Disclosure Index

Melbourne Water's Annual Report 2011-12 is prepared in accordance with all relevant Victorian legislation and pronouncements. This index has been prepared to facilitate identification of Melbourne Water's compliance with statutory disclosure requirements.

	Legislation
	Requirement
	Page Reference

	Report of Operations

	Charter and purpose

	FRD 22C
	Manner of establishment and the relevant Minister
	1, 50-52

	FRD 22C
	Objectives, functions, powers and duties
	1, 49-53

	FRD 22C
	Nature and range of services provided
	1

	Management and structure

	FRD 22B
	Organisational structure
	53

	Financial and other information

	FRD 10
	Disclosure index
	121-122

	FRD 22C
	Statement of workforce data
	54-57

	FRD 22C
	Summary of the financial results for the year
	46-49

	FRD 22C
	Five year summary of financial results
	59-60

	FRD 22C
	Significant changes in financial position during the year
	46-49

	FRD 22C SD 4.2(k)
	Operational and budgetary objectives and performance against objectives
	1-57, 112-120

	FRD 22C
	Occupational health and safety policy
	55-57, 119-120

	FRD 22C
	Major changes or factors affecting performance
	1-57, 112-120

	FRD 22C
	Subsequent events
	108

	FRD 22C
	Application and operation of the Freedom of Information Act 1982
	124

	FRD 22C
	Compliance with building and maintenance provisions of the Building Act 1993
	128

	FRD 22C
	Statement of National Competition Policy
	123

	FRD 22C
	Application and operation of the Whistleblowers Protection Act 2001
	129-130

	FRD 22C
	Details of consultancies over $10,000
	123

	FRD 22C
	Details of consultancies under $10,000
	123

	FRD 22C
	Statement of availability of other information
	128

	FRD 22C
	Environmental performance
	1-57, 112-120

	FRD 25A
	Victorian Industry Participation Policy
	63

	FRD 27B
	Presentation and Reporting of Performance Information
	112-120

	FRD 30A
	Standard requirements for the design and print of annual reports
	Entire report

	SD 4.5.5
	Risk management compliance attestation
	50

	SD 4.2(g)
	General information requirements
	1-57

	SD 4.2(j)
	Sign-off requirements
	2-3

	Ministerial reporting directions

	MRD 01
	Performance Reporting
	112-120
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	Legislation
	Requirement
	Page Reference

	MRD 02
	Reporting on water consumption and drought response
	8-13

	MRD 03
	Environmental and social sustainability reporting
	1-57, 112-120

	MRD 04
	Disclosure of information on bulk entitlements, transfers of water entitlements, allocations and licences, irrigation water usage and licence requirements
	125-128

	Financial Report

	Financial statements required under Part 7 of the Financial Management Act 1994

	SD 4.2(b)
	Statement of Comprehensive Income
	64

	SD 4.2(b)
	Statement of Financial Position
	65

	SD 4.2(b)
	Statement of Changes In Equity
	66

	SD 4.2(b)
	Statement of Cash Flows
	67

	SD 4.2(b)
	Notes to the financial statements
	68-108

	Other requirements under Standing Directions 4.2

	SD 4.2(c)
	Compliance with Australian accounting standards and other authoritative pronouncements
	68

	SD 4.2(c)
	Compliance with Ministerial Directions
	68

	SD 4.2(c)
	Accountable officer's declaration
	109

	SD 4.2(d)
	Rounding of amounts
	68

	Other disclosures as required by FRDs in notes to the financial statements

	FRD 03A
	Accounting for dividends
	74, 98

	FRD 07A
	Early Adoption of Authoritative Accounting Pronouncements
	74

	FRD 11
	Disclosure of ex-gratia payments
	N/A

	FRD 17A
	Long Service Leave Wage Inflation and Discount Rates
	72, 88

	FRD 19
	Private provision of public infrastructure (BOO/BOOT)
	95-96

	FRD 21B
	Disclosures of Responsible Persons, Executive Officers and other Personnel in the Financial Report
	104-107

	FRD 103D
	Non-current physical assets
	69-70, 84-86

	FRD 105A
	Borrowing costs
	69, 79

	FRD 104
	Foreign currency
	73, 75-76

	FRD 106
	Impairment of assets
	70

	FRD 108A
	Classification of entities as For-Profit
	68

	FRD 109
	Intangible assets
	71, 85-86

	FRD 110
	Cash flow statements
	67, 70

	FRD 112C
	Defined benefit superannuation obligations
	72, 99-101

	FRD 114A
	Financial Instruments - General Government Entities and Public Non-Financial Corporations
	68-77, 90-93

	FRD 115
	Non-current Physical Assets - First-time Adoption
	69-70, 84-86

	FRD 119
	Contributions by owners
	74, 89

	FRD 120F
	Accounting and reporting pronouncements applicable to the 2011-12 reporting period
	74

	FRD 121
	Infrastructure assets
	69-70, 84-86

	Legislation

	Water Act 1989

	Freedom of Information Act 1982

	Building Act 1993

	Whistleblowers Protection Act 2001

	Victorian Industry Participation Policy Act 2003

	Financial Management Act 1994
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Consultants

During 2011-12, Melbourne Water engaged eight consultants at less than $10,000 each to undertake operational and capital works projects at a total cost of $33,613 (exclusive of GST).

In addition, Melbourne Water engaged 14 consultants (see table below) at more than $10,000 to undertake the following projects (expenditure excludes GST):

	Consultant
	Project
	Total fee approved
	Expenditure 2011-12
	Future expenditure

	Alchimie
	Maintenance and Low Risk Capital consulting
	281,450
	281,195
	-

	KPMG
	Financial Management Strategy
	300,000
	273,207
	26,793

	GHD
	Winneke Major Hazard Facility Re-licensing engineering consultancy
	234,170
	141,775
	-

	Golder Associates
	MWC Technical Feasibility Biosolids/Peninsula Link
	-
	108,927
	-

	Science Partners
	Cardinia Diving Incident Investigation
	89,175
	89,175
	-

	Sinclair Knight Merz
	Cardinia Diving Incident Investigation
	92,818
	86,715
	6,103

	PriceWaterhouseCoopers
	Maintenance & Low Risk Capital Delivery Strategy
	250,000
	83,629
	-

	Helmsman
	Project Management Foundation Review Project
	69,622
	69,622
	-

	Australian Continuous Improvement Group


	Quality Management Systems Foundation Review Project
	62,000
	55,280
	6,720

	Five Consulting
	Maintenance and Low Risk Capital - Business Case Development
	46,355
	40,738
	5,617

	Accident Analysis
	ETP incident investigation
	30,323
	30,323
	-

	Votar Partner
	Water Control Centre Review
	28,683
	27,375
	1,308

	Halcrow Pacific 
	Determination of Best Practice Monitoring and Operating of Pumping Station
	-
	25,410
	-

	MWH Australia
	Energy Forecasts
	-
	19,852
	-

	TOTAL > $10,000
	
	$1,484,596
	$1,333,222
	$46,541


National Competition Policy

Melbourne Water submitted its 2009 Water Plan for water, sewerage and recycled water services to the Essential Services Commission (ESC) in November 2008 to enable the ESC to make a price determination for the four year period commencing 2009-10.

The 2009 Water Plan set out proposed performance relative to the expenditures and outcomes included in the ESC's first determination as well as proposed outcomes, expenditures and prices for the second price determination period.

In December 2007, Melbourne Water submitted its 2008 Water Plan for waterways and drainage services, which enabled the ESC to make a price determination for these services commencing in 2008-09 for a five year period.

These processes are consistent with the pricing and institutional reform objectives of the National Competition Policy.

Melbourne Water is corporatised and therefore has an independent Board, with independent and objective performance monitoring. We face equivalent tax treatment, borrowing requirements and regulations as a private business. As outlined above, we also operate in an environment where the ESC determines cost-based pricing. In this regard, our processes are consistent with the requirements of the Victorian Competitive Neutrality Policy.
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Freedom of Information

Melbourne Water is subject to the Freedom of Information Act 1982 and is committed to making documents and information available to the community whenever it can. The designated persons for the purpose of the Act are:

Principal officer: 

Ms E Underwood 

Chairman, Melbourne Water

Authorised officer:

Mr M Facciolo

Freedom of Information Officer, Melbourne Water

Requests for Information

This year we received 25 requests for access to documents under the Freedom of Information Act. We processed these requests as follows:

We processed these requests as follows:

	Access in full
	5

	Access in part
	4

	Access refused
	0

	Documents not located
	4

	Applicant did not proceed
	4

	Not finalised
	8

	Withdrawn
	0


The applications received related to the following issues:

	Personal
	1

	Water quality
	1

	Business administration
	0

	Water supply
	5

	Waterways management
	2

	Property
	2

	Tendering
	0

	Environment and planning
	8

	Flooding
	6


This year we received 1 request for an internal review.

The original decision was confirmed from this review.

	Year/Number of requests

	2005–06
	14

	2006–07
	20

	2007–08
	20

	2008–09
	35

	2009–10
	43

	2010–11
	32


Grounds for refusing release of documents: internal working documents and/or documents containing sensitive commercial information and/or documents affecting personal privacy.

Access to documents

People wanting access to Melbourne Water documents under the Freedom of Information Act 1982 should write to:

FOI & Privacy Advisor

Melbourne Water

PO Box 4342

Melbourne Victoria 3002

Each application must clearly identify the documents sought and be accompanied by the required application fee, currently $25.10. General enquiries concerning Freedom of Information can be made by telephoning the Freedom of Information Officer on (03) 9679 6741 between 9am and 5pm, Monday to Friday or via email to: foi@melbournewater.com.au
Information on our consultative arrangements, required under Section 7 of the Act, is available on our website, melbournewater.com.au

Information on our publications, also required under Section 7, is included in this report.

Categories of documents

We use a computerised records management system to manage our correspondence and documents. We use online computer systems to manage our financial, human resource and other operational activities and plans relating to our water supply, waterways, and drainage and sewerage responsibilities. Historical archives on our activities are available through the Public Record Office Victoria.

Pricing

Consistent with the ESC's Final Determination in the 2009 Water Price Review, Melbourne Water's water and sewerage prices increased by an average of 27.6% in real terms (excluding inflation) on 1 July 2011. In addition, Melbourne Water's waterways and drainage charges increased by an average of 3.8% in real terms on 1 July 2011.
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Bulk entitlements

The three metropolitan water retailers hold Bulk Entitlements to the water resources of the Yarra River, Thomson River, Tarago and Bunyip Rivers, Silver and Wallaby Creeks (Goulburn River Basin) and the Victorian Desalination Project. The entitlements have been established as a collective "pool".

Table 1 – Compliance with all Bulk Entitlements held by the three Melbourne retail water corporations (retailers)

	Melbourne retail water businesses reporting obligation
	Combined Yarra River, Silver and Wallaby Creeks, Thomson River
	Yarra River2
	Silver and Wallaby
Creeks7
	Thomson
River9
	Tarago and Bunyip
Rivers12
	Victorian Desalination
Project15

	The volume of water taken by the retailers in 2011-12
	Clause 15.1 (a)
	Clause 15.1 (a) 456,400 ML
	Clause 13.1 (a) 11,300 ML
	Clause 15.1 (a) 1,600 ML


	Clause 14.1 (a)

13,900 ML (Tarago) 2,200 ML (Bunyip)
	Clause 11.1 (a)

0 ML16

	Compliance with the long-term average bulk entitlement diversion limit
	Clause 15.1 (b) 421,300 ML1
	Clause 15.1 (b) 289,500 ML3
	Clause 13.1 (b) 17,700 ML6
	Clause 15.1 (b) 127,000 ML8


	Clause 14.1 (f) 11,500 ML (Tarago)10 2,200 ML (Bunyip)11
	Clause 11.1 (e)

0 ML

	The total annual consumption in 2011-12
	365,600 ML
	N/A
	N/A
	N/A
	N/A
	N/A

	The retailers share of flow in 2011-12
	N/A
	Clause 15.1 (a) 271,700 ML 
	Clause 13.1 (a)

N/A


	Clause 15.1 (a) 235,900 ML 
	Clause 14.1 (a) 33,400 ML 
	Clause 11.1 (a)

N/A



	The retailers share of storage volume at 30-06-12
	N/A
	Clause 15.1 (a) 535,300 ML
	N/A
	Clause 15.1 (a) 638,900 ML
	Clause 14.1 (a) 19,400 ML
	N/A

	Volume supplied to Primary Entitlement Holders
	N/A
	Clause 15.1 (a) N/A
	N/A
	N/A
	Clause 14.1 (a)

286 ML

(Gippsland Water)

0 ML

(Southern Rural Water)


	Clause 11.1 (a)14

5,108 ML (Western Water)

0 ML (Barwon Water)

0 ML

(Westernport

Water)

0 ML

(South Gippsland

Water)

	Any assignment of water allocation or temporary/permanent transfers of the bulk entitlement
	N/A
	Clause 15.1 (c) Nil
	Clause 13.1 (c) Nil
	Clause 15.1 (c) Nil
	Clause 14.1 (b) Nil
	Clause 11.1 (b)

Nil

	Any temporary or permanent transfer of the bulk entitlement which may alter the flow in the waterway
	N/A
	Clause 15.1 (d)

Nil
	Clause 13.1 (d)

Nil
	Clause 15.1 (d)

Nil
	Clause 14.1 (a)

Nil
	N/A

	Any amendment to the bulk entitlement
	N/A
	Clause 15.1 (e) Yes 4
	Clause 13.1 (e) Yes 4
	Clause 15.1 (e) Yes 4
	Clause 14.1 (d) Yes 4
	Clause 11.1 (c) Nil

	Any new bulk entitlement granted to the retailers
	N/A
	Clause 15.1 (f) Nil
	Clause 13.1 (f) Nil
	Clause 15.1 (f) Nil
	Clause 14.1 (e) Nil
	Clause 11.1 (d) Nil
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	Any failures to comply with any provision of the bulk entitlement
	N/A
	Clause 15.1 (g)

Nil
	Clause 13.1 (g)

Nil
	Clause 15.1 (g)

Nil
	Clause 14.1 (g)

Nil
	Clause 11.1 (f)

Nil

	Any difficulty experienced in complying with the bulk entitlement and if so, any remedial action taken or proposed
	N/A
	Clause 15.1 (h) Nil
	Clause 13.1 (h) Nil
	Clause 15.1 (h) Nil
	Clause 14.1 (h) Nil
	Clause 11.1 (g) Nil


Combined Yarra River, Silver and Wallaby Creeks, Thomson River

1. Compliance with the long-term average diversion limit of 555,000 ML is assessed using a 15 year rolling average annual diversion.
Yarra River

2. The retailers hold the following Bulk Entitlements on the Yarra River

• Bulk Entitlement (Yarra River – Melbourne Water for City West Water Limited) Conversion Order 2006 – BEE049364

• Bulk Entitlement (Yarra River – Melbourne Water for South East Water Limited) Conversion Order 2006 – BEE049363

• Bulk Entitlement (Yarra River – Melbourne Water for Yarra Valley Water Limited) Conversion Order 2006 – BEE049362

3. Compliance with the long-term average diversion limit of 400,000 ML is assessed using a 15 year rolling average annual diversion.

4. On 1 July 2011, the Minister for Water made effect to the retailers Bulk Entitlements to substitute the Minister for Environment responsibilities for Environmental Entitlements and replace with the Victorian Environmental Water Holder.

Silver and Wallaby Creeks

5. The retailers hold the following bulk entitlements on the Silver and Wallaby Creeks

• Bulk Entitlement (Silver & Wallaby Creeks – Melbourne Water for City West Water Limited) Conversion Order 2006 – BEE049475

• Bulk Entitlement (Silver & Wallaby Creeks – Melbourne Water for South East Water Limited) Conversion Order 2006 – BEE049474

• Bulk Entitlement (Silver & Wallaby Creeks – Melbourne Water for Yarra Valley Water Limited) Conversion Order 2006 – BEE049473

6. Compliance with the 3 year total diversion limit of 66,000 ML is assessed using a 3 year rolling total diversion.

Thomson River

7. The retailers hold the following bulk entitlements on the Thomson River

• Transfer of Bulk Entitlement (Thomson River – Melbourne Water Corporation) Conversion Order 2001 to City West Water Limited 2006 – BEE049361

• Transfer of Bulk Entitlement (Thomson River – Melbourne Water Corporation) Conversion Order 2001 to South East Water Limited 2006 – BEE049360

• Transfer of Bulk Entitlement (Thomson River – Melbourne Water Corporation) Conversion Order 2001 to Yarra Valley Water Limited 2006 – BEE049359

8. Compliance with the long-term average diversion limit of 171,800 ML is assessed using a 15 year rolling average annual diversion.

Tarago and Bunyip Rivers

9. The retailers hold the following bulk entitlements on the Tarago and Bunyip Rivers

• Bulk Entitlement (Tarago and Bunyip Rivers – Melbourne Water for City West Water Limited) Conversion Order 2009 – BEE049358

• Bulk Entitlement (Tarago and Bunyip Rivers – Melbourne Water for South East Water Limited) Conversion Order 2009 – BEE049357

• Bulk Entitlement (Tarago and Bunyip Rivers – Melbourne Water for Yarra Valley Water Limited) Conversion Order 2009 – BEE049356

10. Compliance with the long-term average diversion limit of 24,950 ML is assessed using a 5 year rolling average annual diversion.

11. Compliance with the long-term average diversion limit of 5,560 ML is assessed using a 5 year rolling average annual diversion.

Victorian Desalination Project

12. The retailers hold the following bulk entitlements to the Victorian Desalination Project

• Bulk Entitlement (Desalinated Water – City West Water Limited) Order 2010 – BEE050814

• Bulk Entitlement (Desalinated Water – South East Water Limited) Order 2010 – BEE050815

• Bulk Entitlement (Desalinated Water – Yarra Valley Water Limited) Order 2010 – BEE050816

13. The Victorian Desalination Project is expected to be able to provide water to the Melbourne retailers by February 2013.

14. Supply of Primary Entitlement Holders for the Victorian Desalination Project Bulk Entitlements are supplied through the Melbourne 'pool' with water sourced from all of Melbourne's Bulk Entitlement sources.
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Melbourne Water's Bulk Entitlement

Melbourne Water holds a bulk entitlement to the water resources of the Maribyrnong Basin to supply irrigators diverting water from Jacksons Creek, downstream of Rosslynne Reservoir, and the Maribyrnong River between its confluence with Jacksons Creek and Shepherd Bridge.

Table 2 – Compliance with the Maribyrnong River Bulk Entitlement held by Melbourne Water

	Melbourne Water reporting obligation
	Maribyrnong River

	The volume of water taken by Melbourne Water to supply licence holders in 2011-12
	Clause 19.1 (b) 42 ML

	Compliance with the 5 year rolling average annual bulk entitlement diversion limit of 1,056 ML
	169 ML

	The Melbourne Water share of flow into the Rosslynne Reservoir in 2011-12
	Clause 19.1 (a, i i i) 326 ML

	The Melbourne Water share of storage volume in the Rosslynne Reservoir at 30-06-12
	Clause 19.1 (a, i i) 1,792 ML

	Transfer and operating losses within the system
	Clause 19.1 (a, iv) 0 ML

	Releases made from the Rosslynne Reservoir to supply licence holders in 2011-12
	Clause 19.1 (a, i) 0 ML

	Releases from Melbourne Water's share of flow to meet minimum flows
	Clause 19.1 (a, v) 143 ML

	Any temporary or permanent transfers of the bulk entitlement
	Clause 19.1 (c) nil

	Any temporary or permanent transfer of the bulk entitlement which may alter the flow in the waterway
	Clause 19.1 (d) nil

	Alteration to volume of water under licences issued by Melbourne Water
	Clause 19.1 (e) nil

	Alteration to security of supply of entitlements under licences
	Clause 19.1 (e) nil

	Transfer of licences (number, amount and places)
	Clause 19.1 (f) Yes1

	Any amendment to the bulk entitlement
	Clause 19.1 (g) nil

	Any new bulk entitlement granted to Melbourne Water
	Clause 19.1 (h) nil

	Implementation of metering program
	Clause 19.1 (i) Ye s

	Any failures to comply with any provision of the bulk entitlement
	Clause 19.1 (j) nil

	Any difficulty experienced in complying with the bulk entitlement and if so, any remedial action taken or proposed
	Clause 19.1 (k) nil


1 Two transfers of licences were made: 1) Land transfer with 20 ML in Keilor; 2) Subdivide licence with 46 ML in Keilor.
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Environmental Entitlements
Table 3 – Compliance with the Environmental Entitlements held by the Environment Minister

	Environmental Entitlements reporting
	Yarra River
	Thomson River
	Silver and Wallaby Creeks
	Tarago and Bunyip Rivers

	Environment's share of storage volume at 30-06-11
	18,325 ML
	2,794 ML
	N/A
	3,000 ML

	Compliance with environmental flows
	Yes
	Yes
	Yes
	Yes


Compliance with Building Act 1993
Melbourne Water's major premises are compliant with the Building Act 1993. Melbourne Water has a program to refurbish its remote sites to ensure compliance with the Building Code of Australia (BCA).
All sites that the Property Team is accountable for are Essential Safety Measure (ESM) compliant with required follow-up audits being undertaken as required. Defects are rectified as part of ongoing maintenance requirements.
Melbourne Water's new Corporate Office at 990 La Trobe Street, Docklands has been certified by the Building Surveyor as compliant with BCA. Disability Discrimination Act 1992 (DDA) compliance has been independently assessed/reviewed and ESM are in place.
Privacy legislation
Melbourne Water is subject to the Information Privacy Act 2000 and the Health Records Act 2001 and is committed to protecting the privacy of all personal and health information it collects and handles. Melbourne Water collects and handles personal and health information only to carry out its functions and activities.

Melbourne Water is committed to openness and transparency and welcomes any queries about its approach to privacy. We endeavour to resolve any privacy complaints quickly and effectively.
People wanting to make a privacy complaint or seek a copy of Melbourne Water's Privacy Policy should write to:

The Privacy Officer – Melbourne Water,

PO Box 4342, Melbourne Victoria 3002.
Information available on request
Further information is available on request about: pecuniary interests of relevant officers, details of shares held by a senior officer as nominee or held beneficially in a statutory authority or subsidiary, details of changes in prices, fees, charges, rates and levies charged if relevant, details of any major external review carried out upon Melbourne Water, details of Melbourne Water publications, committees chaired by Melbourne Water, major external reviews carried out on Melbourne Water, research and development activities, overseas visits, major promotional, public relations and marketing activities, assessments and measures to improve the occupational health and safety of employees, statement of industrial relations and details of time lost through industrial accidents and disputes, and major sponsorships. Phone 131 722 (within Victoria) or (03) 9679 7100 (within the rest of Australia) or visit melbournewater.com.au
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Whistleblowers Protection Act
The Whistleblowers Protection Act 2001 began operation on 1 January 2002.
It aims to encourage and facilitate disclosure of improper conduct by public officers and public bodies.
Melbourne Water is committed to the aims and objectives of the Act, has established the following procedures and takes the following approach to disclosures of improper conduct:

• A reporting system was established with Protected Disclosure Officers reporting to the Protected Disclosure Coordinator, who in turn, reports to the Managing Director

• Melbourne Water will take all reasonable steps to protect the identity of a whistleblower and is committed to the protection of genuine whistleblowers against reprisals for making protected disclosures

• The principles of natural justice will be followed in any investigation of a public interest disclosure.

The following appointments were made to manage disclosures of improper conduct:

Protected Disclosure Coordinator

Ms J Denton, Corporate Secretary & Legal Counsel
Protected Disclosure Officer

Mr M Facciolo, FOI & Privacy Advisor
Melbourne Water has established written procedures, which are contained in this report, and are also available at melbournewater.com.au or by contacting the Protected Disclosure Officer or the Protected Disclosure Coordinator at:

Melbourne Water

990 La Trobe Street,

Docklands Victoria 3008

Telephone: 03 9679 6741
There were no whistleblower requests received by Melbourne Water this year.
Whistleblowers protection and procedures Purpose
Purpose

These procedures establish a system for reporting disclosures of improper conduct or detrimental action by Melbourne Water or its people under the Whistleblowers Protection Act. The system enables such disclosures to be made to the Protected Disclosure Coordinator or to one of the nominated Protected Disclosure Officers. Disclosures may be made by Melbourne Water employees or by members of the public.
These procedures are designed to complement normal communication channels between Melbourne Water employees. Employees are encouraged to continue to raise appropriate matters at any time with their managers/team leaders. As an alternative, people may make a disclosure of improper conduct or detrimental action under the Act in accordance with these procedures.
Scope
Melbourne Water is committed to the aims and objectives of the Whistleblowers Protection Act. It does not tolerate improper conduct by its people, nor the taking of reprisals against those who come forward to disclose such conduct.
Melbourne Water recognises the value of transparency and accountability in its administrative and management practices, and supports the making of disclosures that reveal corrupt conduct, conduct involving a substantial mismanagement of public resources, or conduct involving a substantial risk to public health and safety or the environment.
Melbourne Water will take all reasonable steps to protect people who make such disclosures from any detrimental action in reprisal for making the disclosure. It will also afford natural justice to the person who is the subject of the disclosure.
Performance Standards
The Whistleblowers Protection Act provides protection to whistleblowers who make disclosures in accordance with the Act, and establishes a system for the matters disclosed to be investigated and rectifying actions to be taken.
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Definitions
Three key concepts in the reporting system are improper conduct, corrupt conduct and detrimental action. Definitions of these terms are set out below.
a) Improper conduct
Improper conduct means conduct that is corrupt, a substantial mismanagement of public resources, or conduct involving substantial risk to public health or safety or to the environment. The conduct must be serious enough to constitute, if proved, a criminal offence or reasonable grounds for dismissal.
b) Corrupt conduct
Corrupt conduct means:

• Conduct of any person (whether or not a public official) that adversely affects the honest performance of a public officer's or public body's functions

• The performance of a public officer's functions dishonestly or with inappropriate partiality

• Conduct of a public officer, former public officer or a public body that amounts to a breach of public trust

• Conduct by a public officer, former public officer or a public body that amounts to the misuse of information or material acquired in the course of the performance of their official functions

• A conspiracy or attempt to engage in the above conduct.
c) Detrimental action
The Act makes it an offence for a person to take detrimental action against a person in reprisal for a protected disclosure.
Detrimental action includes:

• Action causing injury, loss or damage

• or harassment

• Discrimination, disadvantage or adverse treatment in relation to a person's employment, career, profession, trade or business, including the taking of disciplinary action.
Legislation/Regulations
Whistleblowers Protection Act 2001 Section 104 details reporting requirements
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